
 
 
 

Council Excellence Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
 

Date: Tuesday, 21 September 2010 
Time: 
 

6.00 pm 

Venue: Committee Room 1 - Wallasey Town Hall 

 
 
Contact Officer: Mark Delap 
Tel: 0151 691 8500 
e-mail: markdelap@wirral.gov.uk 
Website: http://www.wirral.gov.uk 
 

 

AGENDA 
 
1. MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF 

INTEREST/PARTY WHIP  
 
 Members are asked to consider whether they have personal or 

prejudicial interests in connection with any item(s) on this agenda and, 
if so, to declare them and state what they are. 
 
Members are reminded that they should also declare, pursuant to 
paragraph 18 of the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules, whether 
they are subject to a party whip in connection with any item(s) to be 
considered and, if so, to declare it and state the nature of the whipping 
arrangement. 
 

2. MINUTES (Pages 1 - 28) 
 
 To receive the minutes of the meetings held on 8 July (two meetings), 

24 and 26 August 2010. 
 

3. STRATEGIC CHANGE PROGRAMME UPDATE  
 
 Verbal Report 

 
4. FINANCIAL MONITORING STATEMENT (Pages 29 - 32) 
 
5. FIRST QUARTER PERFORMANCE EXCEPTION REPORT 

2010/2011 (Pages 33 - 48) 
 

Public Document Pack



6. REACHING EXCELLENT LEVEL OF THE EQUALITY FRAMEWORK 
FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENT (EFLG) - QUARTER ONE 2010/2011 
CORPORATE PERFORMANCE MONITORING REPORT (Pages 49 - 
56) 

 
7. OFFICE RATIONALISATION  
 
 To be circulated separately 

 
8. TOTAL PLACE (Pages 57 - 62) 
 
9. REVENUES AND BENEFITS (Pages 63 - 68) 
 
10. BUDGET PROJECTIONS 2011 - 2015 (Pages 69 - 76) 
 
11. TREASURY MANAGEMENT QUARTERLY MONITORING (Pages 77 

- 86) 
 
12. DELIVERING EFFICIENCY AND MEASURING AND REPORTING 

VALUE FOR MONEY GAINS IN LOCAL SERVICES (Pages 87 - 104) 
 
13. CUSTOMER SERVICE FOCUS GROUP (Pages 105 - 140) 
 
14. PUBLICATION OF EXPENDITURE - WORKLOAD IMPACT (Pages 

141 - 144) 
 
15. AUDIT COMMISSION REPORT - MANAGING ATTENDANCE 

(Pages 145 - 172) 
 
16. FORWARD PLAN  
 
 The Forward Plan for the period October 2010 – January 2011 has 

now been published on the Council’s intranet/website. Members are 
invited to review the Plan prior to the meeting in order for the Council 
Excellence Overview and Scrutiny Committee to consider, having 
regard to the work programme, whether scrutiny should take place of 
any items contained within the Plan and, if so, how it could be done 
within relevant timescales and resources. 
 

17. REVIEW OF SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 173 - 180) 
 
18. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS APPROVED BY THE CHAIR 

(PART 1)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



19. EXEMPT INFORMATION - EXCLUSION OF MEMBERS OF THE 
PUBLIC  

 
 The public may be excluded from the meeting during consideration of 

the following items of business on the grounds that they involve the 
likely disclosure of exempt information. 
 
RECOMMENDED –  
 
That in accordance with section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of 
the following items of business, on the grounds that they involve the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined by the relevant 
paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to that Act. The public interest 
test has been applied and favours exclusion. 
 

20. SCHOOLS RISK MANAGEMENT (Pages 181 - 184) 
 
21. CATERING TENDERS (Pages 185 - 188) 
 
22. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS APPROVED BY THE CHAIR 

(PART 2)  
 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



���������	����������
��
����������������
����������

�
�������	
�����	������

�
��������� ��������� �������������������

�
� ���������� ������	�

����� ������
��������	�
������	�
�

��!������
"�!���##���
$�%���&��
�

�
"�'������� ���������� �()��������*��'�����+���"�,�����

��!�������*��'�����+���$��'������
�

��#�����!�&#���� ��������� $�-�#���.� �

�
*�������������� ���������� ��(���

�
��-���
�

�
�

/� ������� ��� ������� ������� ���� ���� ����� ������ �� ���� �� ��������
��������
�
�������&����� ���������0��'�������
�������#��������������������1�&'����'�����+�����
"���������+�2�3
�-)�����������!��� �&�������������������++���������,���+�����������
'��.���4����� �������� ����2�+�#����$����������-�	�.���+��������4�����&��.���� ��+�����
�����3��������-���� �5�������#���������,���6��
�

����� ���� ����	� �	�
� �� ���� ��� ���� ��	
�� ���� ���� �� ���� 	���	�� ���
�������������������������������������������	�����������������	��	�
�
����	�����������������

�
����� ��������� ���� #���� ����� ��� #	� ���������� �� (��
� �� -��
� �� �����
� !��� 2�
)������ ���� �� ��������� ��� ����  ������� ����� 7���� '��'���� ����� �������� ��� ����
��������� +��� �� ���������� �+� ���� ����� ���� ����� ���� '��'����� +��� ���� 3���� ���� #��
����������� 3���� ����� ���� ������5� ���� '��'����� 3���� ���� #�� �����&����� ��� ����
��� ����'�������,����������85�
�

9� �������!�����������������������������������������"�����������
�
!�&#����3������.���������������3����������	�����'����������'��4������� ����������
��������������3������	� ���&������� ������ ��������
� �+���
� ���������� ���&�����������
3�������	�3���5�
�
!�&#����3������&��������������	�����������������
�'�����������'��� ��'������+�
����:,��,��3�����$������	�����������)���
�3������� ���	�3���� ��#4���� ��� �� '���	�
3��'���������������3������	����&�������#����������������
��+���
������������������������
������������+�����3��''�� ������ �&���5�

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 2

Page 1



�
���������$�%���&������������'����������������#	�,�������+�������;����������3����
!������	
�����<���3������
�3���������#&��������3������������&����+�����������������
#	�������&&�����5�
�
��������� �� ������ �������� �� '������� ��������� #	� ,������ �+� ��&� ��,�� � ���
������������3���� ����)=2*
�#��� ���&�&#����+� ����!��� �&������&&�������+�=�3�
��� �����2�+�#����$������5�
�
����-���� �+� 2� �� ����!�&#��� $��,����� ��,����� ������&&������ ����� '����� ��� ����
&����� � ��� ���� �++����� ��,���� ��� ������ !�&#���� 3��� 3���� ���� !�&#���� ���
��'�������+� ���������� ���&&�������+� ���������+��� ���&����#��&���+���+�'��������
������� �+� '��<�����&�������� ��� �������� ��� ��	� ��#��;����� '����� � �''�������� �����
�����#��&������������������-�	�.��2�+�#����$������5�
�

�� �����������	��������������������������������������
�
���������� ���������� ����� ���� ��'���������������#	� ������#�������� ����&����� �����0�
�'��� ����� ���� #���� ��� �1�&'�� ��'���� 3����
� �� ������3���� ���� �1�&'�� ��� �����
�����������'������+���������>�������������������������'��������
�����#����'��,�����
���!�&#����3����������� ����5�-��������;������������++���������'��'��������&&��	�
�+���������&���
�3����������������������1�&'����+��&�����5��������� 	
�����"��������
�+�2�3
�-)�����������!��� �&����'�������������,�����,��������+��������������'���
�
3�����������,����� ������#������+� �����++���� �����,��� +��� ��������'��.���4����� � ����
��� ����2�+�#����$����������-�	�.�
��+����4�����&��.���� ����������3��������-���� �
�
3����3��������#����� �5�
�
���� ��#����� ���� #���� ��,����� ����� ��1� �++���� ���� #���� �����,��� +��� #���� ����
������?�� ���� ���� ���� #����� � �3����#	�����-���� �� ���� ��� ���������� ����� ����
��'���� �����'��3����#���'��������0�@0��#����
� ���� � ���������������'���������5�
��������3��������#����#4���� �������,��� ��'�	&���������
�3�����3�����������
����-���� ������%���������������0�A�����#���'���0�@0����+���	�������������,����
�+� ���� '��'���	� �+� '����� � '��&������� +��� ��� ��������,�� ���
� 3���� �� &��.��� ,����
�� ����������1����� ����
�3����#�������3�������0�	������+��������5�
�
���� "�������� ���� �������� +��� ���� ��#����� ����� �+� ���� �++���� &���� ���� ���� ����
��������������� ����������� ��� ��������5�B��&���	
���3�,��
���� ���������� ����� ���3����
#�� +��� ���� '�������� '��������� ��� �����+	� ���� ������ � ��&&������ ��� ��� ����
�''��'�����������+���	�+���������5�-��������������'����� ��&'�����������������������
���� ����� ���� ��&&������ ����� ���� ����������3���� ��,�� ��� �''�������	� ��� �� ������
������,��3�����'�����+�����'����� ��''��������'������5�
�

>� �	���������������������������#�������
�
��������� �� (��� ��+������ ��� ���� ���������� �� ��+������� �+� ���� -�	�.�� 2�+�#����
$������� ���� �1'������� ���� ,��3� ����� ���� ��#����
� �������� �+� &��.���� � ���� ����
�
������������������ ���������������.��'����3��������-���� ���������#�������������	�
������&�.�� ���� '��'���	� �,���#�� ��� ���� ������� ��� �� '�''������� ����
� ��� ��� ���
���#������#����� ����#������������2�+�#����!����&5�
�
��������� �� -��� ��&&������ ����� ���� ����� 3��� �&&������	� ��4������ ��� �� $���� �+�
$'����� $������+��� *�������� �$$$*�� ���
� #��� � ������� 3������ ���� ��� �� ��'�

Page 2



������,�����������������	��������'��&�����
�3������������#��+�����������&&������
����,��	5� -�� ��+������ ��� ���� ������?�� )� ���������� !������ ���� ����C�
� 3�����
�������������������������#����'�#�����''����+�����2�+�#����!����&5�-�3�,��
�������
�������&�
�����������#�������+�������'�#�������������������������������	�����������+���
�����������������"���������+�2�3
�-)�����������!��� �&������������&&����������
4��������'����������������������������'��&�&���'���������'�5�
�
*�� ���'����� ��� ;��������� +��&� !�&#���� ��� �������� ��� +����� � +��� ���� '��'�����
2�+�#����!����&
����������-��� ���������� ����� ����� +����� �3����,���#��3����
�
���#���,��
���������������3����������''�����+���������++�����
�������&���+���������&��
�����1'������5�
�

��� �
������������������������������
�
!��������	���,�����������&&���������������� �����3�����+��&���!����	�)�,�������
�
��� 3��� ���� ���� 2�+�#���� :'��������� !��� ��� �+� ���� -�	�.�� 2�+�#���5� -��
��&&�����������������3����+�,�������� �+�#����&����&������� ���������������	�����
����� ����� ���� ���� �� �� ��+������ #���+��� +��� ���� ��&&�������� ��� 3����� ���	� 3����
������5� -�� ��+������ �'���+���	� ��� ���� !��+��� 2�+�#���� !����&� ���� ���� '�����,��
�++��������������������&	5�-���1'�����������,��3������������3����#��3����'�����
��''���� +��� �� 2�+�#���� !����&� ��� -�	�.�� ���� ����� ���� ������?�� ����������� ���
�� ����������3��������-���� ��3����#��,����+���������#�������,��5�
�
!���������,����,����� ������&&������ ����� ������������ �����&�#��� � ����'��'��������+�
����-�	�.��$���� ���#
����3�����"�'��	���� ����-�	�.��2�+�#���5�-�� ��+������ ���
���� �� ��+������ ��&#���� �+� ����������� ,������ ��� ���� 2�+�#���� $������� ���� ���� �� ��
�,����+� ��������� ��� ���� ���� ������	��+� ���� �����������5�-�3�,��
� ��� ���� ��������3���
�'��������
�������������+�������������&����&5�-����+�������������#���+�����+�������&�
+������� ���������&	������'�������'�������� +��� ������������&#�����+�,�������� �����
2�+�#����!����&� ���-�	�.�5�-�������� ����
� �+� ����'��4��������������&�� ��� +�������
�
�����������#��� �� ��������������������������-���� ��3��������#���,���#��+���
+���������'���5�
�
������&&������ �,�������������������� �������������3���������#&������� +��&�!����
����
� 3��� ���� #���� ���#�� ��� ������� ����&����� 5� -��� ��#&������� ��+������ ��� ����
���������� �&'�������� �+� ���� -�	�.�� 2�+�#���� ���� ��� ���� 3����'����� '�#���
���������&�+�����2�+�#����!����&������������
�3�����3����#�����;��� ��� ����=�����
%���5�!��������������������������3���#����3��� ������#�������.��������� ��������
��������#���&����������,��'&�����+���2�+�#����!����&5�
�

��� �
�������������������������!�������������
�
!�� *� �����
� -���� �+� ������ !��� �&���
� ��'������ ����� ���� ��� ���� ��������� ���
���'�����+�������������3��������'��.��������4����� �����2�+�#����$�������3�����.���
��� ����� ���>� ��� �� ��� ����� ��������� #	� ���� ��#����� !�&#��� +��� ���'������
)��������5�����'��,������� #����� +��� ���� ���
� ����� 4����� ���'����3���� ����2�+�#����
$������� #����� �� �3���� #	� ���� -���� �
� ���� #���� � ����� ��� ���� ���&�� 3����
��������������#��+�,����#��+�������������5�����������������������#��������<�������
��� ��&&������ ����� ���� '����� � '������� 3���� �����&���� ���� ���&���� ���� �+� ����
����5���#�������+����������������#������,������+������� �'������5�
�

Page 3



%���� �� ���� ��� ������  ������� ����� �����++�������� �������3��������-���� �� +��� ����
#����� � ��� #�� &���� �,���#�� ��� �� '�''������� ����
� ��� ��&&������ ����� ����
-���� �� ���� �����	� ����	� ������� ����� ���	� 3���� ���#�� ��� ��� ����� ���� ����� ���
���'�����+� ���������<������ ���������
���������-�	�.��2�+�#����$������
�3�����3����
�������&���'�����+� ���������������#�������
� ���3��� ������ ������ 	� ������'������� ����
#���� '����� �����&����� #	� ���� �'��� &��.��5� ���	� ���� ���������� ������	� ����� �����
��&������������������-�	�.�5�
�
-�����+��&�����������������������������,�����&��.�����������'��.������4����	�3��������
#����� �5� *+� ��� ���� ���
� ����-���� �� ����� ���� ��� ��� ��3� +��� ���� �����������3����
������� ���� ���� '��.
� �#���� 3���� �� ���������,�� ��,�����
� ���� #���+��� �+� 3����� �	� 3����
����-���� �����������''�������	����&�1�&��������,���������#�����5�*�����'��������
��;��������+��&���!�&#��
�������������������������,����,����������#	�����-���� ��
����������������������	�3����'��'�������������������+����������3���&��.�����4����	
����
� ����5�
�

��� ������#���������
������������������
�
�����������(�����+��������������1'��������,���#�����	������������������������+���
2�+�#����!����&� ���-�	�.������ ���'��������� ���!�� ������
�3���3������#�� ���#��
'������5� -�3�,��
� ���� ��''���� �+� ������� �++������ 3��� ,���� ���� ��� ��+������ ��� ����
�1'������� �+� ���� ������?�� 2�����	� D����� � :++����� ���� -����� �� :++����5� -�� 3���
���������� ���������-���� ���''������ ���#����3��� � ��� ����������� ������'������
�
��,�� ��� ������� ������ ��+��������,��'&����#��� ��������.������3����� ���%����
�
#��� 3��� ���+������ ����� �++������ ����� �� ������� +������� ��� ������� ���� '��4���5� -��
��;������� ���� ��&&������ ��� ��+��� ���� &������ #��.� ��� ���� ��#����� ��� ������ +��� ����
������������#��������������5�
�

�E� ������#����������������������
�
������#�����!�&#��� +������'������)�����������&&������ ����� ��������������+� ����
��#�����3����������'������++���+������������+���'������+����5�*+���������'���������
���� �����#	�������#����
�����'���������3������,������''	�+���'����� �'��&�������
+�����	����� ���+����5��������'����� ��������&�������3��������3������������&����+�
�����������(1�������:,��,��3�����$������	���&&�����5�
�
*+� ��������'��.�3���&��.�����4����	�3���� ����#����� ���3����#	�����-���� �
�����
�������3�������������������&#�����,�����+����������5�-�3�,��
��+�����'���������
3���� ���� �����+� ����#����� 
� ���� ,�����+� ���� ����'��.� ��� ������������ �� +�����������
3����#��+���������&��������#��������+��������������,����,�����5�
�
-�����+��&����������������''��,����������'�����+�����������������������>�������
��� �����'�3���
��+������������ �3����%�������������
���������������������������
����#��������<��5�����'��'���	����������+����#�����,���#������++����+�����	���5�-��
��&&������ ���� ����� ��� ���� ��#��;����	� #���� ��;������� ��� &�.�� �� ��� �����
��������� ��� �������� ��� ���� ���� �+� ���� ���� #��
� ��,�� � ��������� 3���� %����
���������
�������+����������&���������������#�����+��������&�������
�������#��%����
��������������������������#�����&����� ����'���+��3����������,��3�5�������++���3���
������.����'�����������#������ ������������'������++������ ���� ���&���������� �������
��'�����+�����"���������+�2�3
�-)�����������!��� �&���5�
�

Page 4



-�� +������� ��&&������ ����� �++����� ��&��3��� ,���#�� ���� ����� ��3���� #��	� ���� �
�&'�������3��.�+�������������5�������������&����������&������3�������,���#	�&����
���� ��������3����5�
�

�C� ��������������������
�
����-���� �+� 2� �� ����!�&#��� $��,����� ���������� ����� �'��� �������������� �+� ���
�1�����,�����������3���������#����������#4�����+���,������<��
�����+��3�� ��'������
3�����'������������&&������6��
�

•� *+�����:,��,��3�����$������	���&&������� �����3����������������
�����������.��
��� +������������������ �������������3����#���&���++����,�� �&&������	���� ����
������+�����&����� 5�

�
:��

•� *+�����:,��,��3�����$������	���&&��������������� ����3����������������
����&�	�
��+��� ��� #��.� ��� ���� ��#����� +��� ���������������
� '��,���� � �� �����&���� �+�
�������� +��� ���� ��+����5� ���� ��#����?�� ���������������� �+� ���� &�����
� ����
��#��;��������������3����#��+���5�

�
:��

•� *+� ����:,��,��3�����$������	���&&��������������� ����3���� ����������������
�
��,�� ���.����''��'��������,���
����������������������������3����������	��������
������?��'���	�+��&�3��.�����''��,���#�� ��
����3�������3������������#����?��
��&������'�3���
�����������+�������&�������������������5�

�
*��3���&�,���#	�����������������������������#	�������������������6��
�
7�����������#�����#����;�������������.�������������3��������-���� �
�3������,��3�
���+��������� �����-�	�.��2�+�#����!����&����4���58�
�
*��3���&�,����������&���&�����������!������#	��������������	��������������#	�
���������%���&��6��
�
7���������&���&����+�������&������#������&&���������������#�����+���������&'������
�+��� ���������58�
�
����!������#	���������������
������'������ ������&���&����#	��������������	�
3����������5��������
�
�$%&'($)� *� �+,-� -+.%� �&//.--$$� 0&1%.)$2%� .-� ,332&32.,-$� 4&2� -+$� �,5.1$-� -&�
$63'&2$� 7+$-+$2� -+$� �&8',9$� �.4$5&,-� �:%$:/� 32&;$0-� .%� 4$,%.5'$� ,1)�
2$0&//$1)%� -+,-� -+$� �,5.1$-� 5$� 2$<:$%-$)� -&� ,:-+&2.%$� 2$'$(,1-� &44.0$2%� -&�
$1-$2�.1-&�).%0:%%.&1%�,1)"&2�1$=&-.,-.&1%�7.-+��$$'��&').1=%>�4&2�,�/,6./:/�
3$2.&)�&4�-+2$$�/&1-+%>�7.-+�,�(.$7�-&�$63'&2.1=�,1)"&2�4,0.'.-,-.1=�-+$��&8',9$�
�.4$5&,-��:%$:/��2&;$0-?�
�
�
� � �

�

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



���������	����������
��
����������������
����������

�
�������	
�����	������

�
��������� ��������� �������������������

�
� ���������� ������	�

���������
 �!��"������
��������	�
!�����	�
�

 �#� ����
��#���$$���
��%��&�����
%�'���(��
�

�
�

�)� �������������������������������������������������������������
�
#�($����*������+���������������*����������	�����&����������&��,������� ����������
��������������*������	� ���(������� ������"��������
� �-���
� ���������� ���(�����������
*�������	�*���.�
�
#�($����*������(��������������	�����������������
�&�����������&���"��&������-�
����/������*�����%������	�����������0���
�*������� ���	�*���� ��$,���� ��� �� &���	�
*��&���������������*������	����(�������$����������������
��-���
������������������������
������������-�����*��&&��"������"�(���.�
�
���������������	�������������&������� ��������� ����"����� ���(����1�2�����(��-�
3�-��(�������2/3��0�4�����������(�������)�&�����$	���������-������"�(��������($���
�-��������4������&��������$���"���������������������.�
�
5��-�������������������*����(���.�
�

�6� ���������
�
��������� ��!"#� #!��$%&'#����(� #!��$��#%&)��!�����&� *+��",-!�"&��*.� /'&��
01*1�2��"33,����4�
�

�7� ��������������
����������
�
���������  � �!"#� ��'&-%���,� �"&� �,%)!�'��� 2�� "33�%&#��� 
%-���!"%,� (�,� #!��
�&�'%&)�$'&%-%3"��5�",4�
�

��� �����������������6�����������
�
��������������-�2�������&������������((��	������$����-��(����-�������������&��������
�-� ���� �������� ��������� ���� ������� 2���� $������� ��� ��� 8�� #�	� ����.� ����
(��������"������(���� �������� ������(&���������-� �������"��������9�����$��"���$	�
��&���(���� �������"� �"����� �����"�� ���� &���	� �&�����:� (��������"� �"������ ����
����9�����$��"����������"�����-���������(&����������-���	�����"����"����������"��
��$��������������:�������&��������������������"�����$	���$����
��"�������������"����

Public Document Pack

Page 7



$��"��:� ���� ��((����� *����� &�������� ��� �;&�������� �-� ���������� ���� ������
������-���������4�����"�-����������������.�
�
 ����������"���-�����-��������	������	�������������<���"����&��*����&��,�����"����
�����&���� ���� ���� ��������� ��"��"����� &�������	� ������� ������ ����� ���� $����
������-����*��������&���(����.�=��������-��������������������+���$	�������$�����*�����
��������(&�����&�������-��������&�������.�
�
 �����8��#�	���������������������+���$	�������$������������������&���������������
>�<���"����&�
� �-��������
�*���������������$���������8��#����������$	�?�.�(�
�-��(�?6.)(���*�����?@.7(�.���������������-��������A��%�����������������������+����
�����������������������&��,�����������&���.�
�
3�����&��������4���������-��(�#�($���
��������������&����������-��(�����������������
��� ������������ �(&��������������������*������"���� ��-�����������.�=���������-��(���
����� $���� B !�3� ���� B  � "������ *���� ��*� ���� �����$�� ���� �����  !�� ���� $����
�������� $	� ?8.C(.� ���� �(&��������� �-� ���� ����������� *���� $�� ��"��"����� ��� ����
�����(��������"������(���
�*�����*���������$������������#�($���.�
�
��������� ��!"#�#!��,�3�,#�2��&�#��4�
�

�C� ��
�������������������
�
���� ��������� �-� 2������� &�������� ��-��(������ ��� ���� &�������� ��� ���� &������ ��  &���
��������8��#�	�����������������������������;
�5�������5�����(������0���
�"������
��$�� ���� ����� ����(�� ��������� ���� ���� &�	(���� �-� $���-���� ���� ��� &��������
��(&�������-�"�����-���������(��&������������C9����.�
�
#�($������((�������&�������(���������������������$����%&�������������������-�
�������� ���
� ��� &��������
� �&��� &��&�� &�	��"� ��� ���� ������A�� �������� *�������
�����"� &���� ��� ��� ��.� ���� ��&��	� ����-� D;�������9��������� �-� ���&������ %��������
&��&������������$���-��"������*����$���������������#�($����������.�3�����&��������
-������� ��((����� ��� �������� ��� !�����"� ������� 2���� ���� B���� ����"��
� ���
���������� ����� �� -�� �--� ��� $�����"� �������	� ��� �� ������� �(&���� �-� ���� ���������� ����
�������� ��� �� ��"��-������ ���������� ��� -��� ����(�.� =�� &��&����� ����� �� -�������(����
��������$���-��"������$�������������������#�($���.�
�
��������� ��
�

7*8� �!"#�#!��,�3�,#�2��&�#��4�
�

708� �!"#� 2,%�(%&)� &�#��� (,�$� ,����"&#� �((%-�,�� 2�� 3,��%���� #�� ��$2�,�� %&�
,��"#%�&�#��#!��(���%&-�$��������9�&�:��%�-'����4�

�

7;8� �!"#� #!�� �((%-�,�� 2�� ,�<'��#��� #�� ",,"&)�� (�,� �%&"&-�� #,"%&%&)� #�� 2��
3,��%���9�3,%$",%�5� (�,���$2�,��"&����3'#%����(� #!����'&-%���=-����&-��
���,�%�:�"&���-,'#%&5���$$%##���"&��#!"#�"�����$2�,���(�#!����'&-%��2��
%&�%#���#��"##�&�4�

�
�
�
�

Page 8



��� ������6������������������	����������������������
�
���� ��������� �-� 2������� ��&������ �&��� &��"����� �-� ���� !���-���� %������� �����
���C9����� ���� ��� �������� ���� �����"��� ��� $�� -����� ��� ���� ��(��"�(�����.� =��
��&������ ����� ����������	� ���� !���-���� %������� ���� ��(���������� ������� 86
)��� ���
87
���� ���� ���(�� -��� =�����"� !���-���� ���� ������� ��;� !���-���� �=!9��!�.�
=�*����
������"�����&�����*��	���������"��-���������-�� ������(�����������	�����������
���������������������������"���������.�����������-�������������������-��(�������	�
���C� *���� ���� �������� �;������� @�
���� ���� ���� ��������� ���������� ����� ����
���������"����������������������@�
6@7��������(�����8��#�	�����.�2������C9����
�
����$���-���$������������������$�������	�-��(��������"��������(�����-�?�87
6��
��7�
��� ?�)�
686
�C6.� =�*����
� ���� ��������� ���������� ����� ���� ������� ����(���� -���
����9����� �-� ?�)@
C7C
��7� *��� �;&������ ��� ��������� -������� ��� ���� *���� ��������
������
� ��-������� $	� ���� ���������� ����� �-� B���� =�����"�  �*����� �B= �.� 3��
���&����������4��������-��(���#�($������������������������--��"��(&�����-�����������
�������
� ������������� ���������� ����� �������-��(�����������	� ���(� ������ �-� ����
�'�� ���� &�������� ����������� ��� ���� ������� ��� �������� ��� ���� �(&����(���� �-�
�	���(�.� 3�� ��������
� *��+� *��� ��"���"� *���� ��-�*���� &��������� ��� ������� �����
��(&����� �	���(��*���� &��&����� -��� ����"��� ���������� ��� ���� ������� $��"��.� 3��
���&����� ��� -������� ��((�����*���� ��"���� ��� ����� ����"��
� ������������� ����������
����� ��"���� �&������ �-� ���� �(&���� �-� ����"��� *���� &�������� ��� ���� ��$����.� 3-�
#�($���� *�����
� ���� �&������ ����� ���� $�� &��������� ��� -������ (�����"�� �-� ����
��((�����.�
�
���� ��������� ��&������ ����� +�	� �������	� ������ -��� ���� =!9��!� �������� ��(&������
���(��&��������"�����������(�������������-�����(��	�����"����������������������"�
���� �-���-������(.�������4������ ����&��(����"�$���-��� ��+�E�&�����(�;�(�������� -���
�����������	����(��"
�*�����������	��������"� ����"���*�	� ���(���(���� ���� ���+��-�
���� �����"�� -����� ���� �����.� ���� ��������� ��"��"����� ���� ����� -��� ��"�� ����� �-�
�������	� ���� �;&������� ����&&����(���� ����� ���� +�	� *��+� *��� ���� ��&&������ $	�
��$���� �������� &��-��(����� ���������.� =�*����
� &��-��(����� (��������"�
&���������� -������� ����	� ��� �������	� ���� 4����	� �-� &��������
� ���� �� ��������
�����"���-�$��*����C@F�����C)F�*������+��&��"�*�������������������������������.�
���&������&�����&��-��(��������+�	������	���(��
�*������(&�������&��������"���(���
*���(���(�
�����!���-����������������(����������"���������������������������"����
-������� &������ �-� ���������"� ��(���
� �����"�� ���� ����"�.� 3(&����(���� ����
�������(����&��"��((�������������*����������"�����������	������*�����������������
�$���	�������&������������(����;&���������������"���"��'����-��(�.�
�
���� ��������� ��"��"����� ���� *��+� �������+��� ��� &������� ���� ������� -����� ����
��&�������&����������������&(����*����=!9��!�$���"���$,������������"���"������*�
��� �������� ���.�=�� ��((������ ���� �&���(�������� ��� -������� �(&����� �--������	�
������������ ���������"��� -�������9����� ��� �������� ��� ���� ��-��(��-�B= �������$�
����������.�
�
��������� ��
�

7*8� �!"#�#!��,�3�,#�2��&�#��4�
�

708� �!"#� '3�"#��� %&� ,��"#%�&� #�� #!�� %$3"-#� �(� ��'�%&)� ��&�(%#���'&-%�� �"=�
-!"&)���2��3,���&#���#��('#',��$��#%&)���(�#!����$$%##��4�

�

Page 9



��� ������������
������������������
�
��������������-�2�������&��������� �����������&�������� ����*��+��-� ���������(���
%�����������(�
�*���&������������(�������������������������������&��������$	�����
������� ��� ���� *���� ���� �����(���  ������ %�����"	.�  � *���� ���"�� �-� �������"� ����
�����&(�������$���(������4����������$�������������-�������������*��������������
�
������������-�������-����$����
�$	����&����������������*�$.�'��+�*������&���(�����
*����������+������������-	��--���������������(&�����������&����������������������������
�����(���-����"���(�����-�������������*��������&����������*�������	���������.�
�
�������������&����������������-�&��-��(�����(��������"�����������������������������
���� /��� %��&� %��&�� ���� ��((������ ����� �����"�� ���� ������ ���*��� ���
�(&����(����������C9����
�&��-��(���������$�����--���������������������	���������
������ �-� �� ���"�� ��� �����(��� ��4������� ������� ��� �������� *������� ����������� ���
����($������C�����������	�����.�
�
=�� ��&������ ����� �� &���� �����*� �;������� *��� �������	� �����*�	� ��� �������
�*�������� �-
� ���� &��-��(����� �"�����
� �������&�����������(��������%��������.�
=�� ��((������ ����� ������ ���� �;������� ������-	� ���� ����� -��� -������� �������"� ����
�*�������� ������������ ��� *���� �����*� *���� ���������� ��&&�����"� ���������� *����
��4�����
�������*����(&����������������������(����������������������$	������������
*���� ������ �&��� $	� �� ���--� ��� �����(�($���� �-� ���� &�$��� ����� $�� �������� �-� ��
����������������-��������.������(��������	�
���-�����"���&�������(	����	����&&��"�
�;�������������$�������������(&����(�����-���������������	����������((�����������
���� �������((������� ������ ���%�������� ���&������� ���(����� ���+���&����������-�
�������������*�������
������������-�G������������������
�*����&��(����"�&���&�����-���
�(&����(���.�!�����"� ��� ����� &�������� ������(���
� ���� �������	� ���� ���������� ���
&��"����� ���� ����((���������� ���������� ����� ���������*����&�������� ���*�	�� �����
�����(����*�����.���(&��������������$�������������*������������������-���$����
��������#��+�����3���������������&�.�3�����&������������((����-��(���#�($��
�����
���������&��&��������&�����������&���������-������(�����"������������������������(���
2���������&.�
�
=����&��������������������(���0���������&�#���"�(������0#���	���(�*�����������
������
�&��"������������	��������(��� -���$��+
��;�����"���������	���(&������ ���
 ���� %����� %�������� ���� �������A�� %����� ����� ���� ���� �����"�� *��� ���
����������	� ������� ���� ���&���� ��� -���$��+� ��������� ������� �� �������
��&���(����.� ���� ��&�����"� &������ ���C9����� ���*��� �� )F� ��������� ��� ���&������
��(&������ ��������� ����� ���� &�������� ��� (�����
� ��(&����� ��� �� ��F� ���������
��&������ ��� ����9���C.� � =�� ��((������ ����� �� ���"�� ������ �"���� ��(������� ����
���C9�������(&�����-�"���������*��������%�����"��� �����0����*��������9���C��*����
���� �������� *������� ����������� �;&��������� ��� 4������� @� �--�����"� ������	� �-� +�	�
�������������������-������������
�*��������������8)C����"������(&���������������	�
����.� ���� ������ ��&���� �-� ��(&����� ������"� *��� &��������� ��� ���� %���������
��((�����������������������(������@���-����.�
�
 �� ����  ����� ��((������� �������� ��� ����  ������ ��� %�������� ��&���
� ���� ���������
���������� ����� ��� *��� ���� ������"� ��"�� �&&������ ��� *��+��"� *���� ������� *�����
�����(����$���-�����(���� ��"��-�����	� �������&��������������� �-� &��������"�������
���� ��((����	� ���*��+�� *��+��"� *���� /��� %��&� %��&�� ���� ���� ��� ������.� 3��
���&����� ��� �� 4�������� -��(� �� #�($��
� ���� ��������� ���������� ����� ���--� ���������
��"��-������������-��������"���������������*��+�*�����������"������.�

Page 10



�
��������� ��
�

7*8� �!"#� #!�� #!"&>�� �(� #!�� ��$$%##��� 2�� "--�,���� #�� #!�� �((%-�,�� (�,� #!��
-�$3,�!�&�%���&&'"����3�,#9� "&�� #!�� !%)!� ������� �(� -'�#�$�,� ��,�%-��
2��&�#��4�

�

708� �!"#�"�(',#!�,�,�3�,#�2��3,���&#���#��"�('#',��$��#%&)��(�#!����$$%##���%&�
,��"#%�&�#��#!��:�,>�'&��,#">�&�25�#!���'�#�$�,���-'��6,�'34�

�
��� ����������6������������������011?�01*1��

�
���� ��������� �-� 2������� &��������� �� �����*� �-� �������	�#���"�(���� ����������� ���
���C9����
�*��������-��(�����(&������*�����������	��(��������&��������������������
��������$����&��&�������������������*�����������������3�2 ��������	�#���"�(����
������������������������������������-�����&����2����������B���� ����������.�
�
���������������((�������&������������+�-��� ���������(	��������������������������
2�$����	� ���C
� *���� ���� �������	� #���"�(���� %�����"	� -��� ���C9����� *���
�����(����.� ���� �����(��� ���������� ���� ��*������ ��� "��*��� �;������� ����� ���C�
������� ��&�������&���������� ������C9����
�*����� ������������������+� -���������-�
��*� "��*��� ����(&������ *���� ��"�� ���(&�	(���.� =�� ���� ���� ���� ������"	� ����
����������������������$����*��"�����������(�����������&�������&�����(&������*����
�������	� �(�������� ����������.������"� ����	���� 3������� ������������������������*��-�
�����--������	������--������������-������������	�#���"�(�����	���(��������
�*�����
*����������������$���"�H�;�����A��������������������((������������������-��������
	���� ���C9����� ���� �������	� (���"�(���� ����������� ���� �������� ��� ?�.�(� �-�
���������������&���-��(�������(��������(�
�*���������$����������������$������.�
�
��������� ��
�

7*8� �!"#�#!���,�"�',5��"&")�$�&#�&&'"����3�,#�2��&�#��4�
�

708� �!"#� #!�� #,"&�(�,� #�� #!�� 6�&�,"�� �'&�� 2"�"&-�� �(� "��%#%�&"�� %&���#$�&#�
%&-�$���(�@*40$�%&�011?�01*1�2��&�#��4�

�
�8� �����������������������������6��������
�����

�
������&��	�����-�D;�������9��������� �-����&������%�������� ��((������ �����'�����
������� ���� ��+��� ��(�� ��"��-������ ���&�� ��� �(&����� &��-��(�����(���"�(���� ���
�������	��������������&�������������� &������C
����� �������((�������$�"�����������
���"�� �����*��-� ����������A�� &��-��(�����(���"�(���� �����"�(����
� ��� ������ ���
*��+� *���� ���� ��������	� ��� ������� -������� �(&����(����.� =�� &�������� ����  �����
��((������A��-������&�����������-�����"���-����������*�����������������������-���-�����
*����������������-��(���.�/����
� ����������������������	���(������&������������
(���"�� ���� &��-��(����� �--������	� $��� ������ �����"�(����� *���� ���� $���"�
����������	��(&�(�������������������"���������.�
�
���� ��&���� �������� ��� ������� &��� -��� ���������� �(&����(���� ����� ���� $����
�����&���$	� ����������A�����-��(�����#���"�(�����������&������ 3(&����(����
����&����������$�����&&������$	���������-�/--������#���"�(�������(.�
�

Page 11



��������� ��
�

7*8� �!"#�#!��(%&�%&)���(�#!��'�%#���$$%��%�&�,��%�:�2��&�#��4�
�

708� �!"#� #!�� '�%#� ��$$%��%�&A�� (%&"�� ,�3�,#� "&�� "-#%�&� 3�"&9� "33�&���� #��
#!��,�3�,#�&�:��'2$%##��9�2��&�#��4�

�
�@� �������������������������������

�
2������� ��� (������ )�� ��� 2�$����	� �����
� ���� ��������� �-� 2������� ��&������ �&��� ��
�����*� $	� 3�������  ����� �-� ����  ���E2����� ���� �����&����� ����	
� *����� ���� $����
���������$	�������$���������)� &���������(������8C)���-����.����������*�����$����
�������+��� �����"� ��� �;������� ��� ������� ���� �--����������� �-� ���� ������
�����"�(�����-���(���"��"��������+��-�-�������������������������������&���	�*���-�����
���$�����������-��&�����"����������-���������$����(&�����*������������$����&������������
�3�2 9%/B �D�"�������.�
�
�������������&�������������&������ ���E2��������������&���������	����� ����������
��������*������������-���������$���($������*������������������-�������"��������������
&��E������	����*����� ���������������-���(�($�����-����--
��--����������#�($�����-�
��������������� -��������� ����
� ��������	�*����$��(���������$����� ����������A��
3������������3������������*����$�����*��������������������-�������-�/--������������
�����$�����������((������������������� *�������� �������"�*����������������
-��� ����� ��� ����	���� �������"� ���"��������������*���� ��������(�($�����-����--�����
����������������-���������������"�&��+�"��.�
�
��������� ��
�

7*8� �!"#�#!��&#%��,"'��"&����,,'3#%�&����%-5�2���&��,���4�
�

708� �!"#� #!�� &#%��,"'�� "&�� ��,,'3#%�&� ���%-5� 2�� $"��� "�"%�"2��� #�� "���
��$2�,�9� �((%-�,�9� "&�� -%#%B�&�� 25� 2�%&)� %&-�'���� �&� #!�� ��'&-%�A��
�&#�,&�#� �%#�� "&�� #!"#� ":",�&���� #,"%&%&)� 2�� �-!��'���� #�� 3,�$�#��
-�$3�%"&-��"-,����#!����'&-%�4�

�
�)� ������������������������C�������

�
2����������(������)����7�#����������
���������������-�2�������&���������������	����
�-�C�8�2�����(��-�3�-��(�������2/3����4���������������$�������������$	������������
��� ���C.�=����((������ ����� ������ ���� ������������� �-� ���� �"��������*�����"���� ��
"��������"����-��������������	&����-������������-��(����������$	�&�$��������������
�
'������������ ���� �������������"���� ����������"����($����-�2/3� ��4�����
�*�����
��-������$����������&�����������������������(������������.� ���������*��	��������	�
$	� ���� ������(���� ������������� I���� ���� &�������� �� ��&���� ��� 2�����(� �-�
3�-��(������B�"�����������������-�����+�	�-�����"��-�������"�����(����*������������
��($����-���4�����������������$�����
��������$�������������-����������������(���
�
$�����(���������������������.�
�
=�� ���������� ����� ��4������*���� ��4������ ���$�� �����*������� -��(������� �����C)F��-�
������ ������������'�����*����$	��(��.�������*�*�$�&�"�����*��� -�����%�������
0�4�����$������ ���$������� ���"�����������2/3� -��(� ����&�$��.����� ��4������*����

Page 12



���������$	�����3�-��(������#���"��
�*����������*��������(�����&&��&�������--������
�����������������&���(������-����������������$�����������-��(�����.�
�
/-� ���� ��4������ ��������
� �6�� ���� $���� ��-����� -��� �������� �������.� 3�� �� �����
�����
� ��4�������� ���� $���� ���������� ���� ���� �������� -��� ������ ��4����� $���"�
��-����� ���� $���� �;&������ ��� ���(.�=�*����
� �-� �����
� )8�*���� ��-����� ��� ���	�
-��(���&�����-�����&������������;�����������������������$���������������������������
(�($����-�����&�$��.������������*��������-��������������$�"������������*�����	�
��4������*�������(���������������(���-�����������.� ����"��������������������$����
�����������������������������������(������(��-��������(���-������������������
�����
��4�������������������.�
�
3�� ���&����� ��� �� 4�������� -��(� �� #�($��� *���� ��"���� ��� ���� �(&���� ��� �--�����A�
*��+�����-�������4����(�������&�$������-��(�����������������������(���-��;&���������
����� ?)��
� ���� ��������� ��((������ ����� ��� ���� ���
� ��� 	��
� $���� 4�����-���.�
#��������"� *���� $�� �������+��� ���� ��� &��&����� ��� &������� �� -������� ��&���� ��� ��
-������(�����"��-�������((�����.�
�
��������� ��!"#�#!��,�3�,#�2��&�#��4�
�

�6� ������������
�
��������������-�B�*
�=0����� �����#���"�(������&���������������2��*��������-���
���� &������ ��	� ��� /���$��� ����� ���� ������	� $���� &�$������ ��� ���� ������A��
��������9*�$����.�#�($��������$��������������������*���������&������������(�����"����
������-���������((�����������������
������"���"������� ����*��+�&��"��((�
�*�������
�������	������� ��+��&�����-���	� ���(������������*������ �����������
� �-���
���*� ���
�����$�������*����������������(��������������������.�
�
���� ������ ��-������ ��� ���� ���� ���(� H��((���  �(������������ ���������A
� *�����
-��*���-��(������"������(&�(�����������������-�������=0�������	���3���	���(.�
=�� &��&����� ����� ����� (������ ����� -��(� &���� �-� ���� ��((������� �"����� '��+�
���"��((�������(�������7�&����.�
�
��������� ��!"#�#!��3'2�%�!�����,:",����"&�2��&�#��4�
�

�7� ��
�������������������D����6������
�
���� ������ &�������� ��� �&����� ��� ���� �������� ������� �-� ���� ��((�����A�� '��+�
���"��((��-��� ����&��������(�����&�� 	�������� ����������""�������� -��(�#�($����
-��� ���� ������"� (�����&�� 	���.�  (��"� ���� -��������� �-� ���� ��((������ *��� ���
���������������*��+��-�����-��*��"�&���-�����������1��
�

•� ��((����	����������(���D�"�"�(����

•� ���&������0���������

•� 2�����������!����J����
�
=�� ���������� ����� ���� "���&� �&�+��&������� ���� (��� *���� ���� ��&��	� ����-�
D;�������9��������� �-� ���&������ %�������� ���� ���� ��������� �-� B�*
� =0� ����  �����
#���"�(���� ��� )� ��	� ����� ���� ���� ���������� �������� ���(�� -��� ��������� ��� ����
��((�����A��'��+����"��((�.�=����((�������&��� ����*�	�� ����� ��&������������
-����������	������$��������������������������������&����������-��������*�(���������

Page 13



����&�������� ���(�+������--�����������������$������-�	��������*������-����������
�$,���������������.�
�
��������� ��
�

7*8� �!"#� #!�� �((%-�,�� 2�� ,�<'��#��� #�� 3,�3",�� "� ��,>� �,�),"$$�� (�,�
01*1�01**�2"�����&�#!��(����:%&)�%��'��� ��

�

•� ����%�:��(���,(�,$"&-���&�%-"#�,��
��� !"��� ,�)",�� #�� #!�� ",�"�� :!�,�� 3�,(�,$"&-�� %&�%-"#�,�� ",��
,��'&�"&#9� "&�� #!�� ",�"�� ��-"��59� :!%-!� #!�� ��$$%##��� -�&�%��,�
�!�'��� -�&#%&'�� #�� 2�� 3�,(�,$"&-�� $"&")��4� ��� -�&�%��,� "����
2"�"&-%&)�#!��&����#��$�&%#�,�3�,(�,$"&-�9�")"%&�#�#!��#%$���3�&#�
25��((%-�,��%&�3,��%�%&)�$�&%#�,%&)�%&(�,$"#%�&4�

�

•� �!"&)���,�),"$$��
�

•� ��$$�&��$%&%�#,"#%����,�-������
�

•� �'�)�#���&%#�,%&)�
��:� #!�� "'#!�,%#5� 3�,(�,$�� ")"%&�#� �"�%&)�� #",)�#�� "&�9� %&�
3",#%-'�",9�#��,��%�:�3�,(�,$"&-��"&��#!��%$3"-#��&���-"��,��%��&#��
:!�,���"�%&)��",��$"��4�

�

•� ��#"����"-��
�

•� �((%-��--�$$��"#%�&�
�

•� �'�#',"����,�%-���
�

708� �!"#9� %&� ,��"#%�&� #�� �((%-�� --�$$��"#%�&9� #!�� ��"�� �(� ���#�
�"&")�$�&#�2��,�<'��#���#��3,�3",��"��-!��'���(�,���$2�,��#���%�%#�>�5�
�%#��9� 3,%�,� #�� "� �3�-%"�� ���#%&)� �(� #!�� ��$$%##��� #�� -�&�%��,� �((%-��
--�$$��"#%�&9�#��2��!�����&�0.�')'�#�01*14�

�
��� ��������������������

�
 �� ���� (�����"� ���� ��� �@� ����� ����
� ���� ��$����� �(������ @)� ��-����� ��-������ ����
/--����  ���((�������� ��&���� �-� ���� ��������� �-� B�*
� =0� ����  �����#���"�(���
�
��"������*��������D��=���������������	���&��������������((������-����������������.�
�
���������  � �!"#� -�&�%��,"#%�&� �(� #!�� ,�3�,#� �(� #!�� �%,�-#�,� �(� �":9� ��� "&��
���#� �"&")�$�&#� %&� ,��"#%�&� #�� �((%-�� --�$$��"#%�&� 2�� ��(�,,��� #�� "�
�3�-%"�����#%&)��(�#!����$$%##���#��2��!�����&�0.�')'�#�01*14�
�

�C� �	�������������������	����������������������������������
�
��������� ��!"#�%&�"--�,�"&-��:%#!���-#%�&�*11�7.8��(�#!����-"��6���,&$�&#�
-#�*?+09�#!��3'2�%-�2���=-�'����(,�$�#!��$��#%&)��',%&)�-�&�%��,"#%�&��(�#!��
(����:%&)�%#�$��(�2'�%&���9��&�#!��),�'&���#!"#�%#�%&�������#!���%>��5��%�-���',��
�(� �=�$3#� %&(�,$"#%�&� "�� ��(%&��� 25� #!�� ,����"&#� 3","),"3!�� �(� �",#� *� �(�

Page 14



�-!��'���*0�#��#!"#�-#4��!��3'2�%-�%&#�,��#�#��#�!"��2��&�"33�%���"&��("��',��
�=-�'�%�&4�
�

8�� ������� ������E� ����������� ��������6�� ������� �� �������
������������
�
��������������-�2���������&�������&������������(���-��� ������� �����&������(���-�
�����������&�����������������������4������-�������&�����&����(&������&&��������.�=��
���� ���� ���� ������ ��� *����� ���� &���������� *���� ������ ������ D��� �-� %������� B�-��
�D/%B�
��-����*��������	�*���������"���$����&&������$	�����(���-���������������
��&��������������(�������������"����-��&&�������"�D/%B
�(����������������������
����� *���� ���� �"�� �-� �4��&(���� ���� ���� ����� -��� ���������� &��������� &�*��
� 3��
%�������������;&������&������ ����������(�+��$�����������-��;�����"�����*������� ���
�&"����� ��� ��&���� ���� �;�����"� &���������.� =�� �������� ���� (���� �����(���	�
�������"����� �������� ���� ���������� ����� ���� &��,���� -��(��� &���� �-� ���� ����"��
���"��((�� �"����� $	� ���� ��$����.� =�� ������&����� ����
� ����� �� -���� 	���� &�����
�
�����"���-�?�.�(������$����������.�
�
��������� ��!"#�#!������)"#�����-%�%�&��(�#!���%,�-#�,��(��%&"&-��%&�":",�%&)�
#!������",�:",�� ���&#,"���,�-����,��-�&#,"-#�2��&�#��4�
�
�
� � �

�

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



���������	����������
��
����������������
����������

�
�������	�
��������
����

�
��������� ����������� ��������������������

�
� ������������ �����������

�� ������
��!�"����
�� �������
�

�� �����
!�#���$$���
��%��&������
%�'�����(��
�

�
!�&������� ������������ ��#�������)��&������*���#��������

�
�
�

+�� �������������������������������������������������������������
�
#�($����,������-���������������,����������������&�����������&��.�������� ����������
��������������,��������*����,������(������������������	��*���	���������������(�����
������,���������,���/�
�
#�($����,������(�����������������������������������	�&�����������&�����&���0��*�
����1"��"��,�����%������������������2����	�,������� �����,���� ��$.���� ��� �� &�����
,��&� ��������������,���� ���� ���(����$����������������	� �*���	� ����������� �������������
������������*�����,��&&���������(���/�
�
3��������������������,����(���/�
�

+
� ��������������������
�
4����������(������
0��0������
����	�����!���������*�5�,	�62�����������#����(����
&���������������&�������������������1**��������((�������	�,���������$������*������$��
���� ��$����� �(������ �7� �
�� ����� 
����� ��*����� ��� ���� 1"��"��,� ���� %��������
��((������ *����������������/����� ��&����&��������� ����$�������������&��������$��
8��6������ *��� ���� �����������������*� �����������9���**��������((�������/� )�� ������*����
����������������������:������*���������������������������������������*��(�#�($����
�������&��*������,���*��,���/�
�
���� 6���� �*� ������ #����(���� ��������� ���� -��� ������� ���������� ,������ ����
��������������&���	�,��������-����������(�"��,����������������$����������**������������
����:��������"��$���*���������,�����$������"����/�������&����&�����������;��&������*���
��������������������� ��((������ ����� $������ ���� <���(���(�(9��&����	�,�����,���
��������((�����	������*�����������7��&������,���������"�����"���������&����������
�**���������/� 1&����� +� ���� ������� '�������� ��,�� 6���	� ��������� 5����	� ����� 5���	�
(�-�� $������ ���� �*� %����� ��(&��	� ��*��$���� '���(������� 6����� ���� &��"���� ����
$��������*� ���� ��:����������((�������� �����,�$������,��� ����((���������$����
����(���� �����(������� ��"��������� ��������/� )��,����� ����"��� ����������� �"�����
��"�������"����������������������(&�����,����=���(���(�(9������;������*�>0��	����

Public Document Pack

Page 17



&��� ����(� �"��� ���� (����� &������ �*� 
7� �����	� &���� *������� ��� ���� ��:�����*����
��"���/� ������ ��"���� ,���� ��&������� �&��� ������� ����(&������ ��� ���� ��&���	�
��������� �� ��?� ���������� ��� ���**� ��($���� �"��� ���� 
7� ����� &������ ������
�������������/�6�,�"��	�#�($���� ��((������ ����� ���� ��&���� ���������� ���������	�
����� ���� ������ &����((�	� �*� ,����� ���� %�2� ,��� �� ��(&�����	� ���� ���� ����
�����(����� ���� *������ ���**� ��($���� ��� ���� ������������ �*� *��������� ,������ ��
�������������&���*����/�
�
#�($������*������ �����������*������ ��"���(���������,�����:������ ����&�����+�$�*����
���� ��"���� ,����� $�� �����"��� ���� ��((������ �&��� ���� ��"����� �(&���������� �*�
����� ��"���(���/� )�� ���&����� ��� *������� :��������	� ���� !�&���� !�������� �*� 4�������
&��"�������������*���#�($����,�����������������������������,������(������&�����
&��.����/� 6�,�"��	� ���� 6���� �*� ������ #����(���� ���������� ����� ���� (����� ����
$����$������&��������*� ����(��������,�������&�����+�$�����(&��(�����/�4����,���
����������*��(�������$����	��**������,������"���������������������"���&&������,�����
����������"��"����,�$���������,���������"�����"����,����������������*���������"����
�*�����������"���(���/�
�
8��6������ ���� ����((������ ����	� $������� �������*� ����(���������&������,���� ���
�����������-��	�*�������,��-��������$�������������*��(��&�����+���� ����������,���
*��,���/�1������&��*�������&���������$�������*��(���*����������������,��-�,�����$��
�������-��������"���&���*�����$��������������������&��.����(�"���*��,���/�%�&������
���������,��-�,�������� ��:������ ����������� ���� ������������$������@�&���*��� �������
������������������&����������������(�;�(�(���"������������$����-����*��&&�����������
�������*��(���������������������&��.���/�
�
#�($���� ���� �������-��� �� ����� ���&������� �*� �� ��(&��� �*� $�������� �**������ $��
�&����� +� ���� ����������� "������� ������� ��� ��������� ��� ���� &��&������ ��������� ����
���&��*�����"���������������*����������(����(���������/�#�($�������������������
��� �����������*� ����-���,��-�� �����,���� ��:�����	�$���������� ���(����� ���� ���(� ���
������������'���(�������6���������"��,��,�����;&�������������,�����������������$��
���&����� �*� ���	� �������	� ��� ������� ���� 3����� ���� %����� ����;��/� #�($���� �����
�;&����������������$��������&��&����� ���(���$����$�������� ��������������-������	�
&�������������������,����������	������������������(����1���%��&�%��&/�����6�����*�
������ #����(���� ���������� ����� ��������� �&����� �&&������� ,��-� ,��� ��:������ ���
�����������������*�����1���%��&�%��&���**������$������&��&����/�
�
6�����*��(��������������������&��������&����,���$����&��&�����*���������$����	�,����
��"��,�������$����&������������
+�%�&��($���
���/�
�
�����������;&�����������"��,������������$�������&�����������*�������$��&������������
������;��(�������*�������((������������������������"��,���*�������((������(���$��
&��������� ��� ���� ��$����/� ���� ������ ,���� ��� ��� ��((������ ��((����� (���� $��
#�($���� ��� ��������� ��� ���� &��&������ *���1**��������((�������	� ��� ���� ����� �*� ����
������������"������������"����������������������������������&���/�
�
��������� ��
�

!"#� �$%&�&$���''()�*��+��*�,-��&���&��$%���*�.%*��&��&$���(�/���'�&$�����*�(�/�
%0���)*-&(01�)�22(&&���(0�*��%&(�0�&���''()��%))�22��%&(�0� ��

�

•� �*�)�.0(&(�0��'�&$��(23�*&%0)���'���)%�(&1�/�*4(0.�

Page 18



•� �*�)�.0(&(�0��'�&$��0����&��%)$(�����%�(0.��%��%�2%&&�*��'�-*.�0)15�
(0)�-�(0.� &%4(0.� ��2�� +-(��(0.�� �-&� �'� -��� '�*� �%*�1� �(�3��%�5� &��
%)$(����&$�����%�(0.��

•� �$��0����&��3*�.*�������(0'*%�&*-)&-*��&�)$0���.1�

•� �$�� 0���� '�*� %� )��%*� -0��*�&%0�(0.� �'� &$�� ������ �'� -3'*�0&�
(0���&2�0&�*�,-(*���%0��&$����������'��%�(0.��&$%&�2%1�+��%)$(�����

•� �$�� (23�*&%0)�� �'� $%�(0.� %��0�� �&�3� �$�3� (0� )�0&*%�� �(*4�0$�%��
/%���0��*����

•� �$%&� &$�� �(�/�� �'� &$�� ��0��*�%&(�0� �''()�*�� �$�-��� +�� ��-.$&� (0�
*��%&(�0�&��&$����0/%1��-(��(0.�

•� �$%&�)�0�(��*%&(�0��$�-���+��.(��0�&��%0�(0)*�%����-����'�&$�����%*�
�%23-��

•� �$%&�)�0�(��*%&(�0�+��.(��0� &�� &$�� *�'-*+(�$2�0&��'� &$����*&$�%0��
��-&$�00�6���(0��*��*�&��%))�22��%&��2�*���&%''�

•� �$%&� &$�*�� �$�-��� +�� �(&$�*� �''�)&(��� *�'-*+(�$2�0&� �*� �(�3��%�� �'�
���&2(0�&�*���-���

•� �$%&� 2�*�� /�*4� �$�-��� +�� -0��*&%4�0� (0� *��%&(�0� &�� �%�(0.��
%���)(%&���/(&$��%)(�(&(����%0%.�2�0&�

•� �$%&�0�/�+-(����$�-���0�&�+��)�0�(��*���%&�&$��3*���0&�&(2��

•� �$%&� �%��%��1� ��/0� �%��� �$�-��� *�2%(0� %�� &$�� ��-0)(�7�� 3��(&()%��
)�0&*��

•� �$%&�&$�*���$�-���+��%0�(0)*�%����-����'�.(�����*4(0.�

•� �$%&�0��'-*&$�*�%)&(�0��$�-���+��&%4�0�%&��$��$(*���(0��5��&$�*�&$%0�
&��(0&�0�('1�(&��-���

•� �$%&� &$����-0)(�7���%*+�0����&3*(0&��$�-���+��*��-)���%��%�*��-�&�
�'�&$��3*�3��%���

�

!8#� �$%&�&$���%+(0�&�*�3�*&��'�&$���(*�)&�*��'��%/5����%0�����&��%0%.�2�0&�
+�� 3*���0&��� &�� &$�� 2��&(0.� �'� &$�� ��22(&&��� �)$��-���� '�*� 8"�
��3&�2+�*� 89"95� (0� �*��*� &�� %���/� &$�� �(�/�� �'� &$�� ��22(&&��� &�� +��
3*���0&���&��&$���%+(0�&�%&�(&��2��&(0.��0�8:���3&�2+�*�89"9;�

�
�
� � �

�

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



���������	����������
��
����������������
����������

�
�������	
���������������

�
��������� ����������� ��������������������

�
� ������������ �����������

�� ����	�
��!�"����
�� �����	�
�

�� ���	�
!�#���$$���
��%��&������
%�'�����(��
�

�
!�&������� ����������� ��#�������)��&������*��#�������

�
��$�����#�($���� ����������� �+������� �

)�������������� ����������� %�,���-���
�

��
�

�
���������������������������������������������������������
�
������(���������������������	�����
�������$����������������������&�����*�����!�&��	�
����*� +.�����"�/!�������� �*� ���&������ %��"����� ��� ��������� ��� ���� ������ ������
����/������������������*���,������0����1�
�
������&����������������������������&���������������������������������������������2�����
����((���������� 3����� ���� �������	� ���������� ��"���(���� ����������� ��� ����
������������ *��� ����/��� �������$��(�������� ���� �(&�����������*� �����2� �4�� �������
#�($����"��3���������������������*�������(�����������������������*�������/��2�����
�5�� ��"����� ��� ���� �&&������ ��� $�� ����������� *��� *������ *������� �����������1� ����
��$�����6��
�

�� !"#�$�%��
�

���� �&'(��')*+�(�',-�� �(&�����-�$./(*!+ �*+�����0���!1�2345�64����' �
 �(�!.(�)�"!78�

�

�!.-/�� 9!.+(�
�+/!99*((�$� ��� 7*(&� +!� !-� "!7� *9:'/(� (!�
 �-#*/� ��+!(�1-!+("*+���

2�4�364����

�+/!99*((�$����7*(&�9�$*.9�*9:'/(�(!� �-#*/� �
�+!(�1-!+("*+���

2�4�634����

�!-;*+,���*,&)!.-&!!$��.+$� 2�4��64����
�!('"� 2345�64����

�

���� �&'(�'� -�#*�7�!1�'""� 1.(.-����� 1.+$*+,� * �.+$�-(';�+�' � �(�!.(� *+�
:'-',-':&�<=��!1�(&* �-�:!-(=�

�
����� ��������� ���� $���� ������� ��� $	� ���� 7������ ���� !�&��	� 7������ �*� ���� 7�$����
����&
������������%�,���-��������������������!�"������������������������6��

Public Document Pack

Page 21



�
8������&�������(��������������&��	����3��������������(&�����*��������������((�����1�
�
���������"������*���(�������&�����
�*����.�(&��
�*��(�����%������!�"���&(���������
�
3����� ��� ����� ��� ������ ���� �����������*� ������������� ��������� ��� �������� �������$��
����������"������(&�������*�������������"����1�
�
��������9�� %��"����� ����� 	���� ����� :;��
���� �*� ����((������ ���� ������ ������ ���
���&������������"���&�����*�:�1;(
��*�3�����:�1<(�3���������������������&�������
��� ����&������� ������������ ����� *��� ��������1��������� ����((������������3���� ��(�"��
�����*��.�$����	�����������������3������"������������(&�������-�	�*������������"����1��
�
����������������������$����	���&�$��3��������&���������������	�����������������������&�������
��������������	��*�3����������$���������((����������3����(���1�
�
� ���� �*� :�1�(� ��� ����'��-���� =����$�������� ,���
� *��� �.�(&��
� 3����� ��� �������
�"��� ����� ���� ���� ����((������ $	� ���� ��"���(���
� ��� ��� ������� ���*����� 3����
(������������������&�����������������$�����*�(���������������(&�����*�������������������
���������3��-��������������*����������������($������������(&��	(���
��������������
��������1�
�
!��&���� ���� (���� ���(&����� ����������� �*� ����� ��(������������ ��� ������������� �*� ����
-����
�3�������**
����"��������������������������&�$���
�����������$��������������������
��� �����������������
������	���$�����$���� ������ ����� �(&���1�������"����� ��� ����
�3����
�"��	��**����$�����(������������������(&���1�
�
)�� ��� ���� (���� ������ ����� ���� 3�	� ��� 3����� ����� ��&���� ��� 3������
� ���� ����
����((��������������*��(��
�(����������������(������������������3���������*�������
:41;(� �*� ����������� ����� ��� $�� (���� ��� ������ ���� ����/��� $������ ��&
� 3����� ����
������	� ��������:�5(����� ��� ������� *���
� ��-���� ���� ��������� *��� ��������	�:�>(
�����
��������$�*��������*�����(&�����*�������(&�������"��%&�������?�"��3���������������1�
�
�����������������	���9������������*����(������	�����������	
��������������3���*�������
��"�� ��(���������
� ���� �� ������� �*� &��������� ���(�� *��(� ���� ��������� ������"���"��
7�$����� !�(������ ���������� 3����� &���� ������������ ��((��(���� ��� �� �(������ ������
�$�"�� ���� ���������� �*� ���� ������� ���� ��� &��&����
� ��� ��� �����
� ��� @��&������� ����
������	9�� �����(��� ����"��	� $	� �������� ���� ����&�	� ���� ����� ��� ������ ��� �����"�� ����
������"���������������*����������&�����(���A1�
�

44� �>��?���@����������A���
�
���������� ��*������ ��� ���� 3��������� ����� ���� $���� ��"����� ��� ��"�� �"������� ��� ����
��((���������
���"���� ������� ��� ��������B)����������������� �����������9�����������
������
�������������3���������B���3�����$��������3���� ������������������������ ���3���
�����(����������*���������&���(�����1�
�

45� �������?�����������������������������������������0@�����>�@��
�
#�($����3������-���������������3����������	�����&�����������&��@�������� ����������
��� �����������3���� ���� ����B��� ���(� ���
� �*� ��
� ��� �������� ���(� ���� ������3���� ���	�
3���1�
�

Page 22



#�($����3������(��������������	��������������������
�&�����������&������&���>��*�
����C"��"��3�����%������	�����������?����
�3������� ���	�3���� ��$@���� ��� �� &���	�
3��&� ��������������3���� ���� ���(����$����������������
� �*���
� ����������� �������������
������������*�����3��&&�����������(���1�
�
����������� #��� �� #������ ��������� ���� &�������� ��������� ��� ���� ����B��� �*� ��$�����
(������ �>� $	� "������ �*� ���� ��������9�� �(&��	(���� ��� ���� ��������� ���� 0�����
���&��9��!�&���(���1�
�

4D� �	@����������������������������������
�
�������������!�"������*���������������������*�����������B�������������������������&�&���
����&��"�����������������.&����������*��������������1�)���������
����������������&��
����� ���� ����� &��&����� $	� ������$�����3����� ���� ��"�� �� ������� �(&���� ��� *���������
���"����1�E��$����"������(����$������������	�������������	�3�����$����(���������
����"��	�*��(����������1�E������&���������������"�������F����(��������$����&������
���������������$	�����������"���(���
�$��� �����������������������������	������"�����
&��&�����������������������&��-�����*�����(����������	����������������$�����1�
�
#���� ��**������ ��� ����&�� 3��� ���� :�1�(� ���� ��� ����'��-���� =����$��������� ,���
�
3�����3�����(��:�(�����.������*�������"�����������$	�������"���(���1�����,����
���� $���� -�	� ��� ����"��	� *��(� ���������� $	� ���� ��������� �*� �&&����������&�� ����
�����������3��-��������1�,���$��-� *��(� ����%(���� ����#����(�+����&����� �%#+��
��((����	����������� ����� ������(���� *����&&����������&�� ��(��������������� �����
���� ���� &��&����� 3����� $�� &����������	� ��(������ ��� ���(�� �*� �(&��	(����
�&&����������1�
�
E����*�������������������&��&�������������������������0��������&�����0���$�����
�
&����������	� ���� �����*������ ����� ��� ���� %������ !�"���&(���� ������ ���� +.�������
%�������%�����G&������1�,���������������$����"������$��������&��$���3����������������
�������������������	���������-�,�(��	�����0�����C&&�������	1�E����((�����������
�����*������������*���������3�������"������������(&�������*������������"����1�
�
E���.&�������*�������������������� ����&&������ �����"��$��������**����� �����.�������
���� ����� ��� ������������� ���� $���� �������-��� ��� ���������� ���� "��3�� �*� ���"����
�����
�E�����������
������������������������-�	����-��������1�
�
���������	
����$����"����������������������������$����*������$��-����������$�����*���
���������������
���"���������������������(���*���������B���������1�
�

4�� �
�����������������������
�
�-��!&+�@*,,!((��("' ��*-��'+$���/.-*(B��
�
#������������"�����������((�������*�����$���*�������(����$���������
�&����������	������
��(�� �*� ���������
� �*� ���� '������ &&����������&� %���(�� ����� 3��� *������ $	� ����
'��-����=����$��������,���1�E����((������������������(��3����(��	�%#+9��3����
�����������*�$�������
�����%���(����������3�������$�������� ���������� @�$��*��� �3��
	�����&��&��������(�	�������"��$����&����$���3�����������*�������$������"����$������
��(�"���������-1�
�

Page 23



)�� ���&����� ��� F��������� *��(� #�($���
� #�� �������� ���������� ����� ���� *���������
$���*��� �*� ����&&����������&�%���(��3����� ��������� *�����
� &����������	� ����� ��(���*�
���������1�E����-��3����������������������$��������������(���������&�$����������
$��� �.&������� ���� "��3� ����� ����'������ ����3��� ���� $��"���� ���� $���� &��"������ �*�
*����������&��"���������@�$��*��������"��������&��&��������������������������	��������
$�������1�
�
>�'$�!1��(-'(�,*/���#�"!:9�+(�%��-�A�#*+�$$�-"�B�
�
���� E���� �*� %��������� !�"���&(���� ��"�� �� �������� �������� �*� ���� ��&&���� *���
$����������3����������'��-����=����$���������,��������*��������&���*�����	��������
���������*�����&&����������&�������((�1�)�����&��������F���������*��(�(�($���
�
���������������������������&&���������3�������**������$	������������*��������*�:�1�(1�
E�3�"��
� �*� ��� 3��� ������ �"����$��
� ��� ������ *���� &����&�� ��� ����������� ����
�&&����������&�1�'���� ��-��� �*� ���� ��������� �*� @�$�� ������ $�� ����� ��� �� *����� �����
���"���
�����.&�����������"��3���������3�������������*�����&��"���������������������@�$��
���� ���� ������*� ����&�$�����������3��� ���������� ��������������� *��� ����� �����&&��1� )��
��������&�����������������������"������-�	�����������&������	��*����������3��-��������1�
�
E����*������������������=��������&&����������&�%���(��������&����������������**�����
*��(� ���� '������ ����(�� ��� ����� ��� ���� ���� ������� 3���� �� 3���� ��$���	� ��� ��&&����
$���������1� )�� ���&����� ��� *������� F��������
� ���� E���� �*� %��������� !�"���&(����
��((������ �&��� ���� ,������ ��$�� ,���
� 3����� 3��� �� (������� ��� ���-��� �>B�5�
���(&��	(���
�$	���������������*���(&����	�&�����3����������&�$��������������&��"����
"����$���3��-��.&�������������������(���*����������1�)��3����������*���������C���$���
�����3�����������������-������#���������1�
�
�*-�/(!-�!1��&*"$-�+C ���-#*/� �%��-�>!7'-$��!!:�-�
�
)�����&��������F���������*��(�#�($���
�����!���������*���������9��%��"���������������
����� �*� ���� :41;(� ����� ��� ���� ������������ ����� ������� $	� ���� ��$����
� :�1D(�
�**������ ���� ����"������ �*� ���� ��������� ���� 0����� ���&��9�� !�&���(���� ��0��1� E��
���*��(��� ����� ������� �*� E������������ ����&�� ���� $���� $���*��� ��� ��������� ��� ����
����������� ��� ��� ���� ��� 3��� ���� ����� ��� (���� 3���� ������� ��"������� ��� �>�
%�&��($�������1�E�������������������������$����&����$��������������(�����.�����"��	
�
$�������������������$����&����$�����������
����������"�����3������F���������$��(����
��B	���1� ���� !�������� ��((������ ����� &����� ��� ��
� (��	� �*� ���� ������� ��� ������
������������ 3����� ��"�� $���� ����� *������ ���� ����� ���'�����
� ���� ��� *������� 3���
&������ ��� ������!�&���(����� �����3����� &��"�����	� ��"�� �����"��� ���� ����� *������
����������1� E�3�"��
� ��������� (���� �*� ���� ������ ���� $���� ���������� ��� �0�
� ���
��((����������
����'�����
�����������������������$����&���������&��&���������	1�
�
)�� ���&����� ��� *�������F��������� ��� ��������� ��� ���� �(&�����*� �������� �������(���� *���
*����� ����� ���"����
� ���� !�������� ������� ����� ��������� ������ ���� $���� ��� �(&���
� ��
@����(��������$����(������������3�$�������(������*�������������"�����3�����������
��� �� ��($��� �*� *������� ���������� ���� ������� �*� ��(�� �� &���� ���� $���� "������ ����
3���������*�����������������������&����3�������(�������������"��������**���������$����	����
�.&������1�E����������*���	��.�(���������$���������������*	�3�������"�����������$��
(���� ���� ���������� ����� ����� ��� ����((������ �.&��������� 3����� ��"�� �� (����
(������$����(&���1�
�
�

Page 24



��:.(B��*-�/(!-�!1��*+'+/��%��-��'#*$��'B"!-��9*(&�
�
���� !�&��	� !�������� �*� ,������� ��&������ ����� ��� 3��� ���������� ��� $����*� �*� ����
!�������� �*� ,������
� 3��� ���� $���� ���$��� ��� ������� ���� (������1� )�� ���&����� ���
F��������
�������*��(�����������������������������3����*�������	�������	
�$������3���
���� &����$��� ��� &������� 3���� 3����� ��&&��� ��� *������ 	����1� E�� ���*��(��� ����
� ���
&������� �������� ���@�������� ����/���D� ��&������ ��� ��$����� ��� �4� ���	�� ���� ��&�
$��3�����&������������������*�������/���3���:�41<(�������������������������������
3�������������������������-����������	
����3����(&�����������������������3�����3�
�**����"��	����������������1� )�����&���������� *�������F�������
�������*��(�������� ����
!�������� ������� ���� (���� ��� ��((���� ��� ��������� ��� 3���� ������������� ���� $����
�������-���$	������������1�
�
��:.(B��&*�1��D�/.(*#�0�*-�/(!-�!1��!-:!-'(����-#*/� �%��-��*9��*";*��
�
)�� ���&����� ��� �� F�������� *��(� #�($���
� ���� !�&��	� ����*� +.�����"�/!�������� �*�
���&������%��"�������*������ ������ ������������*��(�������$������(������5����5������
��������*����
�3�������F��������(����$�����*��3��������&�������������$�������"��3����
���� �&������� �����3��� *�������� ������������������������ *������1� ���� �������� ����
3����� ���� *������� �(&������ ��� ���**���1� ���� ��"��3� 3��� ��F������ ��� ������� ����
�&��������*����*������������������������ �������������������(����3�������&������&����
&���������
������������*��(&��������������������*��**����"��������������"����������������
�����(��� *��(� ����� �&������1� ���� ��"��3� 3��� ����� ��� *��(� ���� $����� ��� 3�����
�&������� ���������� �*� ��� 3����� $�� $����� $���� ��� ���� *������ ���� ��� ���� ��������
*��������� 	���1�E�����*��(��� ����� ���� ��&���� ����$����&��&����� ��� ���@��������3����
������� �**������ *��(� "������� ��&���(����� ���� ����� ������ ���� ���� $���� ��&��� *��(�
�������������������1�������(�������*��� ��B	����$��������������������$�������"�������
��������3�*���3����������������������������������"�������&���*��������������������������
3����&����������������������-��������1�
�
E����������������������(&�����*���������������������*�������������"�����������"����
������� ��� ���� ��F����(���� ���(�-�� ��B	������"����
�����.&������� ����"��3� ����� ����
�(&���� �*� ������ ��"�����3����� ��"�� $���� *��� �������� �*� ���	� ���� ���-��� ��� �������
��((������ �.&��������1� �������� �����*�����
� ��� �.&������� ���� "��3� ����� ����
���������� ��� '��-���� =����$��������� ,������� �*� :�1�(
� 3����� ���� &��"���� ����
��������*��(������"��������&���������1�
�
��'$�-�!1�(&���!.+/*"�'+$��')*+�(���9)�-�1!-��*+'+/��'+$��� (�
'".��
%��!.+/*""!-����-��+�
�
)�� ���&����� ���F��������� *��(�#�($������� ���3������� ���� ��&���� &��������� ��� ����
��$����� ��� ���	� ���� $���� ��$@���� ��� �� �����*�� ��� ����������
� ����������� ������
���*��(���������������$��������������������$���*����(�������&��������������$����
�$���
�������������������������	��&���*�����������$�����(���������1�'������-��������((����
�&�����������������*�����-����:�1�(������*�����'��-����=����$���������,���
�3����
������"���(�������������������"�����*����	�:�1�(
������((����������� ����*�������
���������� ������� $	� ���� ��$����� 3��� ��� ����� 3���� ���� ���������� ���������� $	� ����
��"���(���1�E����������&����������"����*��(��**���������������*�������3�����������	�
����((���������������*�����"����$��� �����&&���� ����������������1�E����((������
��������������������������3���������$���$������������������3�������������������������*�
���� ��F������ ����� �����
� ���� ���������"��3��� ��� ���� ��((������ �.&��������
�3�����
3�������"��������*���(������(�������(&���1�

Page 25



�
)�� ���&����� ��� *������� F��������
� ��� ��((������ �&��� ���� �(&�������� �*� &�$����
�������������$��
������������������	������.����������	���������*�������������(�-����B
	������"����
������������$����&����$�������������-������������������.�������������������
���������������&��&�����1�
�

4<� ���������@������
�������>����������
�
�������������!�"�����.&�����������"��3���������������������3�������"���������*������
�(&�������*������������"�����&��"�����$	������������1�)��&���������
����������0��3�����
��(���� �����$����	� �*� �������� ��������3� ������&����� ������ ����������(���� ��"�����*�
	����� &��&��� ��� ��&��"��� �����1� E�� ���������� ����� ���� ���� ��� ���� '��-����
=����$���������,���
�$�����*���(��������������&��&�����$	�������"���(���
�3�����
��"���������(�������**��������(&��	(�����&&���������������3���������� �(&�����&���
�����$����	��*�������$����������������"�"������&���&��1�
�
E�� ��((������ ����� ��� 3��� ��������$��� ����� ������ ���� $���� ��� ������������� 3����
&�������� ��� ���-��������� ���� ����� ���� &��-���� �*� ����� �&&������ ��� ��"�� $����
*��(�������$	��**�����1�
�
E�� $����"��� ����� (������ �>� ������� $�� ��*������ $��-� ��� ���� ��$����� *��� *�������
������������������������������������������&����������������"���(�����$�������������
���(�-����B	����$����������1�E����((����������������$�*������	�$�����������������
3���� *��������
���	�&��&���������� �������������$�� ��*������ ��� ������������&�$����
�������������(��������*����������������1�
�

4>� ���������@�������������������
�
����������� �� ������ ��*������ ��� ���� &��"����� ���� �*� ����((������ �.&��������� ���
���������"���&��������0��������((���������������������$���������������(&�������
�0�������������3�������"��$�����*����������������$����&��&�����������������������
����������
��������$��������������������($����*������������������1�
�
������ ��(������ :�1<(� ��� ����'��-����=����$���������,���
�3�����3����� ���$���
�����*������ &��@����� ��� $�� �������-��� ��� $���*��� ������ $���������� ���������� ����
&��"������ �*� ��&��� *���� $����$���1� E�� ���������� ����� ���� �������� �&&����������&�
����(��3�����$�����**������$	�&��&��������������.&��������1�
�
E�� ��((������ ����� ��� 3��� ��*��������� ����� ��(�� ������������ ���� ���� ����3���
����������������$���������-����������������������&��&�������B	�������������.&��������1�
E�3�"��
���������������������(&����3�������"��$����(���������*�������*�������$�����
��� ����� ���� ���� ����������� �**������ ��� �������-�� �� ��"��3� �*� ��� �&������� ��� ��
(�������*�&������	1�E����������������������������-������������(������5����5������������
��*�������������$�������������������������-��������**������*�����������������"��������
*�������3��-��������-���3������"��	���������(�������1�
�

4;� ������������
�
��<1��&(
�������((��������������@�������*����D�(������1�
�
�
�

Page 26



5�� ��������������������
�
)��3���(�"���$	��������������!�"�����������������$	�������������� ���	�6��
�
8��������� �������((������ ������� ��� ��*���(������ �>� $��-� ��� ������$����� *��� *�������
��������������������������������������:41;(��*������&��&�����3�����������	��(&�������
*�������������"���������(�-�����(������**������*������������������������"���������&������
����������1�
�
���� ����� ���� ��((������ ��-�� ����� ��$����� ���������� ���� ���"�� �������� 3���� ����
��"���(�����$���� ��F������� ������������� ���(�-�� �����B������������(������ ��B	����
����� 3���� ���� �������9�� $������ *��� ����/����� ���� ������	� $���� ��(����������	�
������1�
�
�4���������"��������������"���"�B7�$�����!�(�������(�����������9��&�$����	����������
&������	� *��� &�$���� ������������� ������� ���� *������ �*� �������� ���"����� ���� �&�������
&���������
��������((��������-����$����������������������&��&�������������&�����*�����
�&��(�����������������3������������������-�	����-���������������������*��������������
�����-����������������������*�����������������������-��3�1A�
�
)��3���(�"����������(���(����$	�������������������������������������$	������������
�� ����	�6��
�
8���� ����� ����� C"��"��3� ���� %������	� ��((������ ��������� ���� ��$����� ���������
��"��������������� ����&�������3�����3���$���������5�����������3����(������5�
�
������������������������������&�����*�������	������3�����������	��������� ���� ��"�����*�
����((������������������((���������������������*�����,���1�
�
���������������((�����������������������**��������������������������*��������(���������
����������������"����*��������������������(���	���1�
�
�4�� ����� ���� ��((������ ����������� ��"���� �*� �**������ 3��� ��-��� ��� ���� ��"��� �*�
"������������������**�����	�����������(��������������������������������$���������
�������&������������������$�����������$�����1�
�
�5�������������((�������&&��������������������������$���������*�������(��������������
'��-����=����$���������,�������������������$�������������������"�������������9��-�	�
�$@����"��1�
�
�D�������������((���������������������*�������� ������3�������&�������������0�!
�
��-����:�1D(��*�����((������(���	�������������:�1�(1A�
�
�����(���(����3���&������������������5��
�
�� !"#�$� ��8E�� ��!.+/*""!- � @� �'#*� 4� �� A�++B4� �� �(':"�(!+� '+$� �� ��'$�+�
#!(*+,�','*+ (��%��
�

���� �&'(� (&* � �#�-#*�7� '+$� �/-.(*+B� �!99*((��� �+$!- � � (&�� �')*+�(�
$�/* *!+� &'#*+,� /!+ *$�-�$� (&�� :-!/�  � 7&*/&� 7' � )�,'+� !+� �E� �.+��
�����7*(&�9*+.(�� E�4� (&�� $�('*"� /!+('*+�$� *+� (&�� -�:!-(� !1� ��� �."B� �����
7&*/&�/"�'-"B� �(�!.(�(&��"�#�" �!1�.+/!99*((�$�,-'+(�'+$�/!99�+('-*� �
!+�(&��. ��!1�(&���.+$=�

Page 27



�

���� �&'(� (&���!99*((��� -�/!,+* � � (&��$*11*/."(*� � (&'(� (&���!.+/*"� 1'/�$� *+�
9��(*+,�'�/&'+,��*+�(&��"�#�"�!1�-�'��' �$��-'+(�*+�9*$�B�'-=�

�

�3�� �&'(�(&���!99*((���-�/!,+* � �'$#*/��!1�!11*/�- �7' �(';�+�!+�(&��"�#�"�
!1�#'/'+/*� �'+$�!+�$*11*/."(B� *+� -�/-.*(9�+(�'+$�.+$�- ('+$ � (&'(����
&' �)��+�. �$�*+�(&��:' (�' �'�,-'+(�(!�)'"'+/��(&��).$,�(=�

�

�E�� �&'(� (&�� �!99*((��� '::-�/*'(� � (&'(� (&�-�� '-��  .) ('+(*'"� 1.+$ �
-�9'*+*+,�*+�(&���!-;*+,���*,&)!.-&!!$ ��.+$�(&'(�/'+� (*""�)��.(*"* �$�
(!�'/&*�#��(&���!.+/*"C �;�B�!)F�/(*#� =�

�

�<�� �&'(�(&���!99*((���+!(� �(&'(�(&��1.""�/.(�*+����7' �+!(�:'  �$�!+�(!�
��@�4�(';*+,�2�=<9�!1�.+/!99*((�$�9!+�B�-'(&�-�(&'+�2�=�9=�

�
�
� � �

�

Page 28



WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
COUNCIL EXCELLENCE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
21 SEPTEMBER 2010 
 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 
FINANCIAL MONITORING STATEMENT 
 
1.  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report provides a summary in tabular format of the position of the 

revenue accounts and General Fund balances as at 31 July 2010. 
 
2. MONITORING STATEMENT 
 
2.1 The monitoring statement is attached to this report and includes the following: 
 

• Composition of the original 2010/11 budget by Department including 
agreed savings and policy options. 

• Monitoring against the 2010/11 budget including the financial implications 
of any changes agreed through Cabinet decisions. 

• Anticipated variances, changes not agreed by Cabinet, against the original 
budget. 

• Comments providing an explanation of variances and areas identified as 
requiring further attention. 

 
2.2 The Statement is produced monthly and sent to all Councillors. A formal 

report is submitted to each meeting of this Committee. 
 
3. LATEST FINANCIAL POSITION 
 
3.1 The Statement presents an update of the revenue budget and General Fund 

balances as at 31 July 2010. 
 
3.2 At this stage of the financial year only Children & Young People are projecting 

an overspend whilst the potentially volatile areas within departments are:- 
 
3.2.1 Adult Social Services - pressures around community care due to increasing 

demand, income targets and transport costs which has been assessed at £3 
million. Not identified as a potential overspend at this time as the Director is 
looking at ways to keep within the budget allocated. 

 
3.2.2 Children & Young People - a potential overspend of £1.8 million primarily from 

residential care placements and foster care costs. Again the Director is 
looking at actions to remain within the budget allocated. 

Agenda Item 4

Page 29



 
3.2.3 Regeneration, presently retained as the former department whilst consultation 

as to its future remains ongoing, is heavily reliant upon meeting income 
targets which continue to prove challenging and are being closely monitored. 
2010/11 also features the first year of planned four year investments into 
digital infrastructure and home insulation. 

 
3.2.4 Technical Services - over £1 million of pressures arising from potential 

shortfalls in car parking income and the inflationary increase in the 
streetscene contract. 

 
3.3 Decisions taken by Cabinet which have an impact upon the financial position:- 
 
3.3.1 Cabinet on 18 March 2010 agreed to fund the inflationary increase in the 

National Minimum Fostering Allowances of £90,000 in 2010/11 from balances. 
 
3.3.2 Cabinet on 24 June 2010 considered a report on the 2009/10 revenue out-

turn which highlighted the addition of £3 million to the balances at 31 March 
2010 that comprised a net underspend in the year of £0.3 million and £2.7 
million of ‘one-off’ sums from the Insurance Fund (£2.5 million) and VAT 
recovery (£0.2 million). 

 
3.3.3 Cabinet on 24 June 2010 also considered the implications for the Council of 

the Government announcement on 10 June 2010 on the ‘Reductions in 
Grants to Local Government’ which reduces the funding for local authorities in 
2010/11. The loss of the 'one-off' LABGI/LAA (Local Authority Business 
Growth Incentive / Local Area Agreement) grants of £1.6 million has to be met 
from balances. The loss of £3.9 million of Area Based Grant was further 
considered by Cabinet on 22 July 2010 when ‘uncommitted’ resources were 
identified across departments to offset this loss of grant. This decision was 
subsequently ‘called-in’ for scrutiny by this Committee and on 26 August 2010 
a recommendation endorsing the decision was referred to Cabinet. 

 
4. FINANCIAL AND STAFFING IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 As at 31 July 2010 the decisions taken by Cabinet and the overspend in 

Children & Young People if realised, would result in a balance at 31 March 
2011 of £6 million. All Directors continues to look at actions to address any 
potential overspends within their departmental budgets. 

 

Details £million £million 

Projected General Fund balance at 31 March 2011 
when setting the budget for 2010/11 

 6.5 

Cabinet decisions   

18 March – Foster care allowances -0.1  

24 June – Revenue out-turn 2009/10 resulted in 
increase in balance at 31 march 2010 

+3.0  

24 June – Reductions in grants to Local Authorities 
2010/11 comprising ‘one-off’ grants of £1.6 million and 
Area Based Grant of £3.9 million 

-5.5  

Page 30



22 July – Area Based Grant loss being met by a  
reduction in departmental budgets 

+3.9 +1.3 

Projected variances / potential overspends   

Overspend 
        Children & Young People 

  
-1.8 

General Fund balance at 31 March 2011 based upon 
the projections at 31 July 2010 

  
6.0 

 
4.2 There are no staffing implications arising directly from this report. 
 
5. EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
6. HUMAN RIGHTS IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
7. LOCAL AGENDA 21 IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
8. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
9. PLANNING IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
10. LOCAL MEMBER SUPPORT IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 There are no particular implications for any Members or wards arising out of 

this report. 
 
11. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
11.1 None were used in the preparation of this report. 
 
12. RECOMMENDATION 
 
12.1 That the contents of the financial monitoring statement be noted. 
 
 
  IAN COLEMAN 
  DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 
 
 
FNCE/161/10 

Page 31



 
WIRRAL COUNCIL   FINANCIAL MONITORING STATEMENT 2010/11  POSITION AS AT 31 JULY 2010 
 
 ORIGINAL BUDGET MONITORING COMMENTS (INCLUDING Red/Amber/Green RATING) 

Department Policy 
Option 

Saving 
Target 

Agreed 
Budget 

Changes 
Agreed 

Changes 
Not agreed 

Forecast Rate Comments 

Expenditure £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000   

Adult Social Services 3,600 2,967 85,897 -50 - 85,847 A Pressures of £3 million remain within community care due to 
increasing demand, achieving income targets and transport costs. 
Change agreed is contribution to the reduction in Area Based Grant 
(ABG) (22 July). 

Children & Young People 100 280 78,406 -1,461 +1,860 78,805 A Residential care (£1.4m), foster care (£0.6m) costs.  Change agreed 
is contribution to the reduction in ABG (22 July). 

Corporate Services 345 - 6,008 -200 - 5,808 G No issues identified. Change agreed is contribution to the reduction in 
ABG (22 July). 

Finance 505 1,410 26,096 - - 26,096 G Housing Benefit largest budget and demand continues to increase.  

Law, HR and Asset Mgt 66 - 8,384 -2 - 8,382 G No issues identified. Change agreed is contribution to the reduction in 
ABG (22 July). 

Regeneration 4,166 - 60,837 -2,058 - 58,779 G Income targets remain most significant challenge. Major options are 
year 1 (of 4) for digital infrastructure and for home insulation. Change 
agreed is contribution to the reduction in ABG (22 July). 

Technical Services 1,033 640 43,504 -66 - 43,438 G Income, particularly car parking, closely monitored. Pressures also 
include meeting the Streetscene contract inflation. Change agreed is 
contribution to the reduction in ABG (22 July). 

Merseytravel - - 27,344 - - 27,344 G Fixed amount - no change. 

Local Pay Review - - 1,130 - - 1,130 G Available to meet implementation of the Review. 

Contribution from Balances - - (4,223) - - (4,223) G Before changes agreed by Cabinet. 

LABGI / LAA grants - - (1,600) +1,600 - 0 R Govt announced in June that grants not now being allocated. 

Budget Requirement 9,815 5,297 331,783 -2,237 +1,860 331,406   

         

Income         

Revenue Support Grant - - 20,016 - - 20,016 G Fixed amount - no change 

Area Based Grant - - 42,725 -3,927 - 38,798 A Govt announced reduced allocation. Note: Care at Home to be 
deleted. 

National Non Domestic Rate - - 137,844 - - 137,844 G Fixed amount - no change 

Council Tax - - 131,198 - - 131,198 G Fixed amount - no change 

Total Income   331,783 -3,927 - 327,856   

         

Statement of Balances         

As at 1 April - - 10,723 - - 10,723  Opening balance – forecast for 1 April 2011 is £6.5 million. 

Contributions from Balances - - (4,223) - - (4,223)  Before changes agreed by Cabinet. 

Contributions to Reserves - - - - - -  No changes approved by Cabinet. 

Cabinet decisions - - - -1,600 - (1,600)   Reduction in grants -£1.6m (24 Jun) LABGI/LAA loss being met from 
balances. 

Changes – Agreed Cabinet - - - +2,910 - +2,910  Fostering +£90k (18 Mar), 2009/10 Accounts +£3m (24 Jun). 

Changes – Not Agreed - - - - -1,860 -1,860  Based on the departmental projections – not approved. 

BALANCES   6,500 +1,310 -1,860 5,950  Projected balance at start / end of year 

 

P
a

g
e
 3

2



WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 

COUNCIL EXCELLENCE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - 15th SEPTEMBER 2010 
 

FIRST QUARTER PERFORMANCE EXCEPTION REPORT 2010/2011 
__________________________________________________________________________ 
 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

1.1 Members have requested that performance by exception is reported to the Council 
Excellence Overview & Scrutiny Committee.  A presentation is prepared for Cabinet on 
performance and financial matters two weeks after the end of each performance quarter, 
with a more detailed report to the next available Cabinet meeting.  Relevant performance 
and financial issues are also reported to the relevant overview and scrutiny committee on 
a quarterly basis. 

 

1.2 The charts below show that overall performance at quarter one is good, with 71% (41) of 
the performance indicators rated as green or over-performing and 85% (83) of the 
projects rated as green.   

 

On target summary - Performance 

Indicators

Amber, 3, 

5%
Green/Over 

performing, 

41, 71%

Red, 14, 

24%

On target summary - Projects

Amber, 14, 

14%

Red, 1, 1%

Green, 83, 

85%

 
 

1.3 However, a number of performance issues have been highlighted at quarter 1 and these 
are detailed in Section 2, as requested by the Committee. 

 

2. PERFORMANCE ISSUES 
 

2.1 The tables below show performance indicators and projects which are not performing as 
planned at the quarter one stage.  Also included is the year end forecast position and 
PWC comparative information where available.   Future reports will build on the picture 
and provide trend and comparative information where appropriate, such as JSA 
claimants. 

 

To create more jobs, achieve a prosperous economy and regenerate Wirral 
 

Performance against key Economic National Indicators (listed below) placed Wirral mainly in 
the lowest quartile against other authorities (All England and METS) based on performance 
data for 2009, which is the most up-to-date performance information available. Local measures 
are to be developed to enable more timely performance reporting.   

Ø NI 151 - Overall Employment rate (working age) (WNF) 

Agenda Item 5

Page 33



Ø NI 152 - Working age people on out of work benefits 

Ø NI 153 - Working age people claiming out of work benefits in the worst performing 
neighbourhoods (WNF) 

Ø NI 171 - New business registration rate 

 

To create a clean, pleasant, safe and sustainable environment 
 
 

Local 4272 - Percentage of under-age sales of alcohol during test purchase exercises 
 
 

2009/10 
Year End 

actual 

2010/11 
Quarter 1 

Target 

2010/11 
Quarter 1 

Actual 

Direction of 
Travel 

2010/11 
Actual On 

Target 

2010/11 
Yr End 
Target 

2010/11 
Yr End 

Forecast 

2010/11 
Forecast 
On Target 

1.63% 
(Lower is 
Better)  

5%  
20% 
(A)   Red 

5% 
(Lower is 

Better) 
5%  Green 

Context: 
In an evening exercise, if no sales are made, in excess of 15 off licences can be tested. However once a sale is 
made officers are required to gather evidence for legal action and this can halve the numbers of tests carried 
out, thus increasing the apparent percentage failure rate. 

Corrective Action: 
The current rate of 20% sales of alcohol is the result of targeting the less compliant traders, based on police 
intelligence. As more traders are subject to fixed penalty notices and subject to/warned about licence review it is 
envisaged the rate will drop. 

 
 

The following projects have been assessed as amber (some non-critical milestones have been 
missed or there is a danger of non-critical slippage)  
 
 

Portfolio Key project Status Corrective Action  

Housing and 
Community 
Safety 

Housing Market 
Renewal Initiative New 
Build Programme 
 

Amber 

Legal problems related to lease of land for electricity sub 
station on Sevenoaks development Rock Ferry. Council 
Solicitor has expedited documentation for Lovell's (private 
developer partner) solicitor.  

Culture, 
Tourism and 
Leisure 

Parks and Countryside 
Procurement Exercise 
(Pacspe) 

Amber 
Cabinet Decision has been called-in and will now be 
reviewed in accordance with Standing Orders. 

 

Page 34



Improve health and wellbeing for all, ensuring people who require support 
are full participants in main stream society 
 

NI 120a – All-age all cause mortality rate (Female) 
 

2009/10 
Year End 

actual 

2010/11 
Quarter 1 

Target 

2010/11 
Quarter 1 

Actual 

Direction of 
Travel 

2010/11 
Actual On 

Target 

2010/11 
Yr End 
Target 

2010/11 
Yr End 

Forecast 

2010/11 
Forecast 
On Target 

517.03 
(Lower is 
Better)  

488  
524 
(E)   Amber 

488 
(Lower is 

Better) 
524  Green 

Context: 

All Age All Cause Mortality (AAACM) for Wirral continues to be higher than England with males significantly 
higher. 

The main contributory factors remain cancers, digestive disorders from alcohol misuse and coronary heart 
disease (CHD). However early deaths from digestive disorders for females in Wirral is now lower than the 
England average suggesting that programmes in place to reduce early deaths from alcohol misuse are 
beginning to have an impact. Metrics used to measure progress on CHD also suggest programmes for CHD are 
also beginning to have an impact. 

Corrective Action:  

· Health Inequalities Action Plan is driving increased action and effective partnership working to reduce 
mortality. 

· Continuing to work to reduce smoking prevalence and for the end of year 2009/10 the Stop Smoking 
Service achieved an additional 512 smoking quitters in Wirral. Phase 2 of the “Your Reason Your Way” 
Stop Smoking Campaign is about to commence following an extremely successful phase 1. 

· Health Action Area (HAA) team targeting more effectively and working in partnership with GP practices in 
Health Action Area. Continuing to expand activities available to help and support people to make lifestyle 
changes. 

· Vascular risk screenings available in the community and GP practices. Following a “Get Your Health 
Check” campaign 2122 screenings for vascular risk have been taken up in the community, 1028 of which 
were men. 39% of screenings were taken up by people living in the 20% most deprived areas of Wirral. 

· Condition Management Programme and Wirral Working for Health continue to work with those on 
Incapacity Benefit and other working age related benefits and those on long term sickness absence to 
support people back into work, education, training or volunteering. 

· Front-line staff training to deliver Brief Interventions on smoking, alcohol, healthy weight, mental health and 
physical activity continue to be delivered. A training plan is being developed to ensure continuation of the 
programme. 

 

Page 35



NI 121 - Mortality rate from all circulatory diseases at ages under 75 
 

2009/10 
Year End 

actual 

2010/11 
Quarter 1 

Target 

2010/11 
Quarter 1 

Actual 

Direction of 
Travel 

2010/11 
Actual On 

Target 

2010/11 
Yr End 
Target 

2010/11 
Yr End 

Forecast 

2010/11 
Forecast 
On Target 

73.35 
(Lower is 
Better)  

66.52 
77.57 
(E)   Red  

 66.52 
(Lower is 
Better)  

77.57  Red  

Context: 
Circulatory disease is one of the main causes of premature death (under 75 years of age) in England, 
accounting for just over a quarter of all such deaths in this age group. Reducing mortality rates will therefore 
make a significant contribution to increasing life expectancy. This is a Department of Health PSA Target: 
Substantially reduce mortality rates by 2010 from heart disease and stroke and related diseases by at least 40% 
in people under 75, with at least a 40% reduction in the inequalities gap between the fifth of areas with the worst 
health and deprivation indicators and the population as a whole. 
Directly Standardised Rates per 100,000 population aged under 75. 
Single year rates are used to enable timely reporting. The rate for persons is monitored, i.e. males and females 
combined. (This is different from NI120a & b - (All-age all cause mortality rate - females (120a) and males 
(120b)) 

Corrective Action:  
Primary Prevention  
Wirral-wide CVD Health Check Programme has delivered 41,938 health checks to date for 40-74 year olds 
across Wirral.  
Establishment of CVD risk registers in all GP practices.  

All patients with a CVD risk of over 15% have an annual review where appropriate treatment and lifestyle advice 
is initiated.  

A range of services are available in the community to support lifestyle and behaviour change to reduce the risk 
of CVD. e.g. Stop Smoking Service, Lifestyle & Weight Management Service, MEND (Mind, Exercise, Nutrition, 
Do IT- to help overweight children), Alcohol Service. Health Area Action teams work in areas with high levels of 
deprivation to target population groups with the highest risk of ill health. They deliver evidence based public 
health interventions and work closely with Primary Care teams.  

Secondary Prevention  

Cardiac Rehabilitation Programme in place for people who have a diagnosed cardiac condition.  

Intermediate Cardiac Service based in the community offers a local, accessible service for diagnosis and 
management of cardiac conditions, and works closely with secondary care cardiology.  

Recommendations from a recent Review of Wirral Cardiac Services supported the repatriation of elective PCI 
and complex pacing to Wirral, in order to achieve national target rates. This will provide a local service for the 
Wirral population. The aim is to commence these services in Wirral in 2011/12. A Primary PCI service 
commenced for Wirral patients on 1 June 2010.  

Wirral Stroke Development plan implemented: has improved access to diagnostics and thrombolysis.  
Rapid Access TIA clinic commenced.  

Stroke Early Supported Discharge Team in place to offer intensive therapy in patients home’s or place of care.  

Stroke Support Services in place following discharge to offer support and information to stroke survivors and 
their carers.   

 

Page 36



NI 126 - Early Access for Women to Maternity Services 
 

2009/10 
Year End 

actual 

2010/11 
Quarter 1 

Target 

2010/11 
Quarter 1 

Actual 

Direction of 
Travel 

2010/11 
Actual On 

Target 

2010/11 
Yr End 
Target 

2010/11 
Yr End 

Forecast 

2010/11 
Forecast 
On Target 

82%  95% 
90% 
(E)  Amber 

95%  
(Higher is 

better) 
95% Green 

Context: 
All women should access maternity services for a full health and social care assessment of needs, risks and 
choices by 12 completed weeks of their pregnancy to give them the full benefit of personalised maternity care 
and improve outcomes and experience for mother and baby. Reducing the percentage of women who access 
maternity services late through targeted outreach work for vulnerable and socially excluded groups will provide 
a focus on reducing the health inequalities these groups face whilst also guaranteeing choice to all pregnant 
women. 
Completion of the assessment empowers women, supporting them in making well informed decisions about 
their care throughout pregnancy, birth and postnatally.  The national choice guarantees: 

· choice of how to access maternity care; 

· choice of type of antenatal care; 

· choice of place of birth; 

· choice of place of postnatal care. 
The percentage of women who have seen a midwife or a maternity healthcare professional, for health and 
social care assessment of needs, risks and choices by 12 completed weeks of pregnancy 
This is a new data collection.  
Pregnancy –  Pregnancy is defined as all maternities that extend past the first trimester, this would include still 
births and miscarriages and terminations after 12 weeks where known. It excludes pregnancies where care is 
provided outside an NHS setting or that have been terminated before 12 weeks. 
Midwife – To qualify as a midwife in this definition the person must hold current registration with the nursing and 
midwifery council and being in active employment as a midwife with the NHS. 
Maternity healthcare professional – This is a description which covers obstetricians and general practitioners 
with current registration with the General Medical Council and working for the NHS providing maternity services. 
12 completed weeks – 12 completed weeks relates to the measured gestation of the pregnancy calculated 
following ultrasound assessment.  This may be retrospective if the dates have not been confirmed until after 12 
weeks.  
Health and Social Care assessment of needs, risks and choices – This must include the use of the National 
Institute of Clinical Excellence (NICE) antenatal care guidance assessment tool. 
Seen – This means completion of a full assessment, this may occur over multiple sessions but will be measured 
by the completion of the final session not the initiation of the first. 

Corrective Action 
A comprehensive action plan has been put in place to deliver this plan (e.g. extensive communications to GP's 
Children Centre’s, Chemists and local trusts).  Also, we are in the process of examining the data for this metric 
based on revised definitional guidance from the Strategic Health Authority (SHA).  It is anticipated that this will 
increase performance levels. 

 

Page 37



NI 135 - Carers receiving needs assessment or review and a specific carer’s service, or 
advice and information 
 
 

2009/10 
Year End 

actual 

2009/10 
Year End 

PWC – 
All 

England 

2009/10 
Year End 

PWC – 
All Mets 

2010/11 
Quarter 1 

Target 

2010/11 
Quarter 1 

Actual 

Direction 
of Travel 

2010/11 
Actual 

On 
Target 

2010/11 
Yr End 
Target 

2010/11 
Yr End 

Forecast 

2010/11 
Forecast 

On 
Target 

26.78%  
2nd  

(35 out of 
79) 

3rd 
(16 out of 

26) 
22% 

20.80% 
(A)   Amber 

25%  
(Higher is 

better) 
25%  Green 

Context:  
This indicator measures the number of carers receiving an assessment or review as a percentage of the total 
number of people receiving support. 

Corrective Action: 
This indicator would have been flagged as green if 3 more carers were identified during quarter 1. Given the 
latent delays in recording, this small number of additional carers will have received support during the quarter. 
Operational teams are being reminded to always consider the role of carers during reviews and assessments. 

 
 
NI 145 - Adults with learning disabilities in settled accommodation 
 

2009/10 
Year End 

actual 

2009/10 
Year End 

PWC – 
All 

England 

2009/10 
Year End 

PWC – 
All Mets 

2010/11 
Quarter 
1 Target 

2010/11 
Quarter 1 

Actual 

Direction 
of Travel 

2010/11 
Actual 

On 
Target 

2010/11 
Yr End 
Target 

2010/11 
Yr End 

Forecast 

2010/11 
Forecast 
On Target 

52.44% 
4th  

(59 out of 
76) 

4th  
(22 out of 

27) 
13%  

5.12% 
(A)   Red  

53%  
(Higher is 

better) 
53%  Green  

Context:  
This indicator measures the number of people with a learning disability in settled accommodation at the time of 
their assessment or latest review. 

Corrective Action: 
Adults with LD in settled accommodation can only be counted against this indicator if they have had a completed 
review in the current year.  

There are delays in reviewing support packages in the LD Team due to the impact of vacancies and 
implementing new business processes as part of Phase 2 of the Personal Budgets pilot which is affecting the 
capacity of the Reviewing Teams.  

Clear targets have been agreed with the Team and actions implemented to bring performance back on track by 
the 2nd quarter. This includes focusing reviews on people who use in-house day services who are in the main in 
settled accommodation.  
The accountable officer will monitor progress on a weekly basis” and escalate issues as they arise. 

 

Page 38



NI 146 - Adults with learning disabilities in employment 
 

2009/10 
Year End 

actual 

2009/10 
Year End 

PWC – 
All 

England 

2009/10 
Year End 

PWC – 
All Mets 

2010/11 
Quarter 1 

Target 

2010/11 
Quarter 1 

Actual 

Direction 
of Travel 

2010/11 
Actual 

On 
Target 

2010/11 
Yr End 
Target 

2010/11 
Yr End 

Forecast 

2010/11 
Forecast 

On 
Target 

4.99% 
2nd  

(39 out of 
77) 

2nd  
(12 out of 

26) 
2.25%  

0.52% 
(A)   Red  

9%  
(Higher 

is 
better) 

9%  Green  

Context:  
This indicator measures the number of people with a learning disability who are in employment at the time of 
their assessment or latest review. 

Corrective Action: 
Adults with LD in employment can only be counted against this indicator if they have had a completed review in 
the current year.  

There are delays in reviewing support packages in the LD Team due to the impact of vacancies and 
implementing new business processes as part of Phase 2 of the Personal Budgets pilot which is affecting the 
capacity of the Reviewing Team. Clear targets have been agreed with the Team and actions implemented to 
bring performance back on track by the 2nd quarter.  

Steps are being taken to find work opportunities across the Council and with providers via the new contracts 
framework. However the current economic climate may hamper progress.  
The accountable officer will monitor progress on a weekly basis and escalate issues as they arise.  

 
Local 8432 - Establish cohort of clients aged 16-35 with two or more episodes of self 
harm in the last 12 months who subsequently become engaged in meaningful social 
activities. 
 

2009/10 
Year End 

actual 

2010/11 
Quarter 1 

Target 

2010/11 
Quarter 1 

Actual 

Direction of 
Travel 

2010/11 
Actual On 

Target 

2010/11 
Yr End 
Target 

2010/11 
Yr End 

Forecast 

2010/11 
Forecast On 

Target 

2 2 
0 

(A)  Red 
2 

(Higher is 
better) 

2 Green 

Context:  
This indicator measures the cohort of clients aged 16-35 with two or more episodes of self harm in the last 
twelve months who subsequently become engaged in meaningful social activities. This takes as its baseline an 
audit undertaken by the Wirral NHS in July 2008. The Wirral NHS will then determine and report the number of 
this cohort who have engaged in meaningful social activities. 

Corrective Action: 
Limited sign up from agencies for data sharing so agreed that data would be collected via Liaison Psychiatry. 
Arranged with Liaison Psych for follow-up data. For the purposes of the target ‘social inclusion’ would be 
interpreted as volunteering or referral and take up of other appropriate services/programmes e.g. Wirral 
Working for Health. Worked out initial cost savings for repeat attendees that are now in contact with Advocacy 
in Wirral and not presently repeating.  

 

Page 39



Local 8436 - To reduce the number of people with dementia admitted to residential and 
nursing care 5% reduction on 2007/8 admittances 
 

2009/10 
Year End 

actual 

2010/11 
Quarter 1 

Target 

2010/11 
Quarter 1 

Actual 

Direction of 
Travel 

2010/11 
Actual On 

Target 

2010/11 
Yr End 
Target 

2010/11 
Yr End 

Forecast 

2010/11 
Forecast 
On Target 

146 
(Lower is 

Better) 
39 

51 
(A)  Red 

154 
(Lower is 

Better) 
154 Green 

Context:  
This indicator measures the effectiveness of community support for people with dementia. 

Corrective Action: 
12 more placements have been made than the 1st Quarter target. A thorough assessment and review process 
has validated these placements were unavoidable and the only way the Council could meet its statutory duty 
to meet their assessed need. As the DASS Transformation Programme continues to be rolled out in 2010 (in 
particular Assistive Technology, Self Directed Support and Market Management) it is anticipated more people 
with dementia will be supported in their own homes in the second half of the year. All placements will be 
subject to a thorough evaluation by the accountable officer and performance will continue to be monitored on a 
weekly basis.  

 
 
Local 8857 - An increase in the number of new individuals who have received a service 
via Wirral Assistive Technology (including telecare and telemedicine) 
 

2009/10 
Year End 

actual 

2010/11 
Quarter 1 

Target 

2010/11 
Quarter 1 

Actual 

Direction of 
Travel 

2010/11 
Actual On 

Target 

2010/11 
Yr End 
Target 

2010/11 
Yr End 

Forecast 

2010/11 
Forecast 
On Target 

855 450 
300 
(A)  Red 

3000 
(Higher is 

better) 
900 Red 

Context: 

The outturn is lower than expected. Compared to the same period in 2009/10 there has been an increase of 
100 installs over the quarter. Following an announcement of investment in Assistive Technology over the next 
3 years, the service is going through a period of development and expansion. 

Referrals for the period are 373 – however time is required for Seniorlink Eldercare (SLE) to assess/ install 
these, and therefore may not be captured within the quarterly outturn. 

The Assistive Technology Team and SLE have had new marketing leaflets produced and have set up a 
marketing programme of visiting team meetings across Health and Social Care. Teams are being made aware 
of the developments and direct access to specialist assessments by SLE. This began mid May and continues 
into July. SLE report an increase in referral rate since the start of this. 

Corrective Action: 
Continue with service developments and programme of visiting teams and marketing of service. The Assistive 
Technology (AT) Team are currently meeting re embedding AT in the HARTS (Home Assessment Reablement 
Team) service and the Self Directed Assessment (SDA) process within the Birkenhead Personal Budgets 
Phase 2 project.  
An AT champion has been identified with the remit of promoting AT within Adults with Learning Disabilities. 
Further development work to be carried out in the next quarter: Integration of AT into hospital discharges via 
the hospital discharge team and prevention of admission via the Primary Care Assessment Unit (PCAU). 
Referral rates continue to be monitored.  

 
Local 8866 - Percentage of Adult Safeguarding alerts dealt with in 24 hours 
 

Page 40



2009/10 Performance  
2010/11 

Quarter 1 
Target 

2010/11 
Quarter 1 

Actual 

2010/11 
Actual On 

Target 

2010/11 
Yr End 
Target 

2010/11 
Yr End 

Forecast 

2010/11 
Forecast 
On Target 

No data available for 
2009/10 as process only 
put in place in April 2010 
(Direction of travel = N/A)   

100% 
50.52% 

(A) 
Red 100% 90% Red 

Context:  
This indicator measures the effectiveness of the amended Adult Safeguarding Process. 

Corrective Action: 
The amended Adult Safeguarding process has been in place for almost 3 months and changes in the process 
have had some impact on the turnaround time of alerts. However the care management system demands a 
complete set of data to be entered into the alert record and some gaps in the recorded information is 
undermining our ability to fully reflect operational performance against this target.   

 

 
Local 8867 - Percentage of Adult Safeguarding incidents closed in 28 days 
 

2009/10 Performance 
2010/11 

Quarter 1 
Target 

2010/11 
Quarter 1 

Actual 

2010/11 
Actual On 

Target 

2010/11 
Yr End 
Target 

2010/11 
Yr End 

Forecast 

2010/11 
Forecast 
On Target 

No data available for 
2009/10 as process only 
put in place in April 2010 
(Direction of travel = N/A)   

100% 54.26% Red 
100% 

(Higher is 
better) 

95% Green 

Context:  
This indicator measures the effectiveness of the amended Adult Safeguarding process. 

Corrective Action: 
The amended Adult Safeguarding process has been in place for almost 3 months and changes in the process 
have shortened the time it takes to resolve safeguarding incidents. However the care management system 
demands a complete set of data to be entered into the incident record and some gaps in the recorded 
information is undermining our ability to fully reflect operational performance against this target.   

 
 
The following projects have been assessed as amber (some non-critical milestones have been 
missed or there is a danger of non-critical slippage)  
 

Portfolio Key project Status Corrective Action  

Social Care & 
Inclusion 

Health Inequalities Action 
Plan 

Amber 

The Health Inequalities Annual report (09/10) will 
go to Cabinet in July. The Quarter 1 (10/11) 
monitoring report will be complete by the end of 
July. 

Social Care & 
Inclusion 

Shaping the future of Care 
Services (Implementation 
of strategic decision 
regarding the future of in 
house provided services) 

Amber 
 

Further work is underway to produce individual 
action plans for each service area, with 
responsibilities and deadlines. 

Social Care & 
Inclusion 

Access to Services  
(Transformation of access 
in to services 24/7) 

Amber 
Full options appraisal to be considered by EDT 
Board in July 2010 

Page 41



Portfolio Key project Status Corrective Action  

Social Care & 
Inclusion 

Improving Safeguarding 
arrangements (Ensuring 
people in Wirral who are 
vulnerable are safe) 

Amber 

Responsibility for the implementation of tasks 
transferred to Head of Branch Integrated 
Communities & Wellbeing, as of 1 June. 
Implementation is to be monitored. 

Social Care & 
Inclusion 

Implementing Assistive 
Technology Invest to Save 
Programme 

Amber 

Identified as Amber as the evaluation model has 
yet to be agreed by DASS. Work is underway to 
identify an evaluation model. CSED are involved 
in assisting with DASS with this process.  

Social Care & 
Inclusion 

Improving support for 
carers (Implementing the 
Carers Commissioning 
Strategy) 

Amber 
Action plan refreshed after the model of 
Comprehensive Carer support (DH Sept 09) and 
improved performance monitored. 

Social Care & 
Inclusion 

Reduce Hospital 
admissions Project 
(Project 13) 

Amber PID for the project is to be developed. 

Social Care & 
Inclusion 

Community  Development 
Project (Project 14) 

Amber PID for the project is to be developed. 

Social Care & 
Inclusion 

Mental Health 
Commissioning Strategy 

Amber 
There is to be a New Horizons consultation event 
in July 09 to confirm the direction of the 
development. 

Housing and 
Community 
Safety & Social 
Care and 
Inclusion 

Implement Alcohol 
Strategy  

Amber 

Alcohol Harm Reduction Strategy 2007-2010 
updated for 2010-2011 and circulated amongst 
key stakeholders for comment. A New national 
alcohol strategy is due mid August and any local 
strategy will need to be aligned. 

Housing and 
Community 
Safety 

Underage sales 
prevention programme 

Amber 

The current rate of 20% sales of alcohol is the 
result of targeting the less compliant traders. It is 
envisaged that more education visits to traders 
will reduce the offending rate. 

 

Page 42



To help children and young people achieve their full potential 
 
NI 53 - Prevalence of breast feeding at 6-8 weeks from birth 
 

2009/10 
Year End 

actual 

2010/11 
Quarter 1 

Target 

2010/11 
Quarter 1 

Actual 

Direction of 
Travel 

2010/11 
Actual On 

Target 

2010/11 
Yr End 
Target 

2010/11 
Yr End 

Forecast 

2010/11 
Forecast 
On Target 

28% 35.1%  
27.4% 

(E)   Red  
35.1%  

(Higher is 
better) 

28.0%  Red  

Context: 
None provided. 

Corrective Action: 
1. Launch of breastfeeding social marketing ‘breast milk it’s amazing’ campaign in June to staff and media - 
materials and banners distributed and website launched.  
2. Production of breastfeeding training schedule – ongoing training delivered to health visitors, midwives and 
children centre staff.  
3. Submission of stage 1 UNICEF Baby Friendly Initiative accreditation for the community.  
4. Peer support programme launch in April and all volunteers now supporting new mums and meeting them on 
the hospital wards.  
5. Draft breastfeeding care pathway drawn up by multidisciplinary working group.  
6. The Infant Feeding Specialist at the Hospital now trained to deliver UNICEF breastfeeding training. 

 
NI 60 - % of core assessments for children's social care that were carried out within 35 
working days of their commencement 
 

2009/10 
Year End 

actual 

2009/10 
Year End 
PWC – All 
England 

2009/10 
Year End 

PWC – 
All Mets 

2010/11 
Quarter 1 

Target 

2010/11 
Quarter 1 

Actual 

Direction 
of Travel 

2010/11 
Actual 

On 
Target 

2010/11 
Yr End 
Target 

2010/11 
Yr End 

Forecast 

2010/11 
Forecast 
On Target 

75.9% 
2nd  

(29 out of 
74) 

2nd 
(12 out of 

24) 
80%  

58.3% 
(P)   Red  

80%  
(Higher 

is 
better) 

80%  Green  

Context:  
None provided. 

Corrective Action: 
An issue relating to the recording of assessments has been identified. Good practice guidance notes have been 
produced and circulated to the area teams and Data Officers are working with staff to improve performance in 
this indicator. 

 

Page 43



NI 61 - Timeliness of placements of looked after children for adoption following an 
agency decision that the child should be placed for adoption 
 

2009/10 
Year End 

actual 

2009/10 
Year End 

PWC – 
All 

England 

2009/10 
Year End 

PWC – 
All Mets 

2010/11 
Quarter 1 

Target 

2010/11 
Quarter 1 

Actual 

Direction 
of Travel 

2010/11 
Actual 

On 
Target 

2010/11 
Yr End 
Target 

2010/11 
Yr End 

Forecast 

2010/11 
Forecast 
On Target 

87.5% 
1st  

(18 out of 
80) 

1st  
(5 out of 

27) 
80%  

60.0% 
(P)   Red  

80%  
(Higher 

is 
better) 

80%  Green  

Context:  
Small numbers affect this indicator. Three out of the five children adopted to date have been adopted within 12 
months of the decision that they should be placed for adoption. The 2 that were not adopted in the required time 
scale are siblings. It is more difficult to arrange for adoption where there are 2 or more siblings. 

Corrective Action: 
Continuous monthly monitoring of this indicator. 

 

 
NI 63 - Stability of placements of looked after children: length of placements 
 

2009/10 
Year End 

actual 

2009/10 
Year End 

PWC – 
All 

England 

2009/10 
Year End 

PWC – 
All Mets 

2010/11 
Quarter 1 

Target 

2010/11 
Quarter 1 

Actual 

Direction 
of Travel 

2010/11 
Actual 

On 
Target 

2010/11 
Yr End 
Target 

2010/11 
Yr End 

Forecast 

2010/11 
Forecast 
On Target 

63.8% 
4th  

(65 out of 
77) 

4th  
(21 out of 

25) 
72%  

62.2% 
(P)   Red  

72%  
(Higher 

is 
better) 

66%  Amber  

Context:  
There have been a high number of children placed with their parents. A number of these placements have 
ended resulting in a move for the children back into Local Authority foster care placements. 

Corrective Action: 
Continuous activity to ensure placement stability of looked after children where appropriate. Statutory reviews of 
children in care placements are carried out at prescribed intervals. This indicator is monitored on a monthly 
basis. 

 

Page 44



NI 117 - 16 to 18 year olds who are not in education, employment or training (NEET) 
 
 
 

2009/10 
Year End 

actual 

2009/10 
Year End 

PWC – 
All 

England 

2009/10 
Year End 

PWC – 
All Mets 

2010/11 
Quarter 1 

Target 

2010/11 
Quarter 1 

Actual 

Direction 
of Travel 

2010/11 
Actual 

On 
Target 

2010/11 
Yr End 
Target 

2010/11 
Yr End 

Forecast 

2010/11 
Forecast 
On Target 

8.9% 
4th 

(72 out of 
85) 

3rd 
(20 out of 

27) 
6.9% 

8.2% 
(P)   Red  

6.9%  
(Higher 

is 
better) 

6.9%  Green  

Context: 
Performance has improved from 8.9% reported at 2009/10 year end. 

Corrective Action: 
A range of initiatives through the Tiger Group are on going. (A ‘NEET TIGER Team’ has been established as a 

task and finish group with key partnership representatives to ensure targeted activity is aligned across the 
Borough.) Connexions and Jobcentre Plus advisers are working together to support 18 year olds into an 
opportunity that best meets their needs.   

 
 
 

The following projects have been assessed as amber (some non-critical milestones have been 
missed or there is a danger of non-critical slippage)  
 
 
 

Portfolio Key project Status Corrective Action  

Children’s 
Services 
and Lifelong 
Learning 

All phases: raise standards in schools 
and settings by continuing to improve 
the quality of leadership and 
management, curriculum, assessment 
and learning, thereby ensuring none fall 
into an OFSTED category. 

Amber 

Four primary schools are in OFSTED 
category.  Statements of action are 
provided by the Local Authority and verified 
by OFSTED.  The Head of Branch, The 
Head Teacher and the Chair of Governors 
monitor the action plan on a half-termly 
basis. 

 

Page 45



Create an excellent Council 
 

The following project has been assessed as red (some non-critical milestones have been 
missed or there is a danger of non-critical slippage)  
 

Portfolio Key project Status Corrective Action  

Finance and 
Best Value 

To ensure that efficiencies are planned 
and deliver value for money:   Strategic 
change programme 
 

Red 

 

Cabinet resolved (24/06/2010) that a 
review of the strategic change programme 
was to be undertaken.  
 

Following this review, Cabinet further 
resolved (22/07/2010) that responsibility 
for the change programme is transferred 
to the Director of Technical Services.  
 

The Director of Technical Services has 
now: 
 

· Established the programme office 

· Issues instructions and guidance in 
terms of change process 

· Introduced new governance and terms 
of reference for the new Strategic 
Change Programme Board 

· Revised and implemented standards 
of project control 

· Developed and implemented change 
management plan to ensure effective 
delivery of the programme 

 
 
3.  RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1  Members are requested to: 
  

· Consider the information contained within the report and its usefulness in helping to 
identify how performance might be improved.  

 
4. Financial implications 
 
4.1 The financial implications arising from this report would be the cost of improving 

performance. 
 
5. Staffing implications 
 
5.1 There are no staffing implications arising directly from this report. 
 
6. Equal Opportunities implications / Equality impact assessment 
 
6.1 The implementation of the Council’s corporate plan and departmental plans should have 

positive equal opportunities impact. Equality Impact Assessments will be undertaken 
where relevant for related projects and activities.  

 
7. Health Impact Assessment 

Page 46



 
7.1 A Health Impact Assessment will be undertaken for all relevant projects and activities. 
 
8. Community Safety implications 
 
8.1 There are no specific community safety implications arising directly from this report. 
 
9. Local Agenda 21 
 
9.1 There are no local agenda 21 implications arising directly from this report. 
 
10. Planning implications 
 
10.1 There are no planning implications arising directly from this report. 
 
11. Anti-poverty implications 
 
11.1 There are no anti-poverty implications arising directly from this report. 
 
12. Social inclusion implications 
 
12.1 There are no social inclusion implications arising directly from this report. 
 
13. Local Member Support implications 
 
13.1 There are no local member support implications arising directly from this report. 
 
14. Background papers 
 
14.1 None 

 
  
This report was prepared by Bev McEneany who can be contacted on 0151 691 8164. 
 
 
 

Page 47



Page 48

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 

COUNCIL EXCELLENCE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
DATE: 31 AUGUST 2010 
 
REPORT OF THE DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE / DIRECTOR OF 
CORPORATE SERVICES 
 
REACHING EXCELLENT LEVEL OF THE EQUALITY FRAMEWORK FOR 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT (EFLG) - QUARTER ONE 2010/2011 CORPORATE 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING REPORT 
 
 
 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 Welcome to the first corporate performance monitoring report for 2010/2011 for 
 reaching the excellent level of the Equality Framework for Local Government. 
 
1.2 As an ‘achieving’ Council (formerly known as level 3), departments should be 
 embedding processes and systems that have been developed over the last two years, 
 for example equality impact assessments, online equality and diversity training, 
 flexible working arrangements, inclusive community engagement structures, etc. 
 
1.3 However, as the Council works towards achieving ‘excellent’ status by November 
 2011, departments need to be developing more innovative activities that other 
 organisations can learn from; activities that the Council can demonstrate have 
 encouraged efficiencies as well as improved the quality of life of residents.  
 
1.4 Therefore the format of reporting has changed to reflect a) the themes and 
 expectations of the Equality Framework, b) the format of departmental action plans, 
 and c) to present progress in a more informative and useful way. 
 
1.5 Within this report you will find examples of: 
 

• Following best practice (green milestones) 

• Innovation (green milestones) 

• Opportunities for evidence case studies (green milestones) 

• Areas for further improvement (red and amber milestones) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 49



 

 
2. Summary of Progress of Actions / Milestones (Green / Amber / Red) 

 

Action Plan Total 
Number of 
Projects 

 
Green 

 
Amber 

 
Red 

Not 
Applicable 

Adult Social Services 
Action Plan 

25 10 12 3 0 

Children & Young People 
Action Plan 

10 10 0 0 0 

Technical Services 
Action Plan 

38 36 2 0 0 

Finance Action Plan 52 47 2 0 3 

Corporate Services & 
Law, HR, Asset 
Management Action Plan 

80 52 24 2 2 

Community Cohesion 
Action Plan 

24 8 8 5 3 

Equality Watch Scheme 
2009- 2012 

44 34 10 0 0 

Quarter 1 Totals 273 187 58 10 8 

 
 
3. KNOWING OUR COMMUNITIES AND EQUALITY MAPPING (Theme 1) 
 
3.1 Examples of following best practice 

• Developed process for quality assuring equality impact assessments (Adult Social 
Services) 

• Implemented, with Council partners, the GIS mapping project for departmental data 
sets (Children and Young People) 

• Further developing and implementing the corporate Customer Profiling Policy 
(Finance) 

• Requesting the inclusion of postcode data in the new customer logging system. Target 
date to be launched September 2010 (Finance) 

• Established an equality and cohesion communications action plan (Corporate 
Services / Law, HR, Asset Management) 

 
3.2 Examples of innovation 

• Identifying those areas, during internal audits which are inadequate in terms of 
equality mapping and equitable access to services (Finance) 

 
3.3 Examples of opportunities for case studies 

• Considering the use of incentives to increase customer questionnaire returns 
(Finance) 

• Co-ordinating the implementation and analysis of regular customer services surveys 
and VCAW consultation programme (Finance) 

• Established a Council / LSP Knowledge & Intelligence Network (Corporate Services / 
Law, HR, Asset Management) 

• Completing a community cohesion mapping report for Wirral  (Corporate Services / 
Law, HR, Asset Management) 

Page 50



 

• Implementing a Community Asset Transfer scheme (Corporate Services / Law, HR, 
Asset Management) 

 
3.4 Areas for further improvement 

• Review why low levels of Black and Ethnic Minority individuals accessing mainstream 
services (Adult Social Services) 

• Develop process for monitoring ethnicity of service users accessing community based 
services (Adult Social Services) 

• Service areas to make use of available data, where possible and relevant, on 
community needs.  For example, the work conducted by NHS Wirral/Social 
Services/CYPD on ‘Joint Needs Assessment’ (Technical Services) 

• Identification on committee reports of Equality Impact Assessments seems to be 
inconsistently applied at present (Technical Services)  

• LSP wide shared knowledge / data hub (Corporate Services / Law, HR, Asset 
Management) 

 
 
 
4. LEADERSHIP, PARTNERSHIP AND COMMITMENT (Theme 2)  
 
4.1 Examples of following best practice 

• Establishing a working group to drive departmental action plan forward (Adult Social 
Services) 

• Equality impact assessment training being provided to all managers and relevant staff 
(Adult Social Services) 

• Meeting hosted to discuss regional integration of diversity within personalisation 
programme (Adult Social Services)  

• Quarterly updates to strategic leadership team on equality and diversity (Adult Social 
Services) 

• Equality objectives to be included in contracts put out to tender (Children and Young 
People) 

• Review of all existing promotional materials in Children’s Social Care in order to 
ensure that minority groups are fully represented (Children and Young People) 

• To work with Biffa, Colas and any other contractors to ensure compliance with equality 
objectives (Technical Services) 

• All members of the Senior Management Team and Operational Management Team 
receive agenda/minutes from the Departmental Equality Group (Technical Services) 

• The Council raised rainbow flags on International Day Against Homophobia (Lesbian, 
Gay and Bisexual Staff Forum) 

• Councillor Ian Lewis is now the equality champion for the Council administration 
(Elected Members) 

• The Director for Adult Social Services continues to Chair the Corporate Equality and 
Cohesion Group (Chief Officers) 

 
4.2 Examples of innovation 

• Establishing a Children in Care Council (Children and Young People) 

• Developing an LSP wide Wirral Equalities Charter in consultation with the third sector 
(Corporate Services / Law, HR, Asset Management) 

• Young people are invited to shadow the Chief Executive, who is champion for younger 
people, and the next person to do this will be Leah Cope who last year was one of 
Wirral's United Kingdom Youth Parliamentarians (Chief Officers) 

Page 51



 

• The Deputy Chief Executive, as champion for older people, continues to support the 
Older People’s Parliament and Executive Board (Chief Officers) 

 
4.3 Examples of opportunities for case studies 

• Highlight reports now presented to the Departmental Equality Group, including service 
user initiative and staff initiatives (Adult Social Services) 

• Procurement Strategy implementation - reviewing and monitoring processes to 
measure equality outcomes, i.e. following up what actually happens on the ground 
(Finance) 

 
4.4 Examples of areas for improvement 

• Contracts held by community based services to promote best practice in equality and 
diversity (Adult Social Services) 

• Develop awareness of the corporate code on bullying and harassment (Adult Social 
Services)   

• Council Excellence Overview and Scrutiny Committee to develop a robust committee 
process for integrating equality and cohesion into the scrutiny process (Corporate 
Services / Law, HR, Asset Management) 

• Further develop an equality and cohesion leadership framework for Chief Officers and 
Elected Members (Corporate Services / Law, HR, Asset Management) 

• Build a corporate, outcomes focussed evidence base for equality and cohesion 
(Corporate Services / Law, HR, Asset Management) 

• Establish Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) Working Group to refresh EIA template, 
monitor annual EIA schedule, monitor low, medium and high EIA actions, monitor 
Cabinet and Committee reports for EIA’s, ensure EIA’s are completed during service 
reviews, develop a consistent quality assurance system for EIA’s, and liaise with the 
Comprehensive Engagement Strategy Steering Group re. consultation arrangements 
for EIA’s (Corporate Services / Law, HR, Asset Management) 

• Further develop the Council’s Performance Improvement Management System to 
capture the narrowing of equality gaps (Corporate Services / Law, HR, Asset 
Management) 

 
 
 

 
5. COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND SATISFACTION (Theme 3) 
 
5.1 Examples of following best practice 

• Developing a feedback programme – ‘you said / we did’ to close the loop on findings 
from consultation activities (Finance) 

• Relaunching the IAMF hate crime reporting process to include refresher training for all 
customer services staff (Finance) 

• Further developing partnerships and processes in order to implement the 
Comprehensive Engagement Strategy (Corporate Services / Law, HR, Asset 
Management) 

• Completed five access audits to Council buildings (Corporate Services / Law, HR, 
Asset Management) 

• Equality Watch membership scheme nearing 400 members Corporate Services / Law, 
HR, Asset Management) 

• Developing a self-assessment process for access auditing Council buildings 
(Corporate Services / Law, HR, Asset Management) 

Page 52



 

• New equality and cohesion pages developed for the Council’s website (Corporate 
Services / Law, HR, Asset Management) 

• Developed an action plan for ‘English for people who speak other languages’ – ESOL 
(CYPD / Corporate Services / Law, HR, Asset Management) 

 
5.2 Examples of innovation 

• Highway Maintenance street light trial in New Brighton – replacing existing lanterns 
with new ‘white light’ ones to aid older people (Technical Services)  

• Assessing the feasibility of offering concessions for people with disabilities – 
particularly where there is a positive impact. For example, Vehicle Pavement 
Crossings which allow better access to a property (Technical Services) 

• Progressing digital signage concept in One Stop Shops as a tool to increase customer 
participation and engagement (Finance) 

 
5.3 Examples of opportunities for case studies 

• Pedestrian Forum meets quarterly with WIRED, Merseytravel’s Access officer, Wirral 
Council’s Footpaths Access Officer and other groups/interested parties (Technical 
Services) 

• £100,000 per year Disability Discrimination Act funding programme for modifications 
(Corporate Services / Law, HR, Asset Management / Technical Services) 

• Established a Hate Crime MARAC (Corporate Services / Law, HR, Asset 
Management) 

 
5.4 Examples of areas for further improvement 

• Strengthen involvement of all equality strands (Adult Social Services) 

• Develop independent feedback mechanisms and monitor feedback from satisfaction 
surveys (Adult Social Services) 

• Develop information gathering processes which respond to and meet the cultural 
needs of all sections of the community (Adult Social Services) 

• Assess the needs of people and support them to assess their own needs.  Use the 
information to inform future business plans (Adult Social Services) 

• Record all hate incidents (Adult Social Services) 

• Recruit community champions to the Corporate Equality & Cohesion Group 
(Corporate Services / Law, HR, Asset Management) 

 
 
 
 
6. RESPONSIVE CUSTOMER SERVICES (Theme 4) 
 
6.1 Examples of following best practice 

• None reported this quarter 
 
6.2 Examples of innovation 

• None reported this quarter 
 
6.3 Examples of opportunities for case studies 

• Creating a focus group comprising disabled children in order that they have a say in 
services designed to deliver safeguarding services to them (Children and Young 
People) 

Page 53



 

• New literature to be produced to increase pension scheme membership with logistics 
being explored on how to target gaps in membership from different groups. Further 
expansion of road shows and pension surgeries (Finance) 

 
6.4 Examples of areas for further improvement 

• None reported this quarter 
 
 
 
 
7. A MODERN AND DIVERSE WORKFORCE (Theme 5) 
 
7.1 Examples of following best practice 

• Currently reviewing capacity to increase equality and diversity training to all staff 
(Adult Social Services) 

• Schools and staff are trained to be more aware of the barriers faced by lesbian, gay, 
bisexual and trans people (Children and Young People) 

• Staff Equality and Diversity training being commissioned to address the needs of staff 
in particular a) poverty awareness, and b) safeguarding and conflicts with religion, 
faith or culture (Children and Young People) 

• Developing training for Foster Carers in order that the needs of Asylum seeking 
children are addressed (Children and Young People) 

• Racial Incidents, both in schools and the department, continue to be reported and 
monitored by the Department (Children and Young People) 

• Great strides made to ensure a more consistent approach procedures, for example on 
absence, capability and disciplinary (Technical Services) 

• Staff Survey has been repeated.  We are the only department to have completed this.  
Work on an action plan has begun (Technical Services) 

• 100% of office based staff, including new starters, have completed Elumos (Technical 
Services) 

• Appointed officers to deal with issues relating to Dignity at Work - bullying and 
harassment (Technical Services)  

• Encouraging and promoting staff participation in employee forums (Finance) 

• Highlighting one Equality and Diversity topic/policy area every two months through the 
Team Brief (Finance) 

• Present statistics of grievance / disciplinary (no. of cases etc.) in team briefs regularly, 
so that staff can see that things are followed up (Finance) 

• Discrimination, harassment and bullying being monitored corporately (Corporate 
Services / Law, HR, Asset Management) 

• Staff survey processes being mapped out at the moment and new internal 
communications methods also being developed (Corporate Services / Law, HR, Asset 
Management) 

• Three equality and cohesion taster sessions provided at corporate staff inductions 
(Corporate Services / Law, HR, Asset Management) 

• Reasonable adjustments advice available for staff and managers(Corporate Services / 
Law, HR, Asset Management)  

• Developed action plan in order to be assessed for Stonewall’s Equality Index and 
Regional Lesbian, Gay and Bisexual Strategy (Lesbian, Gay and Bisexual Staff 
Forum) 

• Updated equality and diversity pages of the Council’s intranet (Corporate Services / 
Law, HR, Asset Management) 

Page 54



 

7.2 Examples of innovation 

• Equality Watch Pledge Campaign (Corporate Services / Law, HR, Asset 
Management) 

• A sub-group of the Disability Diversity Forum has been established to look at the issue 
of Dyslexia in the workplace (Disability Diversity Forum) 

• Recently won a North West Employer Equality & Diversity Award for a football event, 
delivering two separate events one to children in partnership with Tranmere Rovers 
and the other to adults (Black Workers’ Group)  

  
7.3 Examples of opportunities for case studies 

• Gathering data from a questionnaire to women staff in Technical Services to see what 
they think about career development opportunities, barriers etc (Women’s Diversity 
Forum) 

• Theatre And diversity training sessions for Managers and frontline staff (Corporate 
Services / Law, HR, Asset Management)    

 
7.4 Examples of areas for further improvement 

• Good data levels of workforce exist but need more focus on sexual orientation, 
religion or belief. Need to profile equality strands in terms of salary grade also (Adult 
Social Services) 

• Positive action programme implementation (Adult Social Services) 

• Ensure staff are kept up to date with all issues concerning religion and culture (Adult 
Social Services)  

• Departmental harassment officers must be competent and training updated annually 
(Adult Social Services) 

• School Crossing Patrol service still awaiting guidance regarding Internet based access 
to Elumos (Technical Services) 

• Workforce 100% mapped and published annually on Council’s website (Corporate 
Services / Law, HR, Asset Management) 

• Addressing under-representation to be included within the workforce strategy and 
implemented (Corporate Services / Law, HR, Asset Management) 

• Equal Pay plan to be implemented (Corporate Services / Law, HR, Asset 
Management) 

• Flexible working arrangements to be monitored corporately (Corporate Services / Law, 
HR, Asset Management) 

• Elumos training to be completed by all staff (Corporate Services / Law, HR, Asset 
Management) 

• Corporate approach to positive action required (Corporate Services / Law, HR, Asset 
Management) 

 
 
 
8. Conclusion 
 
8.1 All departmental equality and cohesion action plans progressed well during the first 
 quarter period with 68% of milestones being recorded as ‘green’. 
 
8.2 However, when all departmental milestones are mapped against the expectations of 
 the Equality Framework, activity gaps can be identified, i.e. the examples of following 
 best practice and areas for improvement contained within in this report are activities 
 the Council should be undertaking as an ‘achieving’ council.  The examples of 

Page 55



 

 innovation and opportunities for evidence case studies are activities the Council 
 should be generating in order to be considered as an ‘excellent’ council. 
 
8.3 The Council needs to be generating best practice (innovation), not just following best 
 practice generated by others, in order to demonstrate a reduction in inequalities within 
 the workplace, across all service areas and across the Borough.  Ensuring the Council 
 builds an outcomes focussed evidence base will also be crucial to being assessed as 
 an excellent council. 
 
 
 
9. Recommendations  
 
9.1 Overview and Scrutiny Committee members to note progress of the Council’s various 
 equality action plans. 
 
9.2 This quarter one report to be submitted to the Corporate Equality and Cohesion 
 Group, the Departmental Equality and Cohesion Groups, and the Performance 
 Management Group, in order to generate ideas for developing more innovative 
 activities and ways of documenting case studies. 
 
9.3 Departmental Equality and Cohesion Groups to review their current action plans in 
 order to identify where examples of innovation and evidence case studies can be 
 developed.  To be presented to the Corporate Equality and Cohesion Group by 
 December 2010. 
 
9.4 Departmental equality leads to generate more inter-departmental activity, especially 
 where duplication is taking place, e.g. equality and diversity training, monitoring of 
 hate crimes and hate incidents, developing the role of dignity at work officers. 
 
 

 
JIM WILKIE 
DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE / DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE SERVICES 

Page 56



 

 
Council Excellence Overview and Scrutiny Committee 21

st
 September 2010 – ‘Total Place’ Information Report 

WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
COUNCIL EXCELLENCE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – 21st SEPTEMBER 
2010 
 
TOTAL PLACE 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1. The report provides a briefing note for Members as requested on the Total Place 

pilot that was conducted across 13 pilot areas between April 2009 and March 2010. 
It also provides some commentary on what is likely to be its successor, Placed 
Based or ‘Community Budgets’. 

 
1.2. “Total Place” was a Communities and Local Government pilot programme that 

looked at how public money was spent in a local area and how it could be used more 
efficiently to improve local services.   

1.3. 13 areas1 were chosen by the former Communities Secretary Hazel Blears to pilot 
the initiative following trials in Cumbria and Birmingham.  The pilots identified and 
mapped levels of public spending across a specific theme of work in their area and 
explored ways to overcome organisational and cultural barriers to improvement. 

 
1.4. Following the pilots, Government proposed greater freedoms and devolution of 

powers.  However, these powers were to be reserved for ‘high performing’ local 
authorities. 

 
1.5. With the change of Government in May 2010, Total Place looks set to evolve into 

something termed, ‘Community Budgets’ where there appears to be more emphasis 
on de-ringfencing funding and providing greater powers of autonomy for all local 
authorities. 

 
2. TOTAL PLACE CHRONOLOGY 
 
Apr 2009 – Total Place was launched during the April 2009 Budget Report.  13 pilot areas 

identified to examine spending and efficiencies across individual themes within 
each area. 

 
Oct 2009 – Interim findings were published during the Pre-Budget Report. 
 
Feb 2010 – Individual pilots reported their final findings. 
 
Mar 2010 – Summary Report published jointly by HM Treasury and the Department for 

Communities and Local Government. 
 
May 2010 – Change of Government  

                                            
1
 Birmingham; Bradford; Central Bedfordshire & Luton; Coventry, Solihull & Warwickshire; Croydon; Dorset, 

Poole & Bournemouth; Durham; Kent; Leicestershire & Leicester City; Lewisham; Manchester City Region & 
Warrington; South Tyneside, Gateshead & Sunderland; Worcestershire.  The details of the 13 pilot areas 
individual themes can be found at Appendix 1. 

Agenda Item 8

Page 57



 

 
Council Excellence Overview and Scrutiny Committee 21

st
 September 2010 – ‘Total Place’ Information Report 

Jul 2010 – Eric Pickle’s speech alludes to opportunities and shortcomings of Total Place 
and indicates that its branding will change to ‘Community Budgets’. 

 
3. SUMMARY OF TOTAL PLACE: A whole area approach to public services 
 
3.1. Total Place: A whole area approach to public services’ was published, March 2010 

and represented the final report of the Treasury and Communities and Local 
Government on the Total Place pilot. 

 
3.2. Total Place set a new direction for local public services.  It demonstrated what could 

be gained from public authorities putting the citizen at the heart of service design and 
working together to improve outcomes and eliminate waste and duplication. 

 
3.3. The report presented a positive appraisal of the scope of the project and outputs 

achieved: 
 

“The Total Place approach has been developed over twelve months through the work 
of 63 local authorities, 34 Primary Care Trusts, 12 fire authorities, 13 police 
authorities, and a wide range of third sector organisations and service delivery bodies. 
The 13 pilots serve a combined population of more than 11 million people.  
Collectively, thousands of public servants from across England have contributed to the 
work, analysis and understanding which drives these propositions”. 

 
3.4. The pilots demonstrated that there are real service improvements and savings to be 

made from this way of working.  The report suggests that 2% savings would be 
realistically achievable using this approach. 

 
3.5. However, there are a number of factors that will effect this: 
 

a) Each Total Place pilot focused on a specific theme within their area.  The “2%” 
savings would potentially be achieved across the theme, e.g. alcohol and drug 
abuse rather than across the budget of the local authority. 

 
b) All of the initiatives outlined within Total Place have incurred initial investment 

and set-up costs.  £5million was spent across the 13 pilot areas and “thousands 
of public servants from across England” were involved - all of which took 
resources away from front-line service delivery for the duration of the pilot at a 
time when public sector spending is under pressure to identify savings. 

 
3.6. The report suggests that the new ways of working pioneered by leading local areas 

could be replicated everywhere by: 
 

• Starting from the citizen’s viewpoint to break down organisational and service 
silos which cause confusion, create wasteful burdens of data collection and 
management on the frontline, and which contribute to poor alignment of services 

 

• Providing strong local, collective and focused leadership which supports joined 
up working and shared solutions to problems with citizens at the heart of service 
design 

 
 

Page 58



 

 
Council Excellence Overview and Scrutiny Committee 21

st
 September 2010 – ‘Total Place’ Information Report 

4. PROPOSED NEW FREEDOMS 
 
4.1. The report suggested that Central Government would look at providing freedoms 

under two headings: ‘The Single Offer’ and ‘The Innovative Policy Offer’. 
 
4.2. The Single Offer represented the main thrust of the freedoms and opportunities that 

Total Place was to provide and was reserved for ‘high performing places’.  This offer 
was to give places a range of freedoms (freedoms from central performance and 
financial control as well as freedoms and incentives for local collaboration) for 
working in partnership with central government to co-design services and 
arrangements to deliver greater transparency, efficiency and value for the citizen and 
the public purse. 

 
4.3. The Innovative Policy Offer recognised that a much wider group of local authorities 

and their partners have real strengths in delivery of services within a particular policy 
area.  This offer would have devolved responsibility to places within an agreed 
delivery theme.  Local authorities and their partners would co-design this offer 
comprising freedoms similar to those for the Single Offer but linked only to an agreed 
policy area, e.g. community safety.  

 
4.4. Both offers came with a very explicit expectation of identifying potential savings 

across the partnership. 
 
4.5. The ‘Innovative Policy Offer’ would have provided Wirral with an opportunity to 

access some of the greater freedoms offered by Total Place. 
 
5. TOTAL PLACE – WHAT NEXT? 
 
5.1. The report identified that much more still needed to be done to identify solutions to 

efficient and effective service delivery following the Total Place pilots.  Actions 
identified in the report included: 

 

• Extended field trials to tackle chronic alcohol and drug misuse; working with local 
areas including Leicester and Leicestershire, Birmingham and South Tyneside and 
its partners 

 

• Work with a small number of local areas to co-design approaches to worklessness. 
This included local authority and Jobcentre Plus joint working on information, 
advice and one-stop shops to improve customer services. 

 
5.2. We are uncertain whether these activities got underway.  However, the examples 

sited from the Total Place pilots highlight the sustained effort necessary to 
continually improve services and that Total Place is not a ‘one off’ exercise. 

 
5.3. The Department for Communities and Local Government has not provided any 

detailed update on “Total Place” since the election.  In a recent speech by the 
Secretary of State2, July 2010, Mr Pickles referred to place based area budgets or 
community budgets and implies far more freedoms for local authorities than was ever 
envisaged under Total Place. 

 

                                            
2
 The Full Speech can be found at http://www.communities.gov.uk/speeches/newsroom/lgaoffer 

Page 59



 

 
Council Excellence Overview and Scrutiny Committee 21

st
 September 2010 – ‘Total Place’ Information Report 

6. CONCLUSION 
 
6.1. The Coalition Government has already provided for more radical proposals than was 

contained within Total Place and whilst further details about Community Budgets are 
yet to emerge from Whitehall, in the current climate there is unlikely to be any 
prescriptive framework that will govern what councils do. 

 
 
J. WILKIE 
Deputy Chief Executive/Director of Corporate Services 
 
This report was prepared by Gareth Latham, who can be contacted on 691 8030. 
 

Page 60



 

 
Council Excellence Overview and Scrutiny Committee 21

st
 September 2010 – ‘Total Place’ Information Report 

Appendix 1 
 
Total Place pilot areas and their related themes. 
 

Place Themes 

Birmingham 

Alcohol & drug abuse, Mental health 
services, learning disability services, 
Improving outcomes for Young People 
leaving care, demonstration project 
(community) and guns & gangs  

Bradford 

Integrating services to manage the 
transition to independence for young 
offenders, care-leavers and the elderly 
leaving hospital 

Central Bedfordshire / Luton 
family breakdown/divorce; links to crime 
& drugs 

Coventry, Solihull and Warwickshire Children’s services linked to health 

Croydon 
Children’s services & links to health 
0-7 yrs 

Dorset/ Poole/ Bournemouth Older People’s services 

Durham Housing & regeneration 

Kent 
Kent Gateway & multi-channel access; 
single asset management strategy; 
Mending Margate 

Leicestershire/ Leicester City 
Alcohol & drug abuse (links to Mental 
Health and crime) 

Lewisham 

Minimising reoffending; managing ex-
offenders in the community; 
worklessness & young people; 
procurement project; NHS / Local 
Authority integration 

Manchester City Region and Warrington 0-5s 

South Tyneside/ Gateshead/ Sunderland 
Health inequality/ safer communities/ 
teenage pregnancy 

Worcestershire 

Asset management; shared services; 
offender management & NEETs; alcohol 
abuse; road safety; support to most 
deprived wards  

 

Page 61



Page 62

This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL COUNCIL 

 
COUNCIL EXCELLENCE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
21 SEPTEMBER 2010 
 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 
REVENUES AND BENEFITS 
 
 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1. This report provides information on the position regarding Council Tax, National 

Non Domestic Rate, general debt and cash income collection and the payment of 
benefits. 

 
2. REVENUES COLLECTION 
 
2.1. The following statement compares the amount collected for Council Tax in the 

period 1 April 2010 to 31 July 2010 with the amount collected in the same period in 
2009/10. 

  Actual Actual 
  2010/11 2009/10 
  £ £ 
 Cash to Collect 124,039,519 122,956,423 
 Cash Collected 47,782,413 47,188,362 
 % Collected 38.5 38.4 
 
2.2. The following statement compares the amount collected for National Non-

Domestic Rates in the period 1 April 2010 to 31 July 2010 with the amount 
collected in the same period in 2009-10. 

  Actual Actual 
  2010/11 2009/10 
  £ £ 
 Total Collectable (including arrears)  70,175,606       73,786,680 
 Amount Outstanding    50,509,441       46,927,491 
 % Outstanding 72.03          63.60 
 Amount Collectable 64,030,681   66,174,599 
 Net Cash Collected 23,920,120 25,912,409 
 % Collected 37.36   39.16 
 
2.3. A slight overall improvement in collection levels has been seen so far during 2010-

11and the main reason for the disparity in collection at 31 July 2010 was the earlier 
internal transfer in 2009-10 of £2.5m for the payment of rates for Council properties. 

Agenda Item 9

Page 63



2.4. The following statement provides information concerning collection of local taxes 
from 1 April 2010 to 31 July 2010. 

 
  Council Tax Business 
   Rates 
 Reminders/Final Notices 29,154 1,738 
 Summonses 8,264 343 
 Liability Orders 4,638 307 
 
 Recovery action in progress 
 Attachment of Earnings 571 
 Deduction from Income Support  1,416 - 
 Accounts to Bailiff 2,600 115 
 Pre-Committal Warning Letters 1,448 - 
 Committal Orders Issued 1 0 
 Debtors Committed 0 0 

 
Current Status of Agent Work in respect of Committals for 1 April 2010 to 
31 July 2010. 
 

 Warrants of Arrest issued by Court (Bail and No Bail)  32 
 Warrants of Arrest (Bail) to Warrant officer  25 
 Warrants of Arrest (No Bail) to Warrant officer  12 
 Returned successful (Bail)   16 
 Returned successful (No Bail)   8 
 Returned other reasons (Bail)   3 
 Returned other reasons (No Bail)   2 
 
2.5. Insolvency cases to 31 July 2010 
 
 The following information concerns Council Tax recovery work which involves cases 

where Insolvency action or charging orders against properties are used. 
 
 Bankruptcy cases 284 
 Charging orders 113 
 Winding up orders 3 
 

New cases from 1 April 2010 to 31 July 2010 
 
Bankruptcy 13 
Charging orders 24 
Winding up orders 0 
 
Status of Insolvency cases at 31 July 2010 
 

Winding-up paid 1 
Charging orders granted 81 
Winding up Order 1 
Supporting other petitions 3 
Cases paid 90 
Bankruptcy orders 105 
Cases closed 110 
Ongoing cases 46 
 437 

Page 64



2.6. Sundry Debtors 
  Actual Actual 
   2010/11 2009/10 
   
 Amount Billed in last 12 months as at 31.07.10 £96,582,910 £79,391,938 
 Total outstanding as at 31.07.10 £30,614,661 £18,384,955 
 Net Arrears at 31.07.10 £12,895,653 £9,376,586 
 Number of invoices in arrears at 31.07.10 12,509 11,530 
 Number of reminders 01.04.10 to 31.07.10 10,853 9,033 
 
3. INCOME 
 
3.1. The following budgets and income received relate to other sources of cash income 

generated by the Council: 
 

 

2009/10 
Budget 

Income to 
31-Jul-09 

2010/11 
Budget 

Income to 
31-Jul-10 

i. School Meals £1,607,800 £472,566 £1,575,100 £578,782 

ii. Sports Centres £3,867,300 £1,073,433 £3,941,300 £1,510,928 

iii. Golf Courses £912,200 £441,978 £939,600 £422,463 

iv. Burials and Cremations £2,429,200 £654,541 £2,502,000 £642,762 

v. Building Control Fees £494,900 £245,300 £494,900 £154,419 

vi. Land Charges £358,300 £101,900 £358,300 £83,928 

vii. Car Park (Pay and Display) £2,496,900 £692,500 £2,496,900 £684,243 

viii. Car Park (Penalty Notices) £1,149,800 £308,900 £1,149,800 £231,644 
 

3.2. Further explanation of the above budgets and income collection performance is 
provided below: 

 
(i) School Meals:  It is expected that income will be slightly more than the 

budget. 
 
(ii) Sports Centres: This is a volatile area and income is being monitored 

closely.  The Invigor8 income is expected to exceed budget. 
 
(iii) Golf Courses: It is anticipated that income will underachieve against budget 

by £175,000. The budget for golf income has not been achieved for at least 
the last three years. 

 
(iv) Burials and Cremations: Income levels are down when compared to this time 

last year. It is anticipated that income will underachieve against budget by 
around £80,000. 

 
(v) Building Control Fees income is declining and there was a deficit of £91,500 

in 2009/10. 
 
(vi) Land Charges:  Fee income is declining and there was a deficit of £61,500 in 

2009/10. 
 
(vii) Car Park Income (Pay and Display Tickets). It is unlikely that the income will 

be achieved.  The deficit in 2009/10 was £285,000. 
 

Page 65



(viii) Car Park Income (Penalty Notices):  The shortfall in 2009/10 was £217,000 
and is likely to be similar in the current year. 

 
4. HOUSING BENEFITS 
 
4.1. The following statement details the number of claimants in respect of benefit and 

the expenditure for Private Tenants and those in receipt of Council Tax Benefit up 
to 31 July 2010. 

  2010/11 2009/10 
 
 Number of Private Tenant recipients 29,672 27,974 
 Total rent allowance expenditure £39,469,438 
  
 Number under the Local Housing Allowance 8,683 6,250 
 scheme (included in the above) £14,926,584 
  
 Number of Council Tax Benefit recipients 38,972 36,944 
 Total Council Tax Benefit expenditure £31,067,694  
 
 Total expenditure on benefit to date £70,537,132 
 
4.2. The following statement provides information concerning the breakdown according 

to client type as at 31 July 2010. 
 
  Private Tenants Owner Occupiers 
 

Working age and in receipt of J.S.A. 15,154 1,848 
Elderly and in receipt of J.S.A. 7,104 5,612 
Working age and not receiving J.S.A. 5,414 1,144 
Elderly and not in receipt of J.S.A.   2,000   3,250 
Total  29,672 11,854 
 
There are 41,526 benefit recipients in Wirral as at 31 July 2010. 

 
4.3. Housing Benefit Fraud and Enquiries    To 31 July 2010 

New Cases referred to Fraud team in period 636 
Cases where fraud found and action taken 39 
Cases investigated, no fraud found 
    and recovery of overpayment may be sought 244 
Cases under current investigation 211 
Surveillance Operations Undertaken 0 

 
Cases where fraud found and action taken: 
Administration penalty 7 
Caution issued and accepted 22 
Successful prosecution 10 
Summons issued for prosecution purposes 5 

 
4.4. Discretionary Housing Payments 
 
4.4.1. Discretionary Housing Payments (DHP) may be awarded to provide short term 

financial assistance to Housing and Council Tax Benefit claimants who are 
experiencing difficulty meeting a shortfall in their rent or Council Tax because 
maximum benefit is not being paid. 

Page 66



 
4.4.2. DHP is not a payment of Housing/Council Tax Benefit and is funded separately 

from the main scheme.  The Government contribution for 2010/11 is £245,200 with 
an overall limit of £613,000 which the Authority must not exceed.  To date I have 
paid £31,748 and committed a further £33,669 to the end of the financial year. 

 
5. STAFFING IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1. There are none arising from this report. 
 
6. EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
7. HUMAN RIGHTS IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
8. LOCAL AGENDA 21 IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
9. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
10. PLANNING IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
11. LOCAL MEMBER SUPPORT IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
12. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
12.1. None were used in the preparation of this report. 
 
13. RECOMMENDATION 
 
13.1. That the report be noted. 
 
 
 
 
 
  IAN COLEMAN 
 DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 
FNCE/   /10 

Page 67



Page 68

This page is intentionally left blank



e:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\7\3\1\ai00010137\$wm3hyci4.doc 

WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
COUNCIL EXCELLENCE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
21 SEPTEMBER 2010 
 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 
BUDGET PROJECTIONS 2011-2015 

 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1. This report updates the projected budgets for the years from 2011 to 2015 in line with 

the decision of HM Treasury to undertake a four year Spending Review.  The report 
was presented to the Cabinet on 2 September 2010. 

 
2. ASSUMPTIONS UNDERPINNING THE PROJECTIONS 
 
2.1. Inflation – HM Treasury is assuming a return to a long term inflation rate of 2%.  

Therefore prices are assumed to increase by 2% per annum with income to continue 
to increase by 3% per annum.  Pay awards will be limited to those employees earning 
less than £21,000 per annum for 2011-13. 

 
2.2. Capital Financing – HM Treasury is assuming that the level of capital investment will 

reduce by 50% between 2009-10 and 2013-14.  The annual increase in capital 
financing charges has therefore been reduced to £2.0m. 

 
2.3. Pension Fund – the Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) has 

yet to finalise the proposed cost sharing arrangements which are now unlikely to be 
implemented before 2012-13.  In advance of this decision the increase arising from 
the actuarial valuation currently underway is projected at 1.5% or £2m per annum.  In 
addition the outsourcing of the highways and engineering services contract is likely to 
increase the contributions by £0.2m per annum. 

 
2.4. Waste Disposal – the increase in the levy will be dependent on delivery of the waste 

disposal strategy.  The Landfill Tax will increase by £8 per ton per annum, an increase 
of 50% between 2010-11 and 2014-15.  The levy is assumed to increase by 8% per 
annum. 

 
2.5. Merseytravel – the levy is assumed to increase by 3% per annum. 
 
2.6. Private Finance Initiative – the latest projections are included. 
 
2.7. Benefits – the Department for Work and Pensions is estimating an annual increase of 

1.7% and has announced a review of Benefits. 
 
2.8. Schools – it is assumed that the Schools Budget will vary in line with the Dedicated 

Schools Grant. 
 
2.9. Adult Social Services Reform – the Reform Grant of £1.9m will cease in 2011-12 with 

the assumed implementation of the personalisation agenda. 

Agenda Item 10

Page 69



e:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\7\3\1\ai00010137\$wm3hyci4.doc 

 
2.10. Personal Care At Home – the Government has now abandoned this policy and 

reduced the Area Based Grant. 
 
2.11. Carbon Reduction Commitment – payment of £1.0m commencing in 2011-12.  It is 

assumed that the Authority will reduce the carbon footprint sufficiently to recover these 
payments. 

 
2.12. National Insurance – the proposed 1% increase in the employers rate will not now be 

implemented. 
 
2.13. Home Insulation – increased cost from 2011 of £1m. 
 
2.14. Guinea Gap and Leasowe Recreation Centres – restoration into budget at a cost of 

£0.6m each. 
 
2.15. Other Unavoidable Growth – a number of items of unavoidable growth of less than 

£0.2m will arise.  These usually total about £1m per annum. 
 
2.16. Efficiency Investment – in order to continue to deliver efficiencies in future years it will 

be necessary to continue to invest and therefore £2m per annum has been provided. 
 
2.17 Area Based Grant (ABG) – Cabinet on 22 July 2010 agreed to reductions in 

expenditure for 2010-11 only to meet the £3.9m reduction in ABG. 
 
2.18. Government Grants – the DCLG has indicated that Government Grants will be 

reduced by 30% to 40% over the period 2011-15.  I have only assumed a reduction of 
30%. 

 
2.19 Council Tax – the Government has announced a freeze in Council Tax increases for 

2011-12, although Local Authorities could be permitted to increase Council Tax by 
upto 2.5%.  From 2012-13 any proposed increase above the rate of inflation would be 
the subject of a local referendum. 

 
3. GRANT NEGOTIATIONS 
 
3.1. The Government has agreed to the following elements of the Local Government 

Finance Settlement being reviewed as part of the 2011 settlement:- 
 
 a. Area Cost Adjustment 
 b. Highways Maintenance 
 c. Day Visitors 
 d. Income Support/Tax Credits 
 e. Students 
 f. Concessionary Fares 
 g. Coast Protection/Flood Defence 
 h. Capital Financing 
 i. Dedicated Schools Grant 
 j. Housing Benefit 
 k. Pensions 
 l. Schools Deprivation. 

Page 70



e:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\7\3\1\ai00010137\$wm3hyci4.doc 

 
3.2. The Local Government Finance Settlement due to be announced in December 2010 

may cover 2011-15 as HM Treasury intends to deliver a four year Spending Review 
on 20 October 2010.  However there is a possibility that the DCLG will issue a two 
year settlement covering 2011-13 with a subsequent two year settlement for 2013-15 
after the completion of the review of Local Government Finance. 

 
3.3. The Government has announced that it intends to conduct reviews of the following:- 
 
 a) Local Government Finance 
 b) Public Sector Pensions 
 c) Welfare Benefits 
 
3.4. During the course of this budgeting period the results of the Census 2011 will become 

available and will be incorporated into the grant distribution formulae.  The Office for 
National Statistics has now released the Mid 2008 estimated populations.  The 
reduction for Wirral is greater than for any other metropolitan or unitary authority.  If 
this is confirmed in the Census 2011 then the reduction in grant receivable could be 
significant. 

 
4. BALANCES 
 
4.1. The budget for 2010-11 includes balances of £6.5m. 
 
4.2. The financial out-turn for 2009-10 was reported to Cabinet on 24 June 2010 and 

showed an overspending of £1,385,000 offset by increased investment income of 
£1,185,000 and a contribution from the Collection Fund of £515,000 to produce a net 
surplus of £315,000. 

 
4.3. The Government has announced that the Personal Care at Home scheme will not be 

proceeding.  The revenue budget for 2010-11 will therefore be reduced by £2.6m with 
a reduction of £1.6m in Area Based Grant. 

 
4.4. The Government announced on 10 June 2010 that there would be the following grant 

reductions for 2010-11:- 
 
   £000 
 Area Based Grant 3,927 
 LAA Reward Grant 1,400 
 Local Authority Business Growth Incentive    200 
   5,527 
 
 Cabinet on 22 July 2010 agreed that the reduced Area Based Grant will be matched 

by reduced expenditure in 2010-11. 
 
4.5. The Insurance Fund Annual Report was presented to Cabinet on 24 June 2010 

including the transfer of £2,471,000 to General Fund balances. 
 
4.6. Cabinet on 24 June 2010 agreed that additional VAT of £240,000 recovered from HM 

Revenue and Customs should be placed in balances. 
 

Page 71



e:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\7\3\1\ai00010137\$wm3hyci4.doc 

4.7. The budget for 2010-11 provides for pay awards of 1% totalling £1.7m.  No pay award 
has yet been offered. 

 
4.8. The Cabinet has not agreed to any projected overspendings in 2010-11 
 
   £m 
4.9. Opening Balances 6.5 
 Out-Turn 2009-10 0.3 
 Personal Care at Home 1.0 
 LAA Reward Grant - 1.4 
 LABGI - 0.2 
 Insurance Fund 2.5 
 VAT 0.2 
 
   8.9 
 
5. EFFICIENCIES 
 
5.1. The previous Government increased the efficiency target for 2010-11 to 4% which for 

Wirral equates to £14.9m.  The previous Government expected that this saving would 
be reinvested in order to enable delivery of increased efficiency requirements in 2011 
to 2014. 

 
5.2. The efficiencies that the Authority will need to deliver for 2011-15 are well in excess of 

the statutory efficiency target.  The main mechanism for delivery of the required 
efficiencies is the change programme.  Cabinet on 14 January 2010 agreed a revised 
change programme, progress on which was to be reported quarterly to the Cabinet. 

 
5.3. Revised governance and programme management arrangements for the change 

programme were reported to Cabinet on 22 July 2010. 
 
5.4. Cabinet has to date agreed a number of efficiencies:- 
 
 a. Cabinet agreed that £1m will be saved from office accommodation from 2011.  

Progress was reported to Cabinet on 24 June 2010. 
 
 b. Cabinet on 15 October 2009 agreed to the implementation of an integrated 

Human Resources IT system with initial projected savings of £254,000 for 2011-
12, £220,000 for 2012-13, £100,000 for 2013-14 and £20,000 for 2014-15. 

 
 c. Cabinet on 22 February 2010 agreed to the creation of an integrated transport unit 

with projected savings of £130,000 in 2011-12, £340,000 in 2012-13 and 
£250,000 in 2013-14. 

 
 d. Cabinet on 18 March 2010 agree to investment in an assistive technology project 

in Adult Social Services with projected additional savings of £8.8m over 2011-13 
after additional investment from the Efficiency Investment Budget of £6.0m. 

 
 e. Cabinet on 15 April 2010 agreed to investment in family group conferencing to 

deliver savings of £70,000 in 2011-12 and £130,000 in 2012-13. 
 

Page 72



e:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\7\3\1\ai00010137\$wm3hyci4.doc 

 f. Cabinet on 22 July 2010 agreed to proceed with a parks and countryside service 
procurement exercise with a base case saving of £392,000 in 2011-12 and 
£392,000 in 2012-13. 

 
6. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1. The assumptions outlined above are reflected in the budget projections in the 

Appendix. 
 
7. STAFFING IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
8. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
9. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
10. HUMAN RIGHTS IMPLICATIONS  
 

10.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
11. LOCAL AGENDA 21 IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
12. PLANNING IMPLICATIONS 
 
12.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
13. MEMBER SUPPORT IMPLICATIONS 
 
13.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
14. BACKGROUNG PAPERS 
 
14.1. Medium Term Financial Strategy 2010-13 – September 2009 
 Formula Grant Settlement 2010-11 – DCLG – January 2010 
 Estimates 2010-11 – March 2010 
 Budget – HM Treasury – March 2010 and June 2010 

Page 73



e:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\7\3\1\ai00010137\$wm3hyci4.doc 

 
15. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
15.1. That the budget projections be kept under review. 
 
15.2. That further efficiencies be delivered. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  IAN COLEMAN 
  DIRECTOR OF FINANCE. 
 
 
 
 
FNCE/148/10 
 

Page 74



e:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\7\3\1\ai00010137\$wm3hyci4.doc 

APPENDIX 1 

 
WIRRAL COUNCIL 

 

BUDGET PROJECTIONS 2011-2015 

 

 2011-12 
£M 

2012-13 
£M 

2013-14 
£M 

2014-15 
£M 

     
Base Budget 330.8 315.0 303.7 292.6 
     
Increased Requirements     
Pay Inflation 1.0 1.0 3.5 3.5 
Price Inflation 3.7 3.7 3.8 3.8 
Capital Financing 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 
Pension Fund 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 
Waste Disposal 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 
Merseytravel 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 
Private Finance Initiative 1.0 0.2 0.2 0.2 
Benefits 2.4 2.4 2.5 2.5 
Home Insulation 1.0 - - - 
Guinea Gap 0.6 - - - 
Leasowe Recreation Centre 0.6 - - - 
Other Unavoidable Growth 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 
Efficiency Investment 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 
 _____ _____ _____ _____ 
 350.5 331.8 323.3 312.3 
     
Reduced Requirements     
Income Inflation -1.0 -1.1 -1.1 -1.1 
Benefits Subsidy -2.2 -2.2 -2.3 -2.3 
Savings Agreed    -1.8    -1.1    -0.3         - 
     
 345.5 327.4 319.6 308.9 
     
Resources     
Grants 180.5 165.9 151.3 136.7 
Council Tax 134.5 137.8 141.3 144.8 
     
Forecast Resources 315.0 303.7 292.6 281.5 
     
Shortfall 30.5 23.7 27.0 27.4 

 

Page 75



Page 76

This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL COUNCIL 

 
COUNCIL EXCELLENCE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
21 SEPTEMBER 2010 

 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 

 

TREASURY MANAGEMENT QUARTERLY MONITORING 
 
 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report presents a review of Treasury Management activities during the first 

quarter of 2010/11 and confirms compliance with treasury limits and prudential 
indicators. It has been prepared in accordance with the revised CIPFA Treasury 
Management Code and the revised Prudential Code.  It was presented to the 
Cabinet on 22 July 2010. 

 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 Treasury Management in Local Government is governed by the CIPFA Code of 

Practice on Treasury Management in the Public Services and in this context is the 
“management of the Council’s investments and cash flows, its banking, money 
market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks associated 
with those activities and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those 
risks”. 

 
2.2 The Treasury Management Code requires public sector authorities to determine an 

annual Treasury Management Strategy and as a minimum, formally report on their 
treasury activities and arrangements to Council mid-year and after the year-end.  
These reports enable those tasked with implementing policies and undertaking 
transactions to demonstrate that they have properly fulfilled their responsibilities, 
and enable those with responsibility/governance of the treasury management 
function to scrutinise and assess its effectiveness and compliance with policies and 
objectives. 

 
2.3 Cabinet approves the Treasury Management Strategy before the start of each 

financial year. This identifies proposals to finance capital expenditure, borrow and 
invest in the light of capital spending requirements, interest rate forecasts and 
expected economic conditions. At the end of each financial year Cabinet receives 
an Annual Report which details performance against the Strategy. During 2009/10 
the Council Excellence Overview & Scrutiny Committee received quarterly 
monitoring reports as part of the General Financial Matters report. In 2010/11, in 
accordance with the revised Treasury Management Code, there will be a separate 
Treasury Management monitoring report presented to Cabinet and approved by 
Council on a quarterly basis.  

 
 
 

Agenda Item 11

Page 77



 
3. CURRENT ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT 
 
3.1 With the formation of the Coalition Government comes the creation of the Office of 

Budget Responsibility (OBR) designed to give a more independent assessment of 
the economic outlook. Following the Chancellor of the Exchequer’s budget on 22 
June 2010 the OBR assessment is that the economy will grow by 1.2% in 2010 and 
by 2.3% in 2011, both of which are a downward revision on past forecasts. The 
reduced growth figures coupled with the large public sector borrowing figures mean 
that the deficit will not dissipate without structural changes occurring.  

 
3.2 Inflation figures in May stand at 3.4% for CPI and 5.1% for RPI slightly down on 

April but still above the Bank of England Monetary Policy Committee target range. 
However, the spare capacity in the economy and the expected reduction in public 
sector expenditure should ensure that inflation continues to fall to around the 2% 
level. 

 
3.3 The Bank of England (BoE) base rate remains at 0.5% and is forecast to remain at 

this level throughout 2010. The BoE has now ceased the Quantitative Easing (QE) 
programme but has not ruled out using more QE in the future if the economy 
continues to stall. The economy is in a very weak state and until it shows real signs 
of prolonged and stable growth the base rate will remain low. 

 
4. THE COUNCIL TREASURY POSITION 

 
4.1 The table below shows how the Treasury position has changed since 31 March 

2010: 
 

Table 1: Summary of Treasury Position 

Investments 

Balance 
at  

31 March 
2010 
£m 

Maturing 
Investments 

£m 

New 
Investments 

£m 

Balance 
at  

30 June 
2010 
£m 

Internal managed 
investments 

106 181 210 135 

TOTAL INVESTMENTS 106 181 210 135 

     
     

Borrowings 

Balance 
at  

31 March 
2010 
£m 

Maturing 
Borrowings 

£m 

New 
Borrowings 

£m 

Balance 
at  

30 June 
2010       
£m 

Long-term fixed rate 280 2 0 278 

Long-term variable rate 0 0 0 0 

Temporary borrowing 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL BORROWING 280 2 0 278 

     
     

NET BORROWING 174   143 
 

Page 78



5. INVESTMENTS 
 
5.1 The Treasury Management Team can invest money for periods varying from 1 day 

to 10 years, in accordance with the Treasury Management Strategy, to earn interest 
until the money is required by the Council.  These investments arise from a number 
of sources including:- 

• General Fund Balances 

• Reserves and Provisions 

• Grants received in advance of expenditure 

• Money borrowed in advance of capital expenditure 

• Schools’ Balances 

• Daily Cashflow/ Working Capital 
 
5.2 As at 30 June 2010 the Council held investments of £135m. The table below details 

these investments;  
 
 Table 2: Investments as at 30 June 2010 

 Investments with: £m 

UK Banks 69.8 

Building Societies 15.0 

Money Market Funds  41.7 

Gilts and Bonds 8.5 

TOTAL 135.0 

 
5.3 Of the above investments £49m is invested in instant access funds, £75.5m is 

invested for up to 1 year, £3m is invested for up to 2 years and £7.5m is invested for 
up to 5 years.  

 
5.4 The average rate of return on investments as at 30 June 2010 is 1.16%. The graph 

below shows the Treasury Management Team rate of return against the Bank of 
England base rate and the 3 month LIBOR (the inter bank lending rate); 

  
 Chart 1: Investment Rate of Return in 2010/11 

-

0.1000

0.2000

0.3000

0.4000

0.5000

0.6000

0.7000

0.8000

0.9000

1.0000

1.1000

1.2000

1.3000

1.4000

1.5000

1.6000

1.7000

1.8000

1.9000

2.0000

2.1000

2.2000

2.3000

2.4000

2.5000

2.6000

2.7000

2.8000

2.9000

3.0000

01/04/10 11/04/10 21/04/10 01/05/10 11/05/10 21/05/10 31/05/10 10/06/10 20/06/10 30/06/10

Date

In
te
re
s
t 
R
a
te
 (
%
)

BoE Base Rate

3 Month LIBOR

Wirral Council's Average

Investment Rate of

Return

 

Page 79



5.5 The rate at which the Council can invest money continues to be low, in line with the 
record low Bank of England base rate. 

 
5.6 The Council maintains a restrictive policy on new investments by only investing in 

UK institutions A+ rated or above and continues to invest in AAA rated money 
market funds, Gilts and bonds. 

 
5.7 The 2010/11 investment income budget has been reduced to £0.7m to reflect the 

low interest rates that are anticipated to continue throughout the financial year. With 
low interest rates it is unlikely that the Authority will achieve the large surpluses that 
have been made in the past few years.  

 
5.8 In order to provide more context to the investment activities of the Treasury 

Management Team the treasury management advisors have produced 
benchmarking data from the 71 public sector clients they work with. The graph 
below shows the average rate of return from investments in 2009/10 against the 
perceived risk of the investments. Wirral is represented by a ‘x’ on the graph while 
the other 70 authorities are represented by dots.  

 Chart 2: Average investment rate of return against credit risk 

Arlingclose Client Benchmarking

0.0%

1.0%

2.0%

3.0%

4.0%

5.0%

6.0%

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

Average Credit Risk Score - Time Weighted Average

A
v
e
ra
g
e
 R
a
te
 o
f 
In
v
e
st
m
e
n
ts

Lower Risk Higher Risk

 
  
5.9 This graph demonstrates how Wirral achieves close to the average rate of return 

from its investments while maintaining a lower than average risk.  This illustrates 
the Treasury Management Team work in maintaining the security of Council money 
while providing reasonable investment returns. The security of the investments 
always takes priority over the returns. 

 

Icelandic Investment 

5.10 In terms of Icelandic investments, the Council had £2 million deposited with 
Heritable Bank and Members have received regular updates regarding the 
circumstances and the latest situation. In March 2009 an Audit Commission report 
confirmed that Wirral Council had acted, and continues to act, prudently and 
properly in all its investment activities.  

Page 80



5.11 The latest information from the Administrator projects a base case return to 
creditors of between 79-85p in the £ and the final recovery could be higher. To date 
£0.7 million has been received with further payments due in 2010/11. If Heritable 
Bank is unable to repay in full I have also made a pre-emptive claim against 
Landsbanki Islands HF for the difference. When the original investment was made it 
was with Landsbanki Islands HF providing a guarantee to reimburse the Council 
should Heritable be unable to repay. It should be noted that Landsbanki Islands HF 
is also in administration. 

 
6. BORROWING 
 
6.1 The Council undertakes borrowing to help fund capital expenditure.  In 2010/11 the 

capital programme requires borrowing of £14m.  However, to date no additional 
borrowing has been undertaken.  The table below shows the total borrowing of the 
Council as at 30 June 2010. 

 Table 3: Borrowing as at 30 June 2010 

Borrowing £m 

PWLB 104 

Market Loans 174 

TOTAL 278 

 
6.2 The Council is able to borrow from two main sources, either from the Public Works 

Loan Board (PWLB), which is effectively borrowing from the Government, or from 
the Market, i.e. direct from the banks. 

 
6.3 As the year progresses an assessment will be made as to the best time to borrow 

money.  Currently, as the rate of return from investments remains low it continues to 
be more appropriate to reduce the level of investment. By not reinvesting as 
investments mature the Council is able to use this money to fund capital 
expenditure. This, temporarily, reduces the need to undertake new long term 
borrowing and also alleviates the difficulty and risk in finding a safe counterparty to 
invest with. This approach also helps to generate savings as borrowing money long 
term to fund the capital programme incurs an interest rate of approximately 4.5% 
while investments are only earning approximately 0.5%. It is recognised that utilising 
investments in lieu of borrowing clearly has a finite duration; investments are not 
permanent surplus money but, rather, money set aside for a specific future reason. 
Future borrowing would be required to support capital expenditure. 

 
7. MONITORING OF THE PRUDENTIAL CODE INDICATORS 
 
7.1 The introduction of the Prudential Code in 2004 gave Local Authorities greater 

freedom in making capital strategy decisions.  The prudential indicators allow the 
Council to establish prudence and affordability within the capital strategy. 

 
7.2 Below is a selection of prudential indicators which demonstrate that the treasury 

management decisions are in line with the capital strategy, which is prudent and 
affordable.  

 

Page 81



 
7.3 Net External Borrowing and Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) Indicator  
 
7.3.1. The CFR measures the underlying need to borrow money to finance capital 

expenditure.  The Prudential Code stipulates that net external borrowing should not 
exceed the CFR for the previous year plus the estimated additional CFR 
requirement for the current and next two financial years.  Table 4 below shows the 
cumulative CFR and net borrowing of the Council. 

 
 Table 4: Net External Borrowing compared with CFR 

  £m 

CFR in previous year (2009/10 actual) 387 

additional CFR in 2010/11 (estimate) 2 

Reduced CFR in 2011/12 (estimate) -20 

Reduced CFR in 2012/13 (estimate) -20 

C0-umulative CFR 349 

    

External Borrowing as at 30 June 2010 278 

 
7.3.2. Net external borrowing does not exceed the CFR and it is not expected to in the 

future. This is a key indicator of prudence. 
  
7.4. Authorised Borrowing Limit and Operational Boundary Indicators 
 
7.4.1. The Authorised Borrowing Limit is the amount determined as the level of borrowing 

which, while not desired, could be afforded but may not be sustainable. It is not 
treated as an upper limit for borrowing for capital purposes alone since it also 
encompasses temporary borrowing.  An unanticipated revision to this limit is 
considered to be an exceptional event and would require a review of all the other 
affordability indicators. 

 
7.4.2. The Operational Boundary is the amount determined as the expectation of the 

maximum external debt according to probable events projected by the estimates and 
makes no allowance for any headroom.  It is designed to alert the Authority to any 
imminent breach of the Authorised Limit. 

 
 Table 5: Authorised Limit and Operational Boundary Indicator 

 April 10 May 10 June 10 
 £m £m £m 

Authorised Limit 484 484 484 

Operational Boundary 469 469 469 

Total Council Borrowing 278 278 278 

 
7.4.3. The table above shows that neither the Authorised Limit nor the Operational 

Boundary was breached between April 2010 and June 2010. This is a key indicator 
of affordability. 

  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 82



7.5. Interest Rate Exposures Indicator 
 
7.5.1. The Prudential Code also requires Local Authorities to set limits for the exposure to 

the effects of interest rate changes. Limits are set for the amount of borrowing/ 
investments which are subject to variable rates of interest and the amount which is 
subject to fixed rates of interest. Table 6 shows the interest rate exposure as at 30 
June 2010.   

 
 Table 6: Interest Rate Exposure: 

Interest Rate Exposure 
Fixed Rate 
of Interest 

Variable 
Rate of 
Interest 

Total 

    

Borrowings £278m £0m £278m 

Proportion of Borrowings 100% 0% 100% 

Upper Limit 100% 50%  

    

Investments £2m £133m £135m 

Proportion of Investments 1% 99% 100% 

Upper Limit 100% 100%  

    

Net Borrowing £276m £-133m £143m 

Proportion of Total Net Borrowing 193% -93% 100% 

 
7.5.2. The table above shows that borrowing is mainly at fixed rates of interest and 

investments are mainly at variable rates of interest. This was considered to be a 
good position while interest rates were rising as the cost of existing borrowings 
remained stable and the investments, at variable rates of interest, generated 
increasing levels of income.   

 
7.5.3. As the environment has changed to one of low interest rates the Treasury 

Management Team is working to adjust this position. This work is unfortunately 
restricted by a number of factors: 

• the level of uncertainty in the markets makes investing for long periods at fixed 
rates of interest more risky and, therefore, the Council continues to only invest 
short term at variable rates of interest; 

• Many of the Council loans have expensive penalties for early repayment or 
rescheduling which makes changing the debt position difficult.  

 
7.5.4. The Treasury Management Team will continue to work to improve the position within 

these limiting factors. 
  
7.6. Maturity Structure of Borrowing Indicator 
 
7.6.1. The maturity structure of the borrowing has also been set to achieve maximum 

flexibility with the Authority being able to undertake all borrowing with a short 
maturity date or a long maturity date. Table 7 shows the current maturity structure of 
borrowing. 
 

Page 83



 
 
Table 7: Maturity Structure of Borrowing 

 30 June 10 30 June 10  

Borrowings Maturity 
(years) 

£m % 

Total Short Term Borrowing Less than 1 year 14 5 

Long Term Borrowing Over 1 year under 2 years 14 5 

 Over 2 years under 5 years 57 21 

 Over 5 years under 10 years 28 10 

 Over 10 years  165 59 

Total Long Term Borrowing  264 94 

Total Borrowing  278 100 

 

 
8. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 Currently all Treasury Management activities are expected to be achieved in line 

with the 2010-11 budget.   
 
9. STAFFING IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 There are none arising out of this report. 
 
10. EQUAL OPPORTUNTIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 There are none arising out of this report. 
 
11. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 There are none arising out of this report. 
 
12. LOCAL AGENDA 21 IMPLICATIONS 
 
12.1 There are none arising out of this report. 
 
13. PLANNING IMPLICATIONS 
 
13.1 There are none arising out of this report. 
 
14. ANTI-POVERTY IMPLICATIONS 
 
14.1 There are none arising out of this report. 
 
15. SOCIAL INCLUSION IMPLICATIONS 
 
15.1 There are none arising out of this report. 
 
16. LOCAL MEMBER SUPPORT IMPLICATIONS 
 
16.1 There are none arising out of this report 
 
 

Page 84



 
17. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
17.1 Code of Practice for Treasury Management in Public Services – CIPFA 2009. 

Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities – CIPFA 2009. 
 
18. RECOMMENDATION 
 
18.1 That the Treasury Management Quarterly Monitoring Report be noted. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
IAN COLEMAN 
DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FNCE/135/10 

Page 85



Page 86

This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
COUNCIL EXCELLENCE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
21 SEPTEMBER 2010 
 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 
DELIVERING EFFICIENCY AND MEASURING AND REPORTING VALUE FOR 
MONEY GAINS IN LOCAL SERVICES  
 
1.  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1  This report presents the Value for Money Gains National Indicator 179 

(NI179) which has been submitted to the Department for Communities and 
Local Government (DCLG).  It was approved by the Cabinet on 22 July 2010. 

 
2.  INTRODUCTION 
 
2.1  The Comprehensive Spending Review 2007 (CSR07) released in Autumn 

2007 contained a number of value for money targets across the public sector. 
In October 2007 the DCLG published Delivering Value For Money in Local 
Government: Meeting the Challenge of CSR07 which was also known as the 
VFM Delivery Plan. This outlined the basic measurement and reporting 
criteria for value for money gains and highlighted differences from the 
previous Annual Efficiency Statement process.  

 
2.2 As part of the CSR a new and significantly reduced number of performance 

indicators was introduced. These included NI179 which was defined as Value 
for money – total net value of ongoing cash-releasing value for money gains 
that have impacted since the start of the 2008/09 financial year.  In line with 
the previous Government policy of reducing the administrative burdens on 
local government the DCLG no longer requires local authorities to produce an 
Annual Efficiency Statement (AES). Summarised NI179 data is submitted 
through a website based system called the Data Interchange Hub.  An 
estimate for the year is required each October with the actual figure for the 
year submitted the following July. 

 
2.3 CSR07 originally set a target for local government to achieve, relative to the 

2007/08 baseline, total annual efficiency gains of at least £4.9 billion by 
2010/11. This equated to cash releasing gains of 3% per annum and unlike 
the previous system there was no scope to include non-cash releasing items. 
The target was subsequently increased in the 2009 Budget to £5.5 billion 
reflecting an increase of in year efficiencies for 2010/11 to 4%. The cash 
releasing efficiencies are gains where there is a direct financial saving or 
benefit, with money released that could be spent elsewhere or recycled within 
a service to deliver better outcomes. 

Agenda Item 12

Page 87



 
2.4 Whilst every council was required to achieve efficiency savings it was not the 

intention that efficiencies cut services for users but that they were found by 
operating the business using a best business practice approach. Under 
CSR07 there is no individual target for each local authority but the 
requirement is for local government as a whole to produce 3%-4% annual 
cash releasing gains. DCLG has however provided details of how to calculate 
the baseline expenditure. 

 
2.5 In December 2008 the DCLG issued the Council Tax and Non-Domestic 

Rating (Demand Notices) (England) (Amendment) (No. 2) Regulations.  
These require local authorities to include efficiency information on Council Tax 
bills and within the accompanying Council Tax booklet from the 2009/10 billing 
round. This information is based upon the NI179 submission. 

 
3. ASSESSING EFFICIENCY GAINS 
 
3.1 The Baseline expenditure 
 
3.1.1 The Baseline expenditure was calculated from the 2007/08 local authority net 

revenue and capital expenditure forecasts excluding Schools and Benefits 
expenditure. A share of Passenger Transport Authority and Waste Disposal 
Authority budgets, based upon the proportionate share of the levies, is 
included. Under the new efficiency regime capital expenditure is now included 
within the Baseline. 

 
3.1.2. The Wirral Baseline spend was calculated at £351.2 million producing a 

cumulative efficiency target of £21.4 million for 31 March 2010. The DCLG 
also allows an alternative calculation based upon the 2007/08 outturn. For 
Wirral the outturn was £350.7 million which has only a marginal impact on the 
annual target. 

 
3.1.3 In accordance with the projections in CSR07 the cumulative efficiency targets 

for future years are 6.1% of the Baseline for 2009/10 (equates to £21.4 
million) and 10.3% for 2010/11 (equates to £36.2 million). 

 
3.2 Analysis of efficiency gains 
 
3.2.1 NI179 does not require efficiency gains to be analysed across prescribed 

headings as was the case with the Annual Efficiency Statement nor is there a 
prescribed format for providing any supporting information. The Appendix 
contains the analysis for Wirral which is broadly in line with the AES format 
using departments rather than service categories. 

 
3.2.2 Efficiency gains from the Passenger Transport and Waste Disposal 

Authorities have been apportioned in accordance with the levy. 

Page 88



 
3.3 Assessing efficiency gains 
 
3.3.1 The definition of ongoing cash-releasing gains relates to raising productivity 

and enhancing value for money. To be eligible, measures must evidence an 
improvement of outputs compared to inputs and not result in deterioration in 
the overall effectiveness of the service. Gains can occur through:-  

 

• Reduced inputs for the same or improved outputs. 

• Reduced unit costs to meet increased demand for service. 

• Increased demand for services and better income collection. 

• Reallocation of inputs from a low priority to a high priority area so that 
           the overall service effectiveness for a particular client group improves. 

• Asset optimisation and the sale of surplus, formerly operational assets. 

• Withstanding the impact of inflation. 
 
3.3.2 Activity not meeting the definition of ongoing cash-releasing gains include:  
 

• Improvements in service quality. 

• Any action leading to a reduction in overall effectiveness of a service. 

• Imposition of new or increased charges to the public or business. 

• Reclassification of activities not changing either inputs or outputs. 

• Transfer of costs and subsidies to other public sector organisations. 

• Arbitrary cuts in payments to the Voluntary and Community Sector. 
 
3.3.3 Eligible gains need to be ongoing for at least two years after first implemented 

and represent the potential to release resources for use elsewhere. Although 
improvements to service quality may be beneficial to Council Taxpayers, 
these cannot be counted. The NI179 calculation should be certified, and 
approved, by the Leader, the Chief Executive and the Chief Financial Officer 
of the Council. The DCLG expects that the principal measure of scrutiny will 
be through internal audit and assurance processes. However gains may be 
subject to external assessment by the Audit Commission.  

 
3.4 Key dates in delivering and reporting 
 
3.4.1 The timetable relating to NI179 reporting for 2009/10 was:- 
 

Date Action 

23 October 2009 Authorities submit forecast cumulative gains for 2009/10 

23 July 2010 Authorities submit actual cumulative gains 

 

Page 89



 
4. NATIONAL INDICATOR 179 2009/10 FORECAST 
 
4.1 The basic principles within the NI 179 framework are:- 
 

• When setting the annual budget the Council must identify actions to 
improve efficiency and quantify the estimated expected gains; 

• After the end of the financial year the Council must identify the impact of 
the actions taken for the year in question. 

• Claimed efficiency gains will only be valid if service quality has been 
maintained. 

 
4.2 The forecast for 2008/09 of £24,634,000 was submitted to the Data 

Interchange Hub in October 2009. This is substantially above the baseline 
requirement as it comprised cash releasing efficiencies within 2008/09 plus a 
large element relating to previous efficiencies. 

 
4.3 In recognition of the significant gains made within the 2004 Spending Review 

period the DCLG allowed authorities who exceeded the 2004 cash releasing 
efficiencies target to carry forward the amount of the excess above the target 
into the CSR07 period. 

 
4.4 The cash releasing efficiencies for 2009/10 were based upon those included 

within the 2009/10 revenue budget adjusted for those items (e.g. increases in 
fee income) which although producing benefits did not meet the defined 
criteria under NI179. The figures were refined in line with the predicted 
likelihood of achievement as per the monthly summary financial monitoring 
statement for September 2009. 

 
4.5 In determining the impact upon service delivery the Authority has used 

available performance data. However, the new national indicator set from 
2008/09 means that direct comparability between years has not always been 
possible.  

 
5. NATIONAL INDICATOR 179 ACTUAL 2009/10 
 
5.1 The Appendix sets out the Council strategy and provides details of the 

efficiencies achieved during the year. It also explains the linkages with partner 
agencies both through the Local Area Agreement, and through the provision 
of joined up customer services. It states the Council commitment towards 
improving its priority areas as well as keeping Council Tax at affordable levels 
with service re-engineering the key to identifying resources for re-allocation. 

 
5.2 The cumulative efficiencies at 31 March 2009 are £26.9 million. These are 

above the forecast figure and also well ahead of the target of £21.4 million 
essentially because the first year performance was boosted by the inclusion of 
the surplus efficiencies from the previous efficiency regime. 

Page 90



 
5.3 The key areas and issues for 2009/10 were:- 
 
 a. The various budget options included efficiencies from working with others 

as well as savings packages that encompassed increased income or the 
use of Government grants. The latter items, and some of the savings 
identified, were outside the scope of eligible efficiencies. 

 
 b. Retendering of a number of contracts produced significant efficiencies in 

the year including social care provision and gas and electricity contracts. 
 
 c. Continuing progress on Risk Management and Treasury Management 

initiatives again resulted in significant resources being released during the 
year. 

 
6. FINANCIAL AND STAFFING IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1  The calculated cumulative target for Wirral was to achieve efficiency savings 

of £21.4 million by 31 March 2010. 
 
6.2 The 2009/10 cash releasing efficiency gains total £9.1 million. These are 

added to the 31 March 2009 declared efficiencies of £17.8 million (including 
allowable gains of £8.1 million brought forward from the previous efficiency 
regime). This produces a cumulative total at 31 March 2010 of £26.9 million of 
cash releasing efficiency gains. 

 
6.3 There are no staffing implications arising directly from this report. 
 
7. EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
8. HUMAN RIGHTS IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
9. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 There are no specific implications arising from this report. 
 
10. LOCAL MEMBERS SUPPORT IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 There are no specific implications for any Member or Ward. 

Page 91



 
11. LOCAL AGENDA 21 IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
12. PLANNING IMPLICATIONS 
 
12.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
13. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
13.1. Delivering Value for Money in Local Government: Meeting the Challenge of 

CSR07 – DCLG October 2007. 
 
13.2. Measuring and Reporting Value for Money Gains – DCLG October 2008. 
 
13.3. Council Tax and Non Domestic Rating Demand Notices England Amendment 

Regulations – DCLG December 2008. 
 
14. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
14.1. That the Value for Money Gains National Indicator 179 submission be noted. 
 
14.2. That a further report be brought to Cabinet on the 2010/11 NI 179 estimate 

which will be due for submission in October 2010. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  IAN COLEMAN 
  DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 
FNCE/138/10 

Page 92



WIRRAL COUNCIL 

NATIONAL INDICATOR (NI 179) – 2009/10 ACTUAL 
 

Strategy  
 

The Council’s overall strategy is directly influenced by the citizens of the borough and driven to improving customer service and customer 
access. This is being achieved through linking with partner agencies in the provision of One Stop Shops, the continuing enhancement of the 
Corporate Call Centre and the developing of web-based channels of service delivery. 
 

The Council is committed towards improving the identified priority areas as well as keeping Council Tax at affordable levels. The use of 
available resources is being maximised and targeted towards key front-line services.  
 

Great importance is placed upon partnership working. A new multi-partner Local Area Agreement commenced during 2008/09, which included 
a shared Vision of Place for Wirral.  With the Local Strategic Partnership setting the overall vision and opportunities are taken within specific 
service areas. This includes Adult Social Services and joint commissioning with the health sector and the relationship with Wirral Partnership 
Homes following the transfer of the Council housing stock in 2005. 
 

Actions taken during 2009/10 
 

In delivering the targets the Council expanded upon the actions taken in the previous years and achieved further efficiencies through the following 
actions which have helped keep the Council Tax affordable and improve customer services. 
 
The overall Wirral Council Tax for 2009/10 represented a rise of 4.46% being below the prevailing rate of inflation and below the 5% maximum set 
by Government. This saw the sums allocated to the priority areas including £5.1 million to schools, £690,000 to support increased child protection 
demands following the baby Peter case, £280,000 of bridging finance for residential care for children and a range of policy options tackling crime, 
environmental and social issues. 
 
Inflationary rises of for 2% prices and contracts were built into the 2009/10 estimates with 1% percentage increase built in for pay awards.  A 
number of contracts in activity areas such as waste and Social Care saw increases beyond the inflation provision resulting in the need to deliver 
efficiencies to maintain existing services.  The demands for care continue to grow from an increasingly elderly population, from increasing 
numbers with complex needs and increasing numbers of looked after children. Whilst additional resources were input into these areas working 

with external agencies, particularly in respect of adults, delivered efficiencies to maintain services. 

P
a
g
e
 9

3



 
A series of cost reduction options totaling £12.7m were agreed as part of the 2009/10 budget. The cost reduction figures were reduced during 
the year following decisions regarding the Strategic Asset Review. Not all of reductions qualify under the strict ‘efficiency’ criteria required for 
the NI 179 definition. The sums included here in the return therefore reflect only those eligible.  
 
Included are savings from reduced residential and nursing fees and savings from a number of retendered Adult Social Services Contracts. 
Children’s residential care costs have also been reduced and savings made within the administration of Children and Young People services.  
The Central Procurement Support Unit continued to support the delivery of efficiencies through purchasing and further efficiencies were 
realised through Information Technology reviews. 
 

Information received from both Merseyside Integrated Transport Authority and the Merseyside Waste Disposal Authority regarding the 
apportionments to Wirral where received is incorporated within the return.  
 

The Council continues to secure benefits from the release of assets for disposal through asset management and also through pro-active risk and 
insurance claims management. The latter continued to produce significant savings in previous years with further reductions realised in 2009/10 
in releasing both sums set-aside for potential claims as well as for annual premium costs. 
 
Significant savings were again made in the year from treasury Management activities. Proactive management of our investments despite poor 
market conditions meant that investment returns were again above budget. Continued improvements in cash flow forecasting and management 
resulted in savings from the virtual elimination of temporary borrowing costs. However under the NI 179 regime whilst benefitting the authority 
and council tax payers many of the Treasury management savings are not eligible for inclusion within the indicator.  
 
 

P
a

g
e
 9

4



 

  Total net value of 
ongoing cash-releasing 
Value for money gains 
that have impacted 
since the start of the 
2008/09 financial year 

(£) 

Further ongoing cash-
releasing value for 

money gains achieved 
in 2009/10  

(£) 

Further ongoing cash-
releasing value for 

money gains achieved 
in 2010/11  

(£) 

Cumulative gains as at 
end of 2010/11  

(£) 

  

2,420,600 4,610,700 - 7,031,300  

Key actions undertaken to achieve efficiency gain: 
 
2008/09 
The continuing changes in the provision of domiciliary care achieved a net savings of £700,000 from the 
expansion of the home assessment and reablement team (HART) and a further £500,000 from the take up of 
assistive technology care by 533 service users in the year. 
The more efficient use of support services produced a further £400,000 of efficiencies by the re-organisation 
of the finance and performance branch. 
By working with the private sector gains of £130,000 from renegotiated care contracts were achieved. 
Reassessments and use of supported living arrangements rather than residential care produced efficiencies of 
£250,000 which were complemented by a further £170,000 net saving through re-provision from an in-house 
residential home to providing the service via the private sector. 
The level of pay inflation built into the budget for 2008/09 an efficiency gain of £270,600. 
2009/10 
Assistive Technology has produced savings of £1,300,000 in year. The renegotiation of Residential and 
Homecare contracts with providers has produced savings of a further £1,900,000. 
Efficiencies of £600,000 arose from renegotiated rates with Supporting Living providers with a further 
£400,000 from an invest to save scheme for care services. 
Transport tendering has produced £180,000 of savings and a further £100,000 arose from the review of 
administrative support. 
The departmental share of the 2009/10 savings from the Council wide renegotiated gas and electricity 
contracts was £130,700. 
 

Adult Social Services 

Quality crosscheck notes: 
 
2008/09 
Key areas where the time taken from referral to completed assessment increasing from 76.4% 

P
a
g
e
 9

5



in 2007/08 to 78% for 2008/09. People supported to live independently through Social Services 
(Adults) reached 2,842 against target of 2,186. Carers receiving needs assessment or review 
and a specific carers service, or advice and information 25.46% versus target of 18.0%. 
2009/10 
All age mortality rates for both men and women (NI120 a/b) have improved between 2008/09 and 2009/10. 
There was an increase in people being able to live independently through Social Services. 
The national indicator for carers receiving needs assessments or review and a specific carer’s service or 
advice and information continued to improve. 
The timeliness of the arrangement of care packages after assessment also showed good progress.   
 

Children's and Young People 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 TOTAL  

2,068,700 316,200 - 2,384,900  

Key actions undertaken to achieve efficiency gain: 
 
2008/09 
The reprovision of services through working with the private sector realised a transfer from in house provision 
which realised efficiencies of £525,000. 
In terms of reviewing support the review of operational support and Family Support Teams released 
efficiencies of £190,000 and £173,000 respectively whilst the rationalisation of the planning and resources 
support service released a further £421,000. Reductions in admin support and in contracts support allowed 
efficiencies of £119,100 to be achieved. 
The reconfiguration of the behavioural review programme generated £200,000 of efficiencies, 
Re-organising Youth offending services provided an additional £70,000 and a review of Social Welfare and play 
services commissioning provided savings of £123,000. 
The level of pay inflation built into the budget for 2008/09 an efficiency gain of £247,600. 
2009/10 
Efficiencies were achieved by reconfiguration of the Youth Service £150,000, facilities management savings of 
£25,000 and administration savings £80,000 from vacant posts. 
The departmental share of the 2009/10 savings from the Council wide renegotiated gas and electricity 
contracts was £61,200. 
A number of additional efficiencies were also achieved within this area, which do not score against the NI 179 
criteria. These included insurance reallocations on a claims basis to schools of £400,000 and fee income from 
music tuition. 
 

 

Quality crosscheck notes: 

P
a

g
e
 9

6



 
2008/09 
The progress made in transferring looked after children from the most expensive care through to lesser 
costing care continued. However, events elsewhere in the country in the latter part of the year resulted in an 
additional number of referrals such that the progress made was not sustained to the year-end. 
2009/10 
Significant improvements on previous years occurred both in the timeliness and stability of looked after 
children placements. 
Percentage of schools offering extended services to young people continued to increase. 
General educational standards continue to improve with the percentage of both those earning 5 or more A*-C 
grades at GCSE including English and Maths improving and those achieving 2 or more A*-C  grades in sciences 
increasing on the previous year.   
 

Regeneration (including Culture and 
Sport) 

2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 TOTAL  

284,700 845,700 - 1,130,400  

Key actions undertaken to achieve efficiency gain: 
 
2008/09 
A number of efficiencies within this area are not eligible under the criteria as they involve either reductions 
in service provision, increases in income or the use of grant income from other public bodies. 
Efficiencies were obtained by better use of IT (£28,700), a review of the finance function (£27,500) and the 
reorganization of supported housing (£14,300) 
The level of pay inflation built into the budget for 2008/09 an efficiency gain of £214,200. 
2009/10 
A number of efficiencies were achieved in year. These included a review of administration releasing £138,000 
Of savings, revised Supporting People contracts saving £86,300 and grant maximization of £107,000. Revised 
toilet cleansing operations released a further £70,000. The remaining £48,000 came from reducing 
administration in areas such as training, conference attendance and advertising. 
The departmental share of the 2009/10 savings from the Council wide renegotiated gas and electricity 
contracts was £336,400. 
A £60,000 efficiency was achieved through an invest to save scheme at the Wirral Tennis Centre. 
 

 

Quality crosscheck notes: 
 

P
a
g
e
 9

7



2008/09 
The year saw the refurbished Oval sports Centre and the new Floral Pavilion Theatre & Conference Centre 
opened with the latter winning a Best practice a ward at the Northwest Regional Construction Awards in 
2009. 
2009/10 
Percentage of vulnerable people achieving independent living increased  
Confirmation of the continued operation of the Guinea Gap Sports Centre (since extended further) occurred 
in the year. 
The national indicator for Adults undertaking exercise of 30 minutes or more at least 3 times per week 
continued to be within the target range. 
There was an Increase use of library facilities during the year. 
 

Technical Services 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 TOTAL  

1,105,000 724,100 - 1,829,100   

Key actions undertaken to achieve efficiency gain: 
 
2008/09 
The Environmental Streetscene Services contract which commenced in August 2006 continues to be further 
progressed through close working with the appointed contractor. A review of the waste contract and of 
contractual management released £186,600 whilst recycling rates continued to improve. The limited inflation 
awarded to the waste contract meant that efficiencies of £257,200 were generated to maintain the service 
level. 
Reviews of highways maintenance produced efficiencies of £358,000, whilst the ongoing rationalisation of 
support services and administration processes through the use of IT contributed a further £80,000. 
Reviews of traffic management, health and safety and building and control functions released 
efficiencies of £115,000.Extensions to streetscene contracts and energy conservation 
initiatives provided a further £35,000 of efficiencies. 
The level of pay inflation built into the budget for 2008/09 an efficiency gain of £73,200. 
2009/10 
Highways Engineering retendering produced savings of £320,000 in the year. The street lighting contract 
provided a further £317,000 of savings 
The departmental share of the 2009/10 savings from the Council wide renegotiated gas and electricity 
contracts was £42,100. 
The remaining £45,000 relates to administration and publicity savings. 
 

P
a

g
e
 9

8



Quality crosscheck notes: 
 
2008/09 
The % of household waste sent for recycling increased from 20.8% in 2007/08 to 22.6% in 2008/09. In terms of 
highways he number of killed or seriously injured road casualties decreased from 171 in 2007/08 to 145 in 
2008/09 
2009/10 
Percentage of waste sent for reuse, recycling and composting continued to rise. 
Improved rates for those killed or seriously injured in road traffic accidents was achieved for both children 
and the general population. 
 

Corporate Services, Law, HR and 
Asset Management 

2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 TOTAL  

392,500 230,200 - 622,700  

Key actions undertaken to achieve efficiency gain: 
 
2008/09 
Essentially around support a series of reviews were undertaken within Corporate Services to achieve 
efficiencies. These included the areas of strategic development staffing (£75,000), restructuring 
administration functions (£60,000), a similar exercise reviewing central services (£50,000). 
A restructuring the tourism and marketing and transformational change functions released £60,000 and 
£30,000 respectively whilst changes to the management and operation of legal and democratic services 
released a further £40,000. 
The level of pay inflation built into the budget for 2008/09 an efficiency gain of £77,500. 
2009/10 
Efficiencies were achieved by implementing the outcome of a series of reviews. These included reduced 
administration of employee administration and recruitment and payroll worth £125,000 and of legal and 
democratic services contributing a further £40,000. 
 The departmental share of the 2009/10 savings from the Council wide renegotiated gas and electricity 
contracts was £65,200. 
 

 

Quality crosscheck notes: 
 
2008/09 
The nature of these areas is essentially the provision of ‘back-office’ support to front-line services. 

P
a
g
e
 9

9



2009/10 
The authority achieved level 3 of the Equality Standard. There also a positive direction of travel for a number 
of HR indicators such as sickness and proportions of employees who are have a disability or are from a 
minority ethnic background.  
 

Finance Department 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 TOTAL  

1,550,400 1,006,700 - 2,557,100  

Key actions undertaken to achieve efficiency gain: 
 
2008/09 
The continuing review of Housing and Council Tax functions and improvements in controls resulted in 
efficiencies of £600,000. 
The creation of the Corporate IT Unit was further developed through increased integration and this resulted 
in £100,000 of savings. As the IT investment of previous years is developed additional benefits are achieved 
and the benefit of integrated systems provided further cash releasing efficiencies of £380,000 through 
reduced staffing and contract costs. A further £200,000 was achieved through systems support and new 
technology savings and £80,000 from reductions in call centre staffing. 
The content of the Corporate Procurement Strategy remains under annual review and the Procurement Unit 
continues to support departments in the delivery of efficiencies. This includes the use of e-auctions and the 
national solution operated by the Office of Government Commerce Buying Solutions. 
The level of pay inflation built into the budget for 2008/09 an efficiency gain of £190,400. 
2009/10 
A further review of Housing and Council Tax functions and improvements in controls resulted in efficiencies of 
£600,000 being released. The creation of the corporate IT unit and economies arising resulted in a further 
£100,000 of savings. 
Continued partnership working with Wirral Partnership Homes released another £140,000 of efficiencies. 
Procurement savings have continued to be been achieved by Corporate Procurement. These though have been 
reflected within individual departments savings. 
The reorganisation of student awards has contributed £50,000 of efficiencies. A further £50,000 has been 
saved from retendered insurance contracts for motor and engineering insurances and £10,000 from revised 
cash handling arrangements. 
The departmental share of the 2009/10 savings from the Council wide renegotiated gas and electricity 
contracts was £56,700. 
 

 

Quality crosscheck notes: 

P
a
g

e
 1

0
0



 
2008/09 
Despite the economic downturn Council Tax collection continued to improve with the 2008/09 rate of 96.7% 
slightly above the 2007/08 rate of 96.6%. The Audit Commission review of Access to Services rated the 
Council as good with promising prospects for improvement whilst their annual assessment of Use of Resources 
saw an improvement to performing well from adequate performance. 
2009/10 
The 2009/10 collection rate improved further to 96.8% despite the continuation of a difficult economic 
climate.   Housing benefit processing times showed a slight decrease despite an increased caseload. Contacts 
via the call centre increased and improvements in waiting times at the One Stop Shops were achieved. The 
percentage of suppliers paid within 30 days also increased. 
 

Miscellaneous 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 TOTAL  

746,300 462,200 - 1,208,500  

Key actions undertaken to achieve efficiency gain: 
 
2008/09 
 Further improvements in the cash flow forecasting resulted in a permanent reduction in the resources 
allocated towards the need for temporary borrowing allowing efficiencies to be delivered and re-invested into 
other services. A total of £550,000 being made available. 
The proactive approach to insurance and claims management produced further efficiencies. 
The property insurance retendering produced like for like savings of £101,800. This was then reinvested to 
provide increased coverage of areas previously not catered for such as flood damage from burst pipes. 
The year saw an increased focus on the management of the asset base which will deliver substantial 
efficiencies in future years. During 2008/09 the sale of surplus assets generated capital receipts of £1.8 
million. Equating this to the cash flow savings this amounts to £94,500. 
2009/10 
Application of the notified inflation rates to previous years on-going savings produced additional efficiencies 
of £390,700. 
The retendering of insurance contracts for motor and engineering insurances has been saved from a further 
£50,000 during the year. 
Interest earned on surplus capital receipts contributed £21,500 in the year. 
 

 

Quality crosscheck notes: 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

0
1



2008/09 
The improvements in Treasury Management received external recognition by the Local Government Chronicle 
as Wirral received the investment Officer of the Year Award 2008. 
2009/10 
The insurance fund was also able to contribute monies to the general fund balances at year end although this 
itself does not constitute an NI 179 Efficiency. 
 

 

Merseyside Waste Disposal Authority 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 TOTAL  

0 - - 0  

Key actions undertaken to achieve efficiency gain: 
 
Figures still awaited from Merseyside Waste Disposal Authority. 
 

 

Quality crosscheck notes: 
 
None. 
 

Merseyside Transport Authority 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 TOTAL  

919,600 880,700 - 1,800,300  

Key actions undertaken to achieve efficiency gain: 
 
Figures provided by Merseyside Integrated Transport Authority and apportioned in accordance with the levy 
figures.. 

 

Quality crosscheck notes: 
 
2008/09 
None. 
2009/10 
None. 
 

P
a
g

e
 1

0
2



Brought Forward from SR04 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 TOTAL  

8,351,200 - - 8,351,200  

Key actions undertaken to achieve efficiency gain: 
 
2008/09 
Under NI179 criteria any cash releasing efficiencies achieved as part of the previous efficiency regime (as part 
of SR2004 and reported through the Annual Efficiency Statement process to the Government) are allowed to 
be carried forward into the new regime (as part of CSR 2007). 
 

 

Quality crosscheck notes: 
 
2008/09 
The Annual Efficiency Statement Backward Look 2007/08 included cumulative cashable efficiencies of 
£33,748,000 compared to the target of £25,600,000. 
 

Total NI 179 Efficiency Gains 17,839,000 9,076,500 - 26,915,500  

 

CERTIFIED AND APPROVED BY:- 
 
 
 
 

Councillor Jeff Green Stephen Maddox  Ian Coleman 
Leader  Chief Executive  Director of Finance 

P
a
g
e
 1

0
3



P
a
g

e
 1

0
4

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
COUNCIL EXCELLENCE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
21 SEPTEMBER 2010 
 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 
CUSTOMER SERVICE FOCUS GROUP  
 
 
1.  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report details the work undertaken by Customer Services to ensure 

service standards are maintained and reviewed at the One Stop Shops, the 
Call Centre, and on the Web.  A number of ways are employed to do this and 
one undertaken in 2009/10 was the use of a Customer Focus Group.  The 
Council Excellence Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 8 July 2010 (Minute 
21) asked for more details on the Focus Group which this report provides. 

 
2.  BACKGROUND 

 
2.1  Customer Services provide three main access channels, face to face (via the 

One Stop Shop network), Call Centre and Web. 
 
2.2.  In order that both users and Members can have a measure of service quality 

there are Customer Care service standards.  These set timescales for 
responses and quality in handling enquiries which then have to be monitored.  
In order to minimise monitoring and ensure resources are maximised at the 
front line a variety of monitoring methods are used, ensuring a wide 
representation of views and results.  

 
2.3.  Timescales can in many cases be system monitored but quality is harder to 

measure.  This can be measured by using on site exit surveys, peer review 
(by another body), benchmarking with other local authorities, mystery 
shopping and responses from the Residents Survey.  Alongside this I use 
independent accreditation such as Charter Mark (now Customer Service 
Excellence standard), Investors in People, and Equality Framework for Local 
Government (Level 3) the latter two being achieved as part of a corporate 
project.  

 
2.4.  A further option is to access a small group of customers to be asked by an 

independent person for their detailed views which can sit alongside the 
exercises above. 

Agenda Item 13

Page 105



 
3.  CUSTOMER FOCUS GROUP  

 
3.1 The Group was set up by Mott McDonald an independent market research 

agency in Liverpool which includes the former Merseyside Information 
Service.  Their role was to set up the Group, administer it and report back.  
They were supported by one member of the Customer Service Team who 
acted as link and set out what needed to be covered by the Group. 

 
3.2.  The people used were members of the public who on contact with the Council 

had given their name as being willing to be contacted further.  When 
contacted by Mott McDonald they agreed to attend a one off meeting to air 
their views on Customer Services.  A total of six unidentified people were 
used to help form the report.  This was felt by the facilitators to be an 
appropriate number in being able to bring out each person’s own view and not 
to be lost in a larger group.  

 
3.3. The idea behind this information is to understand customer needs and 

preferences.  This group of local residents was used to explore and define 
what constitutes good customer service.  The independent facilitator helped 
generate discussion and responses on subjects such as general views on 
good and poor customer service, experience of contacting the Council (ease 
of doing so and quality), and ongoing preferences in methods of contact.  

 
3.4. The intention is to use such direct consultation, supported by customer 

feedback analysis, satisfaction surveys and exit interviews to provide the 
services customers require, at the appropriate time and using the most 
relevant delivery channel. 

 
3.5. The small number of people used was sufficient to create a detailed report.   

However it is accepted that such a small number cannot drive a strategy but is 
a useful addition to help balance, reinforce or counterpoint results from other 
methods. 

 
4.  REPORT SUMMARY AND OUTCOMES 

 
4.1 I have attached as an appendix the report which details the views of the 

Group on general customer service and what was thought of the Wirral 
Council contacts. 

 
4.2.  The key outcomes can be summarised as: 
 
4.3.1. One Stop Shops – were felt to generally respond to expectations. 
 
4.3.2. Telephone responses (Council wide not Call Centre specific) - overall there 

was felt to be a need to improve handling of calls as people were passed 
around and had to explain their issue again.  This was linked to having well 
trained and knowledgeable call handlers. 

 

Page 106



4.3.3. Website had thus far seen little direct use by the Group and they identified 
that whilst easy to find they would want information to be up to date and to 
have it as a tool to follow up their own enquiry or complaint thus reducing 
direct contact.  This replicates some of the work already done for example in 
Revenues and Benefits where a person can log in and see their own 
information.  This then needs to extend to being able to follow up other 
service enquiries.  Currently the most likely way forward is via the Customer 
Relationship Management system or on a system by system basis.  
Suggestions were made in regard of how the website could be made more 
user friendly and since this report was prepared the new website has been 
launched.  

 
4.4.  Key customer service improvements the Group suggested were: 

§ Keeping customers informed; 
§ Reducing the number of times customers explain their problem when 

being passed around between departments; 
§ Better overall communication between customer and Council; 
§ Improve follow up care to contacts. 

 
4.5.  On Customer Care standards the Group acknowledged the breadth of 

enquires the Council dealt with which may affect the time taken to respond but 
in general a 15 day response time to either an enquiry or a complaint was 
now felt to be too long and this should be a maximum with an earlier 
acknowledgement provided. 

 
5.  NEXT STEPS 

 
5.1.  This Group was set up as a one off to assist Customer Services to balance 

the range of information received.  Should it be necessary to run the Group 
again then it would be annually or more likely two yearly.  Any reconstitution 
of the Group would almost certainly not involve any previous participants.  

 
5.2.  These views will prove helpful in delivering customer services in the best way 

possible, identified areas that need to be reconsidered under the Customer 
Care Standards and how they may be addressed. 

 
6.  FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 

6.1.  The cost of the focus group was £1,625.  This was funded from the Customer 
Services budgets. 

 
7.  STAFFING IMPLICATIONS 

 

7.1.  There are none arising out of this report. 
 
8.  EQUAL OPPORTUNITY IMPLICATIONS 

 

8.1  There are none arising directly from this report. 

Page 107



 
9.  HUMAN RIGHTS IMPLICATIONS 

 

9.1.  There are none arising directly from this report 
 
10.  LOCAL AGENDA 21 IMPLICATIONS 

 

10.1.  There are none arising directly from this report. 
 

11.  COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

 

11.1.  There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
12.  PLANNING IMPLICATIONS 

 

12.1  There are none arising directly from this. 
 
13.  LOCAL MEMBER SUPPORT IMPLICATIONS 

 

13.1.  There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
14.  BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 

14.1. Wirral Council Customer Service Focus Group Findings – Mott MacDonald – 
January 2010. 
 

15.  RECOMMENDATION 

 

15.1.  That the report be noted. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 IAN COLEMAN 
 DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 

FNCE/152/10 
 

Page 108



�

���������	
�����	������
�����������	�����	��

��
��
�������
�

�	����������
��
��

��
	��������
�

���������	
���

� �

� �

Page 109



Page 110



�

�

���� �� !"#� !"$� �� ��

%&'(��������'!"#'%��)���'���� ���������$*���	��������������
��'���������	
�����	���������������	��������+����������,�

�����
	���������

�

� �

���������	
�����	������
�����������	�����	��
��
��
��������

�	����������
��
���

��
	���������

���������	
����

�

$��$��#�
���-�./�0�����+�����(�����*	����
�-�%����1���-�(���������(2���1-�3
����4�
�����

"�5..6�7������2��.2.2�����5..6�7������2����..�����8889�����9����

"�8
�1���-�*���/�
�����-���������-�������-��1..�:;#�

Page 111



Page 112



�

�

���������	
�����	�����������������	�����	����
��
��������
� �

$��$��#�
���-�./�0�����+�����(�����*	����
�-�%����1���-�(���������(2���1-�3
����4�
�����

"�5..6�7������2��.2.2�����5..6�7������2����..�����8889�����9����

��������� 	
��� �����
��� ������� ������� 	����������

<� � =��=����� ����/��8�
� >��?����@�/���� 4���������� ���������	
�����	��������������
���	�����	����
��
��������

� �

�

�

�

�

� � � � � �

� � � � � �

� � � � � �

� � � � � �

� � � � � �

!��	���
���������
��������

"/������	��
�������	���0���/�������8/��/����������
�����

�
��0��������0����	���������

�����8�/�/���@���,�����
���

���)����
��9�!��/�	���
��@���������	��
�@���
���/�����������

	����0����
���/����	�����9���

�

�

���������
�������
��@�����0���/����
��A	�
�����0�/���

���	��
�@��
���������	��
�@���
���/�������-����@��
��	����

0����
���/����	�����-������
��
�
���
������������������
�

8/��/�����	�����
�����������������
��
������	���������	��@��

�/����������

"/������	��
���
��
����
0���
�����
0������
��
�������������

�
�����	����������9�!��/�	���
��@���/�8
����/����������

8�/�	���
��
�0����	���
��0����/�������8/��/�

���������
����9�

Page 113



Page 114



�

���� �=!"#=!"$=�=�������
	����������
%&'(��������'!"#'%��)���'���� ���������$*���	����������������'���������	
�����	���������������	��������+����������,�
6>�79����
�

���������	
�����	�����������������	�����	����
��
��������
� �

��
���� ������ �
���

;B��	�����	������ ��

�9� !
���	���
� ��

�9�� !
���	���
CCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCC ��
�9�� *��?���	
��!
0������
 CCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCC ��
�92� $�/�������CCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCC ��
�9.� "������	���� CCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCC ��
�9�� <
��������0���� CCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCC ��

�9� ��
��
��� 2�

�9�� �	�������������CCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCC 2�
�9�9�� ����CCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCC 2�
�9�9�� *��CCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCC .�
�9�� ������ CCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCC ��
�9�9�� !
������
 CCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCC ��
�9�9�� *���/�
� CCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCC  �
�9�92� *���
��
� CCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCC  �
�92� %�����
�� CCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCC :�
�929�� ����CCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCC :�
�929�� *��CCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCC ��
�9.� !��������
�CCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCC ���
�9�� �	�������������
����� CCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCC ���
�9�9�� "��������� CCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCC ���
�9�9�� �������
� CCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCC ���

<���
������ �.�

<���
��B�<9� "������	��� CCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCC ���

�

��
�
�

Page 115



�

��

���� �=!"#=!"$=�=�������
	���������
%&'(��������'!"#'%��)���'���� ���������$*���	����������������'���������	
�����	���������������	��������+����������,�
6>�79����

�

���������	
�����	�����������������	�����	����
��
��������
� �

$��$��#�
����8������������
���@�����������	
�������������	�A	���������������/�8�/�	�����

�0����������	
������
������
�9��3�����/�����
��������������	
������/����
������
���/��D
��

�����/�������@������/�
�9�

"/�����
��	�������0�/����������/�8�����������
��8/���	��������������������������
��@���

�	�������������-�/�8�/������������/�������������������@�����������	
�����
��8/��

���������
����	���@���
���	���9�
�

������������	�

"/��0����8�
���	��
���/��0�
��
���0����/��0��	�����	�&�

�	���������������
���
�����8�������	������
�������0�8/����
��	���������
��@����������9�

%�������
��0���/���������������/���/����B�����
����8�����00�����
���-������0������-�8/����
/����8���8���,���
�����00�8�/��������
�@����
��0���
������	��9���

%�������
��������/����?���0������0���������	��������������E�������
?�������00&�


��������	�����������	������	��������

�9� %������
������������@����
0������
�

�9� <8�����0�������
�F��
������9�9����	���

29� �	00����
�
	�@�����0���00��������8�/��	�������

.9� 4
�8������@�����00�

�9� !��
�0��@�����00�

�9� %���������	����0���00��9�9������/���-�����
�

+���������
���0�@�������������
�����
�/����
�/��0�������������
��/�������
�8���
��0���
������
�������
0������
9����

%�������
��/��/���/���/��?���0������/����������������8�/�@����	�������������&�


��������	����������	������	��������

�9� *�����	���
�9� !
��00���
������	������F�
�����
29� 3
�������
0������
�
.9� %���������	
��0�����������
����������
�
�9� ;B�	����0���
�
���������
�9� (��?��0�?
�8�����=�
0������
�
 9� ����
�������
:9� 4����
�������������
�

�

;B��	�����	������

Page 116



�

���

���� �=!"#=!"$=�=�������
	���������
%&'(��������'!"#'%��)���'���� ���������$*���	����������������'���������	
�����	���������������	��������+����������,�
6>�79����

�

���������	
�����	�����������������	�����	����
��
��������
� �

����������������

"/��0��	���0�/������	����
�/�
��/�0��������������	
���9����/�����������/��������0���
���
��
���������	
�������
��
�8������������
����������
������	�����/�����B�����
�����0���
��9���

������������	�

%�������
����
����/��D
�������/������������/��������9�D
�������/����/��/����������
8����0�	
����@����������������@��-�8����8���,��������
�@	����	������������������@�������
��
�����0�/��D
�������/����/����������?�9�

"/�����
�
��������0�/��D
�������/����8����
�����������
���
������8������	����/��/��
D
�������/����8�������
�@�8��
��,��$�
���������������/�����������9��%�������
��8�	���
��8������?���	���/���8�	������@�8��
�/����������
��8����/������������9���


�����������	�

%�������
����
��������0�
��
��/�����/���	
����
	�@���������������/0��8�����
������-�8�/���
������@����
�D
�������/����
0������
-����������������0����/����	
��������
�/�������8������9���
!�8���0���/�����@�����������8/�
������
��������������	
�8�/�	��������
0������
9��
+������
���=�8��/@�����8��?�����0�
����
��?
�8�/�8��������
������A	����/�����
��
�����������@���	�9�


������	�

��8���������
��/�������������������/�����������	
����8�@���9��1�8����-�/����/��/���
0�	
�����������0�
��/��	�/���������
��0���/��8�@����8���0	
���
����
���������	����
��
������/���
0������
�
�����9�

����/�
��/����������
��8���������
��������
�����
���
�/��8�@����8���������8/����/���
��	�������
�������/������������0�A	�����-��������
�������������/��8�����	�����?�������9��!0�
/�����	���@�����������/���0�����8�	������	���/��
�����������/����	
��������?�8/����/����
A	�������	������9�

"/������������
��8/��8����8����
����	���/��8�@����������0�
�0���/��/��0����8�
��8�	���
��?����������������&�

�� <�)�@�
	�@��������
���0����
��A	�����	@��������/���/��������/�
����
������
��/�����

���������0�������0G���

�� <����������0����������
�������	���������
�@���	���/������/�
��8����@����
�G�

�� 3���������
0������
��
���������/��/�����	���������������0���������0�����G�

�� ���������
���
	�@�����
���������0�����00��
���00���
��������
��/����������
�����


��������
���8�/�	��������
��/��	�/�����
�������
9�

�

����	�����	������������	��

"/�����	������	�����/����������	���B�����
����0���	
������
���&�

Page 117



�

����

���� �=!"#=!"$=�=�������
	���������
%&'(��������'!"#'%��)���'���� ���������$*���	����������������'���������	
�����	���������������	��������+����������,�
6>�79����

�

���������	
�����	�����������������	�����	����
��
��������
� �

������B�����
���������������������/��������
�/���@�8��
�/���	�������
��/����	
���G�
���	��
���
�/���	������0����
���������
0���
��
�/����	
����8/��/���������
��0�����
�/����
	
���/�����������
��/�����	��0������
��������B�����
��9�

1�8�������������
�����������@�����������0����/����	
����@�������������
��	�G�/��������
�/���
@�8��
��	�������
����	
��������@�������������/���0����/��/����	
��������
������
��
��
/�������
��8��/�0��/�
��0���/������	��&�

���	�������������������������������
�

%�������
����
������/��/����	
������
����������������
��B�����
�������������	�/��������
�
����������H
���������F����������
�����������8�������
��
��
�/�����	���
��/�����@����0���00�
/����
��	
��9�

�����������	���
"�����������	���������������/��0����8�
���������/���8�����	�������@����������
�&�

�� 4�����	��������
0�����G�

�� $�������
�
��0�����00G�

�� +��	���/�������/���	������/�������B����
�/���������8/�
�����������	
�G�

�� !�����������	
�����
�@�/�8�/�
�/����	
�����
��8�/�/���	�����G�

�� ���/��H�B�������FG��

�� !�������0����8�	�����������
���9�

�

��	�������������������	�
>�
���0�/����������
��8�����8�����0������0����	�������������
�������
�����/���������
�
8�������
���������0�/���	�������������
�������0����������	
����������	��G�

�����������
!
�������0�8/�/���/����	
����8�����������
������
��8�/����	������
��
�8��������8�/�/��
���	�������
���
��/�����������	�������00���
��
��8���-�/���0���-����?������00���
������
���0����
/����	
���9�����

"/������������0���������8���0�����@�������
����8���0����������
��-�/�8���������������
H8�/�
��������F��0��������8�	���@��/����B��	��E�/���8�����
��������������@����0������
��?
�8������
�8���������������9���

����������
<�����������
��0���/���0�/���8����	
/�����8�/�/����������/������������@��/����	
����/�
�
/���8�	����������
��@�	��9��"/���0���/��/���8�	���8�
��������
������������
��6�����
�������?
�8�������
��07�/�����������
�8�/�
�/�������
��8�	���
��0�
����������@�����8���
�������9��!�8���0���/����/���/�
�8���
��0���������������@��������������������
������
�������
�
�/�������0�/����	
�����
��/����/�	���8�
�����������������
���������@��9���3�������-�
��������
��/���/��/��B������
���@�	�/�8�/�����������
���/�	���@�������8�/9��!�8���������
/����?
�8�����
�����������
�A	��?�����
�/�����
���00	��
����	���
���
����������������������
������E�����
��������00�����?�����/�����?
�8������
9�

Page 118



�

���

���� �=!"#=!"$=�=�������
	���������
%&'(��������'!"#'%��)���'���� ���������$*���	����������������'���������	
�����	���������������	��������+����������,�
6>�79����

�

���������	
�����	�����������������	�����	����
��
��������
� �

�

Page 119



�

��

���� �=!"#=!"$=�=�������
	���������
%&'(��������'!"#'%��)���'���� ���������$*���	����������������'���������	
����
�	���������������	��������+����������,�6>�79����

�

���������	
�����	�����������������	�����	����
��
��������
� �

���� ������������

$��$��#�
����8������������
���@�����������	
������������

�	�A	���������������/�8�/�	������0����������	
������
���

���
�9��3�����/�����
��������������	
������/����
������
���

/��D
�������/�������@������/�
�9�

"/�����
��	�������0�/����������/�8�����������
��8/��

�	��������������������������
��@����	�������������-�/�8�

/������������/�������������������@�����������	
�����
��8/��

���������
����	���@���
���	����@�����������	
���9�

���� �
������������ 
�����

"/����������/�0����8���
�0������A	�
�������	������
�8/��/�����

�	��������0�D
�������/�����
��/������/�
����
������

8�����
�����8��9�"/���	�����8��������
�������������

�
0������
������
����������F���
A	��������/����	
�����
��	��
��

��/�����0���
��-��
A	����������-�����0����
�8�/�/����������

����������
���	������
��0������������
�9��

��!� "���������#�

D
��0��	�����	������	����
���?��������
�/����/���
	��������9��

<�����������
��8�������8
�0����/��A	�
�������������/�

�������8/��/�������������?�������
�0����8�	���������/9����

"/�����	���������9��/����
��8���/������/��(�	���F����
����
�

*��?�
/���9�

;��/���������
����������I��������/�
?���	�0���/���������
����

�������
���B��
�����
�	����9�

��$� ������%������

"/��������	����6������@����
�����
��B�<7�8��������
���@��$��

$��#�
������00��
���
)	
���
�8�/���00�0�������������	
���9��

"/��������	�����8���������
���������	���������������0���A	�����

�������
���
�	���/���	�/��
0������
�8������������0���

�
������9��"/��0��	�����	���	�������?������0����������������/��

��
�������
��
���
�	�������������8�����������-�8�/�	�

�
���	��
��@�����
����?���	���/�������@����H/���/�������F9�

�9� !
���	���
�

Page 120



�

��

���� �=!"#=!"$=�=�������
	���������
%&'(��������'!"#'%��)���'���� ���������$*���	����������������'���������	
����
�	���������������	��������+����������,�6>�79����

�

���������	
�����	�����������������	�����	����
��
��������
� �

��&� ��
�#��������
�
�

;��/��0�/��0��	�����	���8������������@��$��$��#�
����

��00��
���	��������������
�����������������������@������������0�

�����
����/����	���@�����������	��
�������
������9��<���

�������
���8���������������
0���
�����
��	��
��
������
��

�����������0���������
�9�"/��	�/�	�/���������
�������
��

�������@	������
�����	�����������
�9��

"/���
�������������	����
�������/���	�/����

�
���0�/��

�������
��-����8�
���	�/��/�	�/�-��B�����
�����
�������
�
��

�0�/����������
����	
�����
��/��?���/������
�����	��
��

�0����/�����	����
9��<���	
���@�������	����
�8���/�
�/����@��

/�����)�������8/����/����?���/�����8����0	�/�������	�����

�
���
������9�

Page 121



�

2�

���� �=!"#=!"$=�=�������
	���������
%&'(��������'!"#'%��)���'���� ���������$*���	����������������'���������	
����
�	���������������	��������+����������,�6>�79����

�

���������	
�����	�����������������	�����	����
��
��������
� �

"/��0����8�
���	��
���/��0�
��
���0����/��0��	�����	�&�

���� ����� ��'������

�	���������������
���
�����8�������	������
�������0�8/��
��
��	���������
��@����������9�

������ %����

!
�����
������������
���0����������������
�����
���00��
��
��00���	���-��
�����
��/�����������
������
���
������
�	����������������?��/������	��9��%�������
��0���/�������
��������/���/����B�����
����8�����00�����
���-������0������-�
8/����/����8���8���,���
�����00�8�/��������
�@����
��0���
����
��	��9���

!�8���
����/���0�
�/����	����0���00����@�����������
��
�
�
�H��	���8
���	��F�������	������E���8��8�������	
�����
&�

���������������������������������������
��

%�������
����	���
����������
�������0��������
����/�����������
�����	������������������G���/�	�/��
����������
�0���/��<�#<�
�������������������������/������
�������������?����A	�	���
��8
��
�����
����
���������
���
���0�/�������0�����/����
�/�����
����/��������0�
��
���/	������@����������	��
��/����
�	
�/�@���?9��"/����������
�0���/��/���8����
��B�������0�
����������������/����������@��
�������
������
����
���������0�
/���	������F�
����9�

%�������
��������/����?���0������0���������	��������������E�
������
?�������00&�


��������	�����������	������	��������

�9�%������
������������@����
0������
�
�9�<8�����0�������
�F��
������9�9����	���
29��	00����
�
	�@�����0���00��������8�/��	�������
.9�4
�8������@�����00�
�9�!��
�0��@�����00�
�9��������	����0���00��9�9������/���-�����
�

3�������-��������-��
/	��������
�������
�@�����00�8����
��
��������"1;�?�����������	���������������
��8���,���
���
�
��/���0	����00���
�����	���
���
���/������@������
��
���	��9��

�9� ��
��
���

Page 122



�

.�

���� �=!"#=!"$=�=�������
	���������
%&'(��������'!"#'%��)���'���� ���������$*���	����������������'���������	
����
�	���������������	��������+����������,�6>�79����

�

���������	
�����	�����������������	�����	����
��
��������
� �

������ �
���
%�������
��0�	
���������
���
������	���
��@������������	�/�
��������	�����
��/��������
��	
���@����������������
���	�������
��/��@�������������������������@��9���

%�������
��0�	
��/�����
�����
��
0�	�
���/�������0���������
/�����������9�������B�����-�/���0���/����0�
����������@���
����������/��8��?�
����/���/�
��
�/��8��?9��!�8���0���/���
8����	����/��/��/������	����0��	�������/����00�/�����������
8�/9��<������8���0���/����/��8��?�
��/����0�
��
��	
�����
��	
�����,������00�8/������	
�
��������
�/����8��?��
��
�	������F�
����9�

!�8����������/���
�<��������	��������������8���J0�
����K�
�
��/��J/�����	���
������
�	�/�0�����	K�8/�����
�/��34�/���
8���
��/����������"/�������
�0���/���8���0�����@��/�����
�	�	���/��������	�����
�<��������
��
���
�/��34G���������	����
8���0���/����
�����@�����0���00�/����
���
��
���������/��
H�B�������F�0����	������9�

+���������
��0�@�������������
�����
�/����
�/��0�����
��������
��/�������
�8���
��0���������
�������
0������
9�<��
�
��B�������0�@������������
��	
����-�������������
��
��
��
�����
��A	�	����
�@�
?���
��
����������0��������
��	
�����009��!�8���0���/���8����0�
��	����/����00����
��
��
�����
��8�/����/��	�������00���
��6�����
�7�/����
����00���
�
����������
�������@��9�

<
�/���0�	�����
�8�����00��/��
�����	�������/��/���
?
�8�0�������
�/��0�������	��
���/����	���������8���0���
��
���9�

"/�������	���8����0	�/����B����@����@��/���
�	00����
�

	�@�����0���00��
�/����	
����E�����/�
��/����
��0���/���
����	�������������������
������������/�������9�

<������@�������@�
?��8��������������������������	������
�������-���8���
����/��0�8�@�
?��/����������������������?�
�
����
���	������������?��/���
��������0������?�
��0�����A	��?�
�����
��/��@�
?-�/��/���/�
��/��������
����0��������@�����0���
�	������9�

%�������
��/��/���/���/��?���0������/����������������8�/�
@����	�������������&�


��������	����������	������	��������

�9�*�����	���

Page 123



�

��

���� �=!"#=!"$=�=�������
	���������
%&'(��������'!"#'%��)���'���� ���������$*���	����������������'���������	
����
�	���������������	��������+����������,�6>�79����

�

���������	
�����	�����������������	�����	����
��
��������
� �

�9�!
��00���
������	������F�
�����
29�3
�������
0������
�
.9�%���������	
��0�����������
����������
�
�9�;B�	����0���
�
���������
�9�(��?��0�?
�8�����=�
0������
�
 9�����
�������
:9�4����
�������������
�

<���
���8���������/��������	��������������������
����
�
0�	�
����@����00��
��/���������
���9�

�

���� (�
��

"/��0��	���0�/������	����
�/�
��/�0��������������	
���9����/�
����������/��������0���
���
�����������	
�������
��
�8���
���������
����������
������	�����/�������0��������/�����0�
��
��9���

$�
�����0��������
���0���,�,0���9�"/����8/���������/��D
��
�����/�������/��0�������
��0���
���0���/��8/�
���
���
��
@���/�
��/������	����
=����	
�����
���
�0��������������
��
�������
��/�-���������	�-��������
��������������-�������00������
�
���������
�/��������
������
���/��D
�������/��9���

��
�����/��D
�������/���8���0�����@��H0����������F��0���	�
/�������/��������8���E�8/��/���
�@�������
����	��E��
��/��
D
�������/����8������������0���/�����	
��0��
0������
�/��
/���/����������@��&�

�����������������������������������������������������
�

D/���-�8/��	�	�������
�����@���/�
�-�/��������8�/���/�
��
��
���8���0�
���
��/����0�
���������/�/��	�/��
��/���/����
���������������00����
��9���

%/�
�
��/����	
������������
��/��D
�������/���8����/������
���0���@�����/�����0���
��-��
����������
�/�����
�����/��
��	
�����
�8���
��0����
������@��������00������8/�����
���/���
��������
�/���	����/��8�@�������@��
�������
0������
9�

$�����������
���
��������
���/����	
����H����
��8/�
F�
/���
����������/���/�
��
������	����@����9��"/����������
��
���@��
��8�������������2,.������������9�

;��/���
�����	��8���/�
��B���
����
�����������9�

Page 124



�

��

���� �=!"#=!"$=�=�������
	���������
%&'(��������'!"#'%��)���'���� ���������$*���	����������������'���������	
����
�	���������������	��������+����������,�6>�79����

�

���������	
�����	�����������������	�����	����
��
��������
� �

������ ���������

%�������
����
����/��D
�������/������������/��������9�
"/�����
��	����$����
-�+��?������-�*�@�
��
-���������-�
1��8�����
����
8���%��?9�

<�����������
��0���/��/��D
�������/���/��/����������8���
�������������������@����
��8����8���,��������
�@	����	������
������������@�����9��"/���8��������������
����0���/���
������
���?���������0�/��D
�������/���&���

���	��������������������������� ���� ���������������������������
��!������ ����������	���������������������
�

�/�
�/�
?�
���@�	�8/�/���/���������
�	�/�D
�������/����
��������������������������/��/����8���-��
����������
�8���
��
���
����@�	�/���	������
���������0�������-�$����
���
3��
-��
��8/�/���/����8�����
�	�/�H�	�/��8��F9��1�8����-�
�
���
�����/�����	��0���8���,�������@��/��
	�@����0�D
������
�/�����
�������&�

�"!���������!������������	������	��������������
�

"/�����
�
��������0�/��D
�������/����8����
��
���
�
��	����?
�8
�@���
����������
�9��1�8�����/���8���
��
���������
���
������8������	����/��/��D
�������/����
8�������
�@�8��
��,��$�
���������������/�����������9��
%�������
��8�	�����8������?���	���/���8�	������@�8��
�
/����������
��8����/������������9���

!�8���0���/������
��/�=8��?�
���8�	���@��@�
�0���������/���
	������
���������/�
��/��/����	
�����/�	�����
������
�
���	��
���
��������
�9�

<���)�����/���0�	
��������������/0��8������0�
��/�����/�
�����
�������?����
�D
�������/��G���	��������/�/��
�������
��
��/���������
����0�������	��
���/�����/��������9��
%�������
����	���
��������@����������/�
�/����
��8����
���������0����8�/�/������
����
&���

���	������������������������������������������������	�	����
�

1�8����-�/��8���
���������D
�������/����8�����0�
�
���������-����/��/���/�������
�������
��������0�@����	������
�������9��%�������
��0���/����D
�������/����/�������
�������
�
�8���
��������
��0���/���0��
���������������
����
������
���
������
������8�/����	������/����/�	������������/���
���������/�����8���
������9��1�8����-��
���������/���

Page 125



�

 �

���� �=!"#=!"$=�=�������
	���������
%&'(��������'!"#'%��)���'���� ���������$*���	����������������'���������	
����
�	���������������	��������+����������,�6>�79����

�

���������	
�����	�����������������	�����	����
��
��������
� �

��
���
-�����0���/��/������
����
��8���
���0�/�������������
/���	�/����������
��/����/����A	������������9��

������ �#�������

%�������
����
��������0�
��
��/�����/���	
����
	�@����������
�����/0��8�����
������-�8�/���������@����
�D
�������/���
�
0������
-����������������0����/����	
��������
�/�������8�
�����9��1�8����-���8�������
���
�/���0�	��
�����������
�
A	������/�����������������/���
�������
	�@�������/����
�0�
��
��	����/��8��
���������
����	��
���
�0�	�����
9���

!0�/���/��������������������0����/����	
�����������/�������
��
0���
�/���
	�@��������8�������/9��1�8����-�8/�
������
��
������������	
�8�/�	��������
0������
����@�������
�������8/�
�
���
����0�
��/�����/��������
9��+������
���=�8��/@�����
8��?�����0�
���
F�?
�8�/�8��������
������A	����/�����
��
�����������@���	�9�

%�������
������/�����B��������0�@��
��H����������	
�F�8/�
�
�����
��E��0�
������
�����B����
�
��/�����������
	�@����0�
����9��<
��B�������0�8/��/�8�������
�@���
����������
�8/��
�������<�	�������������������
���������������	
����B���00���
�
�������8/������
��?
�8�/�8��������8�/�/���A	���9��;��
	�����
/���	������0�	
��/���
0������
�
�������00�/���
��
�-�0����
����
���������
��
�8�@����
��/�����������	
����8�@���9�

D��
�
�������8������
��������0�
���
��
�
���
�/�����	��/���

�����������������������������������
�����
�����
�
�������0��
�
�8�/�/���������9��"/���
���
�������8���/���
����������
�
�����/���
���/���/�����������
��/��
	�@���/���@��
�
�
�������
��/�����?�����������
��	
���/��
	�@���8���0����E�
/�8�����/���8�����?������@���B�������������
�����9�

����!� �#���������

��8���������
��/�������������������/�����������	
����
8�@���9��1�8����-�/����/��/���0�	
�����������0�
��/��	�/�
������9���

"/����8/��/������������/��8�@��������������@��
�
�
0������
��
����

�
�����������
��
��@�
���������
��
��@�/�
��������
�������/����
0������
�8���0�	
��8�/�
��
������
/�
������/����	
���9��"/���0�	
��/��8�@����0	
���
����
�������
��	����
��������/���
0������
�
�����9�

����/�
��/����������
��8���������
��������
�����
���
�/��
8�@����8���������8/����/�����	�������
�������/������������0�
A	�����-��������
�������������/��8�����	�����?�������9��!0�/���

Page 126



�

:�

���� �=!"#=!"$=�=�������
	���������
%&'(��������'!"#'%��)���'���� ���������$*���	����������������'���������	
����
�	���������������	��������+����������,�6>�79����

�

���������	
�����	�����������������	�����	����
��
��������
� �

��	���@�����������/���0�����8�	������	���/��
�����������/��
��	
��������?�8/����/����A	�������	������&�

���	���������������������	����������������� ������������������	�
����������������
�

"/����8/�����
���������/��8�@�����/����
�������
����	����
/���
��
����������������/���
��
���
��
��@��
������	���
��������
�	�/���@����
0���
������/��9��"/������������
��
�����/��/���8�	�����/�������
������
��
��@���	���/��/����
A	����8����@���������������
0������
�8����������@������
��
�����
�9����

!
�������0��
��	����
��/������������
�������8����	������-�
�����@����/�8�
��/��0����������������
��/�@����
�����?��0�
����	��������������
�/��@�/����	���/�
��������?������@��
��00��	�&�

�����!�������������� �������	�	���������������������������������
�����������������������
�

�������������
��8����8����
����	���/��8�@����������0�
��
��
0���/��/��0����8�
��8�	�����?�����������&�

�� <�)�@�
	�@��������
���0����
��A	�����	@��������/���/����

����/�
����
������
��/��������������0�������0G���

�� <����������0����������
�������	���������
�@���	���/��

����/�
��8����@����
�G�

�� 3���������
0������
��
���������/��/�����	���������������

0���������0�����G�

�� ���������
���
	�@�����
���������0�����00��
���00���
�

�������
��/����������
�����
��������
���8�/�	�

�������
��/��	�/�����
�������
9�

��!� �
�������
���

"/�����	������	�����/��������
��@����B�����
�����0���
���
8�/�/����	
����/��/���/���/����
�/�����&�

��!��� %����

<�
	�@����0��B��������0�������	��������������8����
/��/���/��9�������B�����-��
����������
�8�
�����D
������
�/����
����8��
��������9��"/����������8�����
�������������
?
�8������@����
���
���/�
����
�/���	@)����
����8�/�����	��
/��	�/�	
���/���
�9��!�8���0�����@���������������@���	���/��
�	��������8��
����������8/��8��������/���0	���
���
��������
�
/������9�<���
���00�/�������������������00����
�/���	������F�
�B�����
��&�

Page 127



�

��

���� �=!"#=!"$=�=�������
	���������
%&'(��������'!"#'%��)���'���� ���������$*���	����������������'���������	
����
�	���������������	��������+����������,�6>�79����

�

���������	
�����	�����������������	�����	����
��
��������
� �

�#������������	�����������������
�

D
����������
��/�
���/����	
�����@�	���
���/@�	�F��8/������
@�
�G�/���/���/����8/������@�
����������0��8�
���
��/������9��
<
�������������/����������
�/���
��
�������8�	���@���	���
�����@���������0������9�"/���
�������������	��
��/����	���
�
8�������������������9��"/���8������������������������������?�
�
����
���/�
��������
��/������
�8������������8�/�
�/��
����
�������/��	��9�

<
�/�����������
�/��/���/���/��8/�
�/����/�
���/��
��	
����/����A	����8��������8�/��
��
��������
��/����������8���
�����?
�8������@��-���/�	�/�/������
��������������
���?��
������/�����������
��������
��������/������������@������9�

<
�/����B������8���8/�
�����������
����������D
������
�/���8�/�	�/�����������0������
��/����������8������������
�
�
������8���/����������
��������/��0��
��0�/��A	�	��8/�
�
/�����	�
��9��"/�����
��������
�������������/����������
�B�����
��������0���/�����������
��
��/��������������/��9�

"/����������B�����
���������������������/��������
�/���
@�8��
�/���	�������
��/����	
���G����	��
���
�/���	������
0����
���������
0���
��
�/����	
����8/��/���������
��0�����
�
/����	
���/�����������
��/�����	��0������
�������
�B�����
��9�

��!��� �
��

<�
	�@����0�@����B�����
����8���������
���9�������B�����-�
�
����������
��/�
���/����	
�����@�	��
��������8
�/�����
/��8�����	��
����@��
�����
����
�/������9��>������
�8���
�?�
�	
���/����8����
�������
��
�����
��������������9��!
�/���
�����/����������
�0���/��/�����/�
�������8��������������
����
��?��
�������
�0���/����	
����������
9�

<
�/�����������
��
��������%��
���/���1�������?���/��
��	
����0���/����8�/������
�
�������8�������	�/�0���/�����
�?��������09��!
������
���/�����������������������
��J������
��	�������
���������%��
���/���1����K�/���8����������@���
�����������/������	
�����
�/�����������@��?�
���8
��
��/��
�
0������
�8���8��
�9�

%�������
���������@�����������0����/����	
����@�������������
��
	�G�/��������
�/���@�8��
��	�������
����	
�������/���������
/���0����/��/����	
��������
������
��
��/�������
��8��/�
0��/�
��0���/������	��&�

���	�������������������������������
�

Page 128



�

���

���� �=!"#=!"$=�=�������
	���������
%&'(��������'!"#'%��)���'���� ���������$*���	����������������'���������	
����
�	���������������	��������+����������,�6>�79����

�

���������	
�����	�����������������	�����	����
��
��������
� �

1�8����-����
��
�/������������	��������
��@����B�����
����
8��������	������
����������
����
������/��/����	
����
��
����������������
��B�����
�������������	�/��������
���������
��H
���������F����������
�����������8�������
��
��
�/�����	��
�
��/�����@����0���00�/����
��	
��9�

��$� � ���� �������

"�����������	���������������/��0����8�
���������/���8����
�	�������@����������
�&�

�� 4�����	��������
0�������0�����������0�������=���	����
��


������������������/���
����/���	����������G�

�� $�������
�
��0�����00���@�������?
�8������@���E�����
�

	
?
�8������@��-�@��������
������@����0���00������?���

��	�����0�@����	�������������G�

�� �/�
������
��/�������������00���
��������
����/���/�
�

/���	������/���
�����B����
�/��������������
������G�

�	�/����
�/�����
�������/���
0������
��
����������	��G�

�� !�����������	
�����
�@�/�8�/�
�/����	
�����
��8�/�/��

�	�����G�

�� ���/��H�B�������FG����
��)	������/����
����/��0����

�@�����G�

�� !�������0����8�	�����������
���G��
�	���/���	���������

/�����8�/�/���	�����@�0����/�������!����
����009�

�
!
�������
-���������
��8����
���8�����0��
������
�����
��8��?�
8�/�
�/��D
�������/������
�-�/�8�����/���8�����
�������
�
�����
��/��0����8�
������������
�D
�������/���&�

�� %������E������0���/���8�	���@��@�
�0����������
���D
������

�/����/�������������
�������
����������/�/����������@�	�

���	���/�
��
��������������
�

�� ���L�
��<������*	���	�

�� ����������������

�� ��@���
���

�
"���������/��������
�����
����8����	�������/���	�
��
������
0������
��
�/��������
�8�������8�	����������8���
���-�
���
�������
0������
��
�/��8�@����8/��/�8�	������������/�
�����������9�

��&� ����� ���
��'�
��
���

>�
���0�/����������
��8�����8�����0������0����	�����������
��
�������
�����/���������
�8�������
���������0�/���	������
�������
�������0����������	
����������	��G�

Page 129



�

���

���� �=!"#=!"$=�=�������
	���������
%&'(��������'!"#'%��)���'���� ���������$*���	����������������'���������	
����
�	���������������	��������+����������,�6>�79����

�

���������	
�����	�����������������	�����	����
��
��������
� �

��&��� �� ���
����

!
�������0�8/�/���/����	
����8�����������
������
��8�/�
���	������
��
�8��������8�/�/�����	�������
���
��/��������
���	�������00���
��
��8���-�/���0���-����?������00���
������
���
0����/����	
���9���

"/������������0���������8����
�������0�����@�������
�����8���
�������
��9��1�8����-�	��
���
��������
���������
��
�����
�����/��/����	
����8�	���
���������������0�������	�����
	����
�8��?�@�0�����������
�����	������8�/��
��
�8��9��!�8���
����������
�����/��/���������
����������H8�/�
��������F����
��������8�	���@��/����B��	��E�/���8�����
��������
������@��9���	�/��������0�/�����@����0�/���	@�������?���	�,
�,�����
�/������������0�/�������	��/�
�/���8�	���
��@��
8���
����������	����9���

!�8����	�������/��/������������/�	���@��8��8��?����/���
/�
�/����6�������7-�����0�/�����	�����	���
����/�	���@�������
8�/��
��
��8��?9�

%�������
��8�	����������?�����������	�����������������/�������
	���
����	������������8�/�0�����/�
������	���
��
��9��<
�
�B����������
�8���/���0�/�����������	���/��������	�	�����
��
���
������/�L����	���/�	���@�������8�/�A	��?����
����
���
���	�����
�8������������
���9�

��&��� �� ��
�����

<�����������
��0���/���0�/���8����	
/�����8�/�/����������/���
���������@��/����	
����/�
�/���8�	����������
��@�	��9��"/���
0���/��/���8�	��������/����
��������/��/������������@����0�
��00&�

���	����������������������
�

"/���0���/��/���8�	���8�
��������
�����6����������
��?
�8�������
��07�/�����������
�8�/�
�/�������
��8�	���

��0�
����������@�����8�����������0������������
���@��
��������9��!�8���0���/�����������
������
��������
�/�������0�
/����	
�����
��/����/�	���8�
�����������������
���������@��9��
<������
�@������0���������
��������������������
�8�����
8��?�
������-���8��?-������
������������?
�8�������8�/�
��,��
����&�

���	��������������	������	�����$������������������
�

!�8���/�����/��/����	
������?��������
���
�@����-�@	���8���
0���/����������������
��
��
�/���������
��
�����@����0�

Page 130



�

���

���� �=!"#=!"$=�=�������
	���������
%&'(��������'!"#'%��)���'���� ���������$*���	����������������'���������	
����
�	���������������	��������+����������,�6>�79����

�

���������	
�����	�����������������	�����	����
��
��������
� �

��00�8/��������8�/����
�-��
�/�����
-�/�����	��8����A	���
��
����������8/�/���������	����?�
��
�@����9�

"/�����	���������/���/�������
�����
������?���������
��
����������	���-��9�9�@�
?�-��
���0�
�����/����	�/�����
��
/�
9��!�8���0���/��/���8���@���	����	��������0�@�
?����
�
�?��/�����	��������8/����8/�����	��������0�����	
������

�9��
<�������	����
���	���������������	�������/��@��������������
/���/����
�8/���������������
����	
������00������8�����0�/��&�

�%���!�������������������������	���������������������������������
����� ���������������
�

3�������-���������
��/���/��/��B������
���@�	�/�8�/����
�������
���/�	���@�������8�/9��!�8���������/����?
�8�����
��
���������
�A	��?�����
�/�����
���00	��
����	���
���
����������
������������������E�����
��������00�����?������������
��/���
��?
�8������
9�
�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

Page 131



�

�2�

���� �=!"#=!"$=�=�������
	���������
%&'(��������'!"#'%��)���'���� ���������$*���	����������������'���������	
����
�	���������������	��������+����������,�6>�79����

�

���������	
�����	�����������������	�����	����
��
��������
� �

�

�

�

�

�

Page 132



�

�.�

���� �=!"#=!"$=�=�������
	���������
%&'(��������'!"#'%��)���'���� ���������$*���	����������������'���������	
����
�	���������������	��������+����������,�6>�79����

�

���������	
�����	�����������������	�����	����
��
��������
� �

<���
��B�<9� "������	���CCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCC ���
�

<���
������

Page 133



�

���

���� �=!"#=!"$=�=�������
	���������
%&'(��������'!"#'%��)���'���� ���������$*���	����������������'���������	
����
�	���������������	��������+����������,�6>�79����

�

���������	
�����	�����������������	�����	����
��
��������
� �

���������	
�����	�����������������	�����	��������	����
�

�	�����������

�

���������	��
�

�
���	���������
����������
������
��
����
��
�������

���������� �
�!��"�������#��
�������#!����������	
������

����	�������	#$�������	�������������%�&���
������!�
�����

��!����������
����	���!�����
�!�������	��
��'��
 ���(
�)���)

������������������
�%�

�������
����
��
������
����
����!���&������������
�	���
��

����*������
�+�%�

+������������
���������� ��	�%�

�

�� *�������
�����
���	������������,�
������ ���"�����

�����!�

�

�����������	��
�

�

������������	�
���������
��
	��������������������������������	�


����	����	����
�������������������
��������������

�

�� -����!�	��'�����
����������	�������������.�

�� ���
�����!�	��������� �����������.�

�� ��������!�	��������� ����������������.�

�� �����#�	��������!�	�����������������
������ ����

�������.����
��
��������������
�������������������������

�����
��������������������������������������������
	��������

�������������������������

�� �������������!�	������!�	� �� �������������
.� ������

����!��!�������������
�������

�� -������� �����������������
��������
�!�	��������
�����

"�������� �
�����
��
������.��
�"���"�!.��

�

�� �����#�	������������.��-����!�	��'�����
����#���

�	�������������.�

�� /��������#�	���.����
�"������"�����"������"���������

"������
.�

�� �����������#����������.����
��
��������������
�����������
�������������������
������������������������������������

��������
	���������������������������������

�� -�"�����!�	�����������#����������.��-�"�����!�	�����.�

<���
��B�<9� "������	����

Page 134



�

���

���� �=!"#=!"$=�=�������
	���������
%&'(��������'!"#'%��)���'���� ���������$*���	����������������'���������	
����
�	���������������	��������+����������,�6>�79����

�

���������	
�����	�����������������	�����	����
��
��������
� �

�� -�������#����������������
��������
�!�	��������
�����"���

����� �
�����
��
������.��
�"���"�!.��

�

�� ��
�!�	�����"������!�	����� �����	�������������.��������
�������������
	�������������
�������	��������������������"�

�� ��
�!�	�����"������!�	�����#����	�������������.��������
�������������
	�������������
���������������������������"�

�

�����	�������������������	�����

Page 135



�

� �

���� �=!"#=!"$=�=�������
	���������
%&'(��������'!"#'%��)���'���� ���������$*���	����������������'���������	
����
�	���������������	��������+����������,�6>�79����

�

���������	
�����	�����������������	�����	����
��
��������
� �

�	����������	�
�

�

���������
��������#������$��
����%�&��
�����������������
�����

�����#������$��
�����
����������'(���
����������������������������

�

�� -�"����!����������
������������	
���.�

�� -�"����
����!�	��
������
��������	
���.��-�"����!�	�

������#�	����
	�#�����������!�	���
��������	
���.�����

���
0��.��

�� -�"����!�	��
������
������������	
���.��������������!�

"���������	�.���
�"���"�!.�

�� -�"���0"�	���!�	������������
��������	
���.�����

������!�	���!���.�

�

&����
������
������
��

�� ���������!�	� �.�

�� ��������������
�	 ����������.�

�� +���������
�	 ��������0��
	����� ���.�

�� +����������������
������ �������0����.�

�� -�"��#�	����
�
 �����.�+�����������!�����
�.�+�����!�

����� ������.������!����"�������.����
������!�
������

#�.�

�� -�"����!�"���������
����������
�!�	�"�
����������.�

�

&��������
���

�� -�"����!�"���������
������� ��
	�#��.�

�� ���
�!�	���
 �"���������� ��
	�#��.�

�� -�"����!�"���������
����������
�!�	�"�
����������.�

�� /��������#�	�������
�
 �������������������
������������

�� ������.������!����"���!�	������.�

�

&������
���
����

�� -�"����!�"���������
������� ��"�#���.�-�"�����!�	�

��
������� ��"�#���.���� ������

�� -�"����!�"���������
������� ���
�������
0��������!�	��

�
1	��!�	��
 ����"�#���.�

�� ����������	����������.������!�	�
��������)��
���������

�
������
���������������
�.�

�� /�������"���!�	��������������������#�	����"�#���.�

�� ����������
!��
 ������
 ����!�	�"�	����������������

�����
����"�#���.�

Page 136



�

�:�

���� �=!"#=!"$=�=�������
	���������
%&'(��������'!"#'%��)���'���� ���������$*���	����������������'���������	
����
�	���������������	��������+����������,�6>�79����

�

���������	
�����	�����������������	�����	����
��
��������
� �

�� �������������"�	���!�	�������������
����"�#���.�

�

&��
���������
���
����

�� ��!�
�.�

�� �����
��
������!�
 ����	�������"�#�������$�����	�����

��
��2�"��������!�	��������
���
 ������	
��������

"�!.�

�� ����"�	����
��	�� ��!�	���	������"�#���.�

�� ����"�	���!�	�	��������.�����������!�	���!���.�

�� �������������"�	���!�	�	��������!�"�����
����"�#.�

����������!�	���!����

�

�

������������

�� /��
��
 ��#�	�!�	�������'�����
����"������������	
���2�

�� /��������#�	������
�������!�	���
��!�	���������������

���	��.�����������!�	���!���.����������3����"����

�����4��

�� -����!�	��'�����
���� �����	��������������������������

��	
���.�

�� ���
�����!�	��������� �����������.�

�� ��������!�	��������� ����������������.�

�� �����#�	��������!�	�����������������
������ ����

�������.����
��
��������������
�������������������������

�����
��������������������������������������������
	��������

�������������������������

�� �������������!�	������!�	� �� �������������
.� ������
����!��!�������������
�������

�� -������� �����������������
��������
�!�	��������
�����

"�������� �
�����
��
������.��
�"���"�!.��

�

�� �����#�	��������	�����������������	
���.��-����!�	�

�'�����
����#����	�������������.�

�� /��������#�	���.����
�"������"�����"������"���������

"������
.�

�� �����������#����������.����
��
��������������
�����������
�������������������
������������������������������������

��������
	����������������������������������������������
�
	�

������

�� -�"�����!�	�����������#����������.��-�"�����!�	�����.�

Page 137



�

���

���� �=!"#=!"$=�=�������
	���������
%&'(��������'!"#'%��)���'���� ���������$*���	����������������'���������	
����
�	���������������	��������+����������,�6>�79����

�

���������	
�����	�����������������	�����	����
��
��������
� �

�� -�������#����������������
��������
�!�	��������
�����"���

����� �
�����
��
������.��
�"���"�!.��

�

�����������
�

�� ������	���#����
��������������������#���0�����!�	.�

)*���
�������������������������������������

�� ���!�	���
���
!�����������
������	��0���	��������#��
�

������#��.�/��������#�	�����%��-�"���	�����!������#��
�

�������.�&
��������
������������
������
���
���������
	����

�
��������
�������
���������
��������)�	���������������

�� 5

�������!������������
���1	�����#!��	������

�� �	��������
�������
���1	�����

�� *������ 
����
 ��������� �
�����
���

�� *����	�������	��������� �
�����
���

�� *�� ����������
 �

��	���!�	�������������������
��� �
�����
��"����
 ���������

(
������������% %�*�
���
��

�

�

�

������������������������������������	�
����	 �

�� ���!�	������!�	�����	��� �������"���������!.� ������
�*������+�
��������

�

!��������
����"���
������������������������������������

���������#��$�$�

�

�� +���������������������
�#��.�

�� ����"�	���#�������
�#��.�

�� ��	���!�	���������������
����!�	��������������#���

�������.���!0
�.������.�

�� +����������
�����������
!��������
��"����#�������
����

��"���
�67�"����
 ���!���"�������������"����%���������

!�	���
��������.��������!�	���'�����
��.�

�� ���!�	���
�������	
����"�	���	���!�	������#�����#�	�

#����������.���!0
�.�

�� ���!�	��
�"�����
!�������� �
�����
��������	���

����#����������������������.����.�

�

������
�

Page 138



�

���

���� �=!"#=!"$=�=�������
	���������
%&'(��������'!"#'%��)���'���� ���������$*���	����������������'���������	
����
�	���������������	��������+����������,�6>�79����

�

���������	
�����	�����������������	�����	����
��
��������
� �

,������
���������������
������������
����#������$��
���������

��
���
�+���������	����
	���������������������������������������-�

	�����
�������

�

����������	�	���������������

�

�

Page 139



Page 140

This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
COUNCIL EXCELLENCE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
21 SEPTEMBER 2010 
 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 
PUBLICATION OF PAYMENTS TO SUPPLIERS - WORKLOAD IMPACT 
 
 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1. As requested by the Committee this report informs Committee of the increase 

in workload as a consequence of implementing the proposal to publish 
monthly, all Council third party expenditure over £500, from the 1 April 2010, 
to demonstrate the Council commitment to be open and transparent with 
residents. 

 
2. BACKGROUND 

 

2.1 Council on 2 November 2009 approved Notice to Motion item 62: 

• This Council notes the recent campaign by the Taxpayers Alliance and 
George Osborne MP to provide greater disclosure to the public of what 
their money is being spent on. 

• Council also notes the recent move by the London Mayor to publish 
online details of all Greater London Authority (GLA) expenditure over 
£1000, detailing all payments for goods and services. 

• Council believes that the publication of all Council items of revenue 
expenditure of £1,000 and above; and capital expenditure of £10,000 
and above will increase transparency and therefore accountability. 

• Therefore, Council resolves to instruct the Director of Finance to bring 
forward proposals to publish online from the start of the 2010 financial 
year, details on all such items of Council expenditure on a monthly basis 
within three months of the transaction. 

 
2.2 In response to the Notice of Motion it was agreed, following a report to 

Cabinet on 14 January 2010, that the Director of Finance would publish 
monthly, from April 2010, payment details of all third party expenditure, 
excluding grants and personal payments, over £1000.  Cabinet acknowledged 
that there would be a possible increased demand on staffing resources as a 
result of queries arising from the publication of this information. 

 
2.3 The Council therefore published, on its website, expenditure over £1000 for 

both April and May 2010.   
 

Agenda Item 14

Page 141



 
2.4 In June 2010 the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government 

wrote to the Leader of the Council recommending that all expenditure over 
£500 be published from January 2011 in the interests of local transparency.  
As a consequence, with effect from June 2010, all data published, including a 
description of the reason for the expenditure, is for expenditure over £500. 

 
2.5 At the meeting of the Council Excellence Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

on 8 July 2010, in response to a question from a Member with regard to the 
impact on workload of the requirement to publish information in relation to 
items of expenditure over £500, the Director of Finance commented that it had 
not, as yet, been quantified.  Monitoring would be undertaken and I agreed to 
present a further report to a future meeting of the Committee. 

 
3. REPORT PRODUCTION AND ENQUIRY WORKLOAD 
 
3.1 A monthly report is published on the Council website which lists the total 

payments to suppliers, with a value over £500.  The report is produced from 
the corporate financial information system and is reviewed to establish the 
reason for the expenditure and to ensure that there is no grant or personal 
data showing.  A contact point is provided, on line, so that residents can 
access further information if, for example, they would like to know more about 
the type of business conducted with these suppliers.  The Council aims to 
provide a response within five working days. 

 
3.2 Since the data has been published from April queries have emanated from a 

number of sources: the public, the press and media and Councillors.  This has 
resulted in over “190 line” enquiries i.e. individual transactions that have had 
to be explained.  In order to respond to the complexity of enquiries it is 
necessary to contact individual officers within different departments.  This has 
proved to be time consuming.  

 
3.3 The aim is to be as open and transparent as possible but in some cases there 

will be a need to respect information that could be seen as commercially 
sensitive. 

 
3.4 As no additional resource has been identified to cover this work, at present 

the duties have been split between the Procurement Manager and an 
Administrative Officer. They have taken on this role in addition to their existing 
duties.  The consequences of this are that other elements of work, such as 
consolidating and letting contracts, are being delayed. 

 
 

Page 142



 
4. IMPROVEMENTS IN DATA QUALITY 
 

4.1. I am planning to develop this initiative further by making improvements to the 
information that is made available on the Council web-site.  This will include 
reviewing the descriptions provided when detailing the types of goods and 
services obtained from the expenditure and build upon the comments and 
responses received to date.  The intention is to provide more relevant 
information through the web-site and therefore reduce the need for 
individuals/organisations to contact the Council. 

4.2. I am also looking at improvements to the usability of this information by 
others.  Further recommendations from the Government ensure that any 
published information is made available in a format that can be re-used by 
third parties.  At present Wirral publishes this information in a Portable 
Document Format (PDF) i.e. the data cannot be easily downloaded for 
analysis.  It is anticipated that, with further work, this published information will 
include the underlying data in an open standardised format called Comma 
Separated Values.  This is simple text file format used for moving data 
between programmes that cannot read each other's native format. 

 
5. FINANCIAL AND STAFFING IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Although the current operation of the procedure is occupying the equivalent of 

one officer it is hoped that the improvements in data quality will reduce the 
additional workload. 

 
6. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1. There are none arising directly from this report.  
 
7. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
8. HUMAN RIGHTS IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
9. LOCAL AGENDA 21 IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
10. PLANNING IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 

Page 143



 
11. MEMBER SUPPORT IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
12. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
12.1. None 
 
13. RECOMMENDATION 

 
13.1. That Members note the report. 
 
 
 
 
 
  IAN COLEMAN 
  DIRECTOR OF FINANCE. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FNCE/154/10 

Page 144



Managing
Attendance
Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council

Audit 2009/10 

July 2010 

Agenda Item 15

Page 145



Status of our reports 

The Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by the Audit 
Commission explains the respective responsibilities of auditors and of the audited body. 
Reports prepared by appointed auditors are addressed to
non-executive directors/members or officers. They are prepared for the sole use of the 
audited body. Auditors accept no responsibility to: 

! any director/member or officer in their individual capacity; or  

! any third party.

Contents

Introduction and background 3

Audit objectives and approach 4

Main conclusions 6

Recommendations 8

Detailed findings and conclusions 10

Appendix 1 – focus group outputs 17

Appendix 2 – Action Plan 23

Page 146



Introduction and background 

3   Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council 

Introduction and background 

1 Preventing people from falling ill at work and getting them back sooner, as well as 
discouraging abuse of absence, is a key component of public sector cost efficiency 
and change agendas.   

2 However, effective management of sickness absence is not just about reducing costs. 
Staff sickness also results in `lost time’ which can have a particularly negative impact 
on the quality of frontline services. Employers also have legal duties to protect their 
staff from work-related stress and illness.  

3 Wirral Council has struggled to meet its sickness absence targets in the past but the 
situation is now starting to improve. The Council's target for sickness absence in 
2009/10 was 10 days. This target was higher than that set by other metropolitan 
authorities in the North West and most of the other Merseyside councils. During the 
year, actual sickness levels for the organisation as a whole were consistently better 
than this target, and by December 2009 had fallen to 9.01 days.

4 Nevertheless, the overall sickness absence figure masks some variations between 
Directorates. These are illustrated in the chart below. 

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

2006/07 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 YTD

d
a
y
s
 l
o

s
t 

p
e
r 

ft
e

DASS

CYPD

Corporate Services

Finance

Technical Services

Regeneration

Law , HR, Asset Mgt

5 The Council is now working to strengthen arrangements across the organisation for 
managing attendance to help it achieve further improvements. 

Page 147



Audit objectives and approach 

Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council  4

Audit objectives and approach 

6 We agreed to carry out a short review to support the Council in its work to strengthen 
organisational arrangements for managing attendance. This would, in turn, link to the 
Council's broader objectives of improving the quality of services and securing value for 
money.

7 The purpose of the review was to assess the extent to which corporate arrangements 
are being implemented within Directorates, but also to identify any examples of good 
practice within services which could be shared across the organisation.  

8 The audit aimed to evaluate the Council's: 

! procedures for managing short and long-term sickness absence; 

! training and support for managers on managing attendance within their area of 
service;

! the use of management information on sickness absence; and 

! systems to support staff welfare. 

9 The review was carried out in two stages. To gain an understanding of corporate 
arrangements, we started with a brief review of Council documents and data on 
sickness absence levels. We discussed our findings from this review with the Head of 
HR and Organisational Development. We then agreed to carry out further work in two 
'tracer' Directorates.

! Technical Services. 

" Of all the Council Directorates, Technical Services has seen the most 
significant rate of improvement in staff attendance since 2008/09. In  
March 2009, the Directorate's sickness absence levels were 13.5 per cent 
which was the second worst figure recorded for the Council. By December 
2009, sickness absence levels had fallen to 5.22 per cent placing the 
Directorate second best in the Council. Over this period, the Directorate has 
made some significant changes in the way a number of its services are 
provided which may have contributed to this improvement. Nevertheless, we 
felt that the approach taken by the Directorate to managing attendance 
warranted further investigation.

! Regeneration.

" In 2006/07 sickness absence levels within Regeneration were the second best 
in the Council, but increased markedly in 2007/08 and did not improve the 
following year. This increase may have resulted from the addition of services to 
the Directorate's portfolio around this time. Since 2008/09 there has been a 
strong push on improving staff attendance within Regeneration. This is 
reflected in a marked increase in the number of managers within the 

Page 148



Audit objectives and approach 

5   Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council 

Directorate receiving absence management training. However, the rate of 
improvement in staff attendance has not been as rapid as in other Directorates. 
In March 2009, the Directorate's sickness absence levels were 11.88 per cent 
which was the third worst figure recorded for the Council. By December 2009, 
sickness absence levels had fallen to 9.3 per cent, but the Directorate's 
comparative position in the Council had deteriorated to the second worst. The 
varied and geographically dispersed nature of services provided by the 
Directorate coupled with significant changes it has faced will have undoubtedly 
made attendance management a more challenging issue to address.

10 Our work within Technical Services and Regeneration comprised: 

" focus group sessions with a sample of line managers; and 

" meetings with the key HR contacts for these Directorates. 

11 The outputs from the two focus group sessions are included as an appendix to this 
report.

Page 149



Main conclusions 

Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council  6

Main conclusions 

12 The Council recognises that there is scope for it to strengthen its corporate approach 
to managing attendance. Whilst some work has been done at an organisational level, 
responsibility for establishing arrangements which underpin good attendance has been 
devolved to the Directorates. 

13 This, in itself, is not necessarily a weakness. It is appropriate that Directorates should 
be encouraged to 'own' attendance issues rather than seeing them as being of concern 
only to corporate HR. At the same time, arrangements need to reflect local 
circumstances and service needs.     

14 However, the degree of devolution has made it difficult for the Council to be assured 
that appropriate action is being taken within Directorates or, indeed, to share learning 
and good practice across the organisation.

15 The Council is now taking steps to address this. 

! The Council has had an organisational absence management policy for some time 
and some Directorates have supplemented this with locally relevant procedures to 
good effect. The Council is now working to strengthen the corporate policy as part 
of a scheduled review. 

! All training on attendance management has so far been delivered within the 
Directorates. The organisational absence management policy is used as a 
framework for training and corporate support is available on request. The Council 
is now developing an e-learning package to ensure consistency. However, levels of 
ongoing support available to managers on sickness absence issues have varied. 
Some Directorates have developed the role of their in-house support functions to 
provide managers with a point of contact for more routine queries. Others are still 
reliant on the corporate HR function which does not always represent a good use 
of HR managers' skills and expertise.

! Some high level analysis of sickness absence data has been undertaken at a 
corporate level, but more detailed analysis has been carried out by the 
Directorates. This has resulted in duplication of effort and different approaches to 
presenting this information being adopted across the organisation. The Council is 
now implementing a new information system which will improve efficiency and the 
consistency of reports. However, there may be scope for Directorates to make 
more effective use of the information they receive on sickness absence as part of 
their overall performance management arrangements.

Page 150



Main conclusions 

7   Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council 

16 The challenge for the Council now is to establish a better balance and linkage between 
corporate and Directorate arrangements which, at once: 

! provides clear direction; but also 

! empowers managers across the organisation to deal with attendance issues within 
their area of service.

17 The Council is also now working to adopt a more strategic approach to staff welfare 
and well-being. This provides a good opportunity for the Council to rationalise the 
support services currently available and ensure that managers and staff are more 
clearly signposted to interventions appropriate to individual needs.

18 Our detailed findings and conclusions from the work are set out in a later section of this 
report.

Page 151



Recommendations

Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council  8

Recommendations

19 Our recommendations to the Council are as follows. 

Recommendations

R1 To strengthen the overall policy framework for managing attendance: 

!  consider and address the specific opportunities for improving the corporate 
policy raised by managers in our focus group sessions; 

!  ensure that the revised policy clarifies respective roles and responsibilities for 
managing attendance; 

!  where appropriate, supplement the corporate policy with additional local 
procedures which have been formally agreed with staff and their 
representatives;

!  take steps to ensure that a summary of the corporate policy and any 
supplementary procedures is made available to and understood by all staff.

R2 Strengthen the approach to absence management training by, for example: 

!  making absence management training a mandatory requirement for all 
managers in the organisation; 

!  rolling out the corporate e-learning package on absence management and 
establish arrangements to ensure that all managers complete this; 

!  revising the approach to delivering absence management training across the 
Council to ensure that managers receive consistent messages concerning the 
corporate policy and detail of any supplementary procedures where it has been 
agreed that these need to be in place; 

!  taking steps to ensure that Directorates have arrangements for monitoring the 
take-up of absence management training delivered locally, and for following up 
any non-attendance. 

R3 To improve levels of ongoing support for managers on absence management 
issues:

!  work with Directorates to identify and address any opportunities where the roles 
of support or other staff within the Directorate could be further developed to deal 
with more routine enquiries relating to attendance issues; 

!  following on from this, draw up service level agreements which specify the 
respective roles and responsibilities of the Directorate and of corporate HR. 
These should be consistent with the roles and responsibilities set out in the 
corporate policy (R1).

Page 152



Recommendations

9   Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council 

R4 To improve the use of management information on sickness absence: 

!  consider how the new HR information system may be utilised to ensure that key 
aspects of the corporate absence policy (e.g. completion and timeliness of 
return to work interviews) are monitored and reported, both corporately and at a 
Directorate level; 

!  following on from this, work with Directorates to ensure that there are no gaps or 
duplication in the information which is being collected and reported; 

!  work with Directorates to ensure that, as part of their overall approach to 
performance management, they have arrangements which allow managers to 
routinely and collectively identify factors which may account for sickness 
absence figures and explore opportunities for improvement. 

R5 As part of work to strengthen the strategic approach to promoting staff welfare and 
well-being: 

!  review and rationalise services so that managers and staff are clear on the 
pathways of support which are available and know how to access these.

Page 153



Detailed findings and conclusions 

Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council  10

Detailed findings and conclusions 

Policies and procedures 

20 The Council is currently reviewing its corporate policy for managing absence and 
recognises that there is scope for this to be strengthened. As part of our focus group 
sessions, managers from both Directorates highlighted some specific opportunities for 
improvement. These were around: 

! Accessibility

" The Council's approach to sickness absence is referenced in not only the policy 
itself, but within several other corporate policies. Managers report that this can 
make it difficult for them to locate the information they need. 

" Information is held on the intranet but managers report that they are 
experiencing some difficulties in navigating through this. 

! Clarity

" How do managers distinguish between long and short term absences? 

" How do they manage absence in cases of staff who work shifts, part time hours 
or flexible working arrangements? 

" How soon should return to work interviews be carried out? Managers recognise 
that these should be done as soon as possible, but the time limit is not currently 
specified in the policy.

" Managers feel that they need to take action with staff as soon as they detect 
patterns of absence emerging, but that the policy does not make this clear or 
set out what action they can take.

" Managers feel that clarity is needed on 'triggers', including more guidance on 
how to apply them.

! Controls and incentives 

" Managers feel that the wording of the policy needs to be strengthened to 
provide a greater imperative (ie 'should' needs to be substituted with 'must'). 

" Managers suggest that additional controls could be added to escalate staff 
through the capability procedures if they are abusing sickness absence (eg if 
staff have already reached stage 1 and have any additional absence within a 
defined period for which they are unable to produce a doctor's note, they will 
automatically be referred to stage 2). However, this suggestion indicates that 
further guidance is needed on the policy; managers already have provision to 
escalate staff through capability procedures as part of action plans agreed 
following capability hearings. 

" Managers feel that cases in the later stages of capability procedures could be 
heard by an independent panel to ensure objectivity and convey the 'right' 
message to staff. 

Page 154



Detailed findings and conclusions 

11   Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council 

" Managers suggest that some provision could be made corporately for 
rewarding good attendance (eg two additional days' leave). 

21 Our review has found some significant differences in the approach which has been 
taken by the two tracer Directorates to implementing the corporate policy. These are 
summarised in the table below. 

Table 1 Directorate approach to implementing policy 

Technical Services Regeneration 

! Corporate policy supplemented by 
departmental procedures agreed with Unions 
- makes the organisational policy 'real' for 
services. 

! Guidance on departmental procedures 
issued to staff including a 'wallet card' which 
summarises the action staff need to take in 
the event of sickness - staff are clear on what 
is expected of them. 

! Staff required to report their absence from 
work to the department's central admin 
function and this is then followed up by a call 
from their line manager - managers feel that 
having to report to a third party initially has 
acted as a deterrent to staff who might 
otherwise abuse sickness absence, and also 
report that the incidence of text messaging 
has reduced as a result. 

! The department's admin function produces 
reports for senior managers on all absences 
within their section - enables them to check 
that absences are being followed up by line 
managers. 

! Corporate and local procedures supported by 
forms which managers are required to 
complete and return to the department's 
central admin function - facilitates monitoring 
of timeliness of return to work interviews, 
completion of paperwork etc which is then 
reported to the departmental management 
team.

! Corporate policy. 

! Staff issued with periodic reminders on the 
procedures which they should be following. 

! Absence is reported to individual line 
managers. Managers report problems with 
incidence of text messaging and staff getting 
colleagues to relay messages. 

! Departmental absence co-ordinator produces 
reports for managers. 

22 Technical Services has been proactive and established arrangements to help it 
implement the policy in a very systematic and co-ordinated way. Key to this has been 
the assignment of a dedicated officer to lead on the work, and a revision of the duties 
of the Directorate's administrative function to make optimal use of available support 
staff in the new arrangements. There is also a very strong element of collaboration 
between managers within the Directorate on sickness absence issues.  

Page 155



Detailed findings and conclusions 

Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council  12

23 Managers within Regeneration have been working to implement the corporate policy, 
but they have been doing this more in isolation from each other than in Technical 
Services. This has made it more difficult to ensure that absences are managed in a 
consistent way across the Directorate. 

Recommendations

R1 To strengthen the overall policy framework for managing attendance: 

!  consider and address the specific opportunities for improving the corporate 
policy raised by managers in our focus group sessions; 

!  ensure that the revised policy clarifies respective roles and responsibilities for 
managing attendance; 

!  where appropriate, supplement the corporate policy with additional local 
procedures which have been formally agreed with staff and their 
representatives;

!  take steps to ensure that a summary of the corporate policy and any 
supplementary procedures is made available to and understood by all staff.

Training and support for managers 

24 The Council has recognised that it needs to adopt a more corporate approach to 
absence management training. All of the absence management training which has so 
far been provided has been developed and delivered by the Directorates themselves. 
Whilst an element of this is clearly needed to ensure proper coverage of local 
procedures where these exist, the absence of any central training makes it difficult for 
the Council to ensure that the corporate policy is being correctly interpreted across the 
organisation. At the same time, the Council has not made absence management 
training a mandatory requirement for managers. This presents a risk of some 
managers in the organisation not being aware of either the corporate or local 
procedures which they should be following with their staff. The Council is now looking 
to develop an e-learning package on attendance management which will help promote 
greater consistency. 

25 Optimal use is not consistently being made of available support resources. This is 
resulting in some inconsistencies in the nature and level of support available to 
managers on managing attendance within the two 'tracer' Directorates. Both 
Directorates have access to specialist advice from the corporate HR function. An HR 
Manager is nominally assigned to Technical Services (as well as Finance), whilst 
Regeneration has part funded an HR Manager post to provide support to the 
Directorate as part of a business partner relationship with the HR function. Both 
Directorates also have an absence co-ordinator post within their staffing structure, but 
this resource is being utilised in different ways.   

26 In Technical Services, the absence co-ordinator has been involved in establishing the 
Directorate's arrangements for managing attendance, and their role has also evolved 
to incorporate a greater element of advice and assistance. Managers value and make 
good use of this local source of support with the result that fewer demands are placed 
on the HR Manager's time.

Page 156



Detailed findings and conclusions 

13   Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council 

27 In Regeneration, the absence co-ordinator has dealt with referrals to occupational 
health, and supported managers on home visits and capability meetings. However, in 
terms of advice and dealing with queries, managers report that they are dependent on 
the HR Manager and greatly value this source of support. We acknowledge that the 
extremely complex and sensitive nature of some of the cases within the Directorate are 
likely to require this level of input. Nevertheless, establishing arrangements to promote 
a more co-ordinated approach to absence management (as referenced in the previous 
section) whilst making better use of the available resource within the Directorate would 
ensure that such cases are more effectively 'triaged'.

28 The Council is now considering how HR functions may be delivered in the future under 
its corporate priority of 'Excellent Council'. This provides a good opportunity to consider 
how existing resources are being used to ensure an appropriate balance between the 
ongoing support which managers clearly value as well as more specialist advice.  

Recommendations

R2 Strengthen the approach to absence management training by, for example: 

!  making absence management training a mandatory requirement for all managers 
in the organisation; 

!  rolling out the corporate e-learning package on absence management and 
establish arrangements to ensure that all managers complete this; 

!  revising the approach to delivering absence management training across the 
Council to ensure that managers receive consistent messages concerning the 
corporate policy and detail of any supplementary procedures where it has been 
agreed that these need to be in place; 

!  taking steps to ensure that Directorates have arrangements for monitoring the 
take-up of absence management training delivered locally, and for following up 
any non-attendance.

R3 To improve levels of ongoing support for managers on absence management issues:

!  work with Directorates to identify and address any opportunities where the roles 
of support or other staff within the Directorate could be further developed to deal 
with more routine enquiries relating to attendance issues; 

!  following on from this, draw up service level agreements which specify the 
respective roles and responsibilities of the Directorate and of corporate HR. 
These should be consistent with the roles and responsibilities set out in the 
corporate policy (R1).

Page 157



Detailed findings and conclusions 

Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council  14

Management information 

29 The Council has recognised that it has not been making efficient and effective use of 
sickness absence data. Sickness absence data is collected centrally for the whole 
organisation. However, whilst some corporate analysis is undertaken (e.g. sickness 
absence rates by directorate, reasons for absence), more detailed analysis is presently 
carried out by the Directorates themselves. This represents a duplication of effort. It 
also increases the likelihood of inconsistencies in the nature of reports made to 
managers on sickness absence in their service area. For example, during our focus 
group session with Regeneration, Libraries reported that they have adopted the 
'Bradford System' to help them identify problem cases of short term absence, but other 
managers in the Directorate were not aware of this system.

30 The Council is now working to address this situation. It is implementing a new HR 
management system. As part of this, template reports on sickness absence are being 
developed which will be automatically generated by the system. This will help improve 
efficiency, as well as the timeliness and accessibility of information at both a corporate 
and service level.

31 Some aspects of corporate reporting which needed strengthening are also being 
addressed.  For example, the corporate management team is responsible for providing 
an executive overview of workforce issues across the Council but in the past has only 
received annual reports on sickness absence levels and performance against the 
corporate target.  Quarterly reports are now going to be made, and we note that the 
first of these has also included information on sickness absence levels in other 
Merseyside and metropolitan councils. This will help senior managers to better monitor 
progress and take remedial action where it is needed. It will also provide the Council 
with a clear measure of its performance relative to other organisations.

32 The findings of our review suggest that there may be scope to make better use of 
absence information in Directorate performance management arrangements.

33 Attendance management forms part of core business within Technical Services. 
Sickness absence rates and performance against the policy (eg timeliness of return to 
work interviews) are reported and discussed on a monthly basis by section to the 
Directorate and Operational Management Team meetings. These measures are also 
posted on notice boards around the Directorate. This enables managers to make 
comparisons and encourages an element of healthy competition between sections. 
Although not reported regularly, the costs of sickness absence are understood to have 
been included in Directorate performance reports to raise awareness of the financial 
impact of poor attendance. Managers report that attendance issues are also 
considered at the Directorate Health and Safety and Equality and Diversity Groups. In 
overall terms, these arrangements are helping the Directorate to better understand 
some of the factors which may be affecting attendance and to identify ways of 
addressing them in a proactive way. 

Page 158



Detailed findings and conclusions 

15   Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council 

34 Sickness absence rates have similarly been reviewed at Directorate Management 
Team meetings in Regeneration, but reports to this group have been made on a 
quarterly basis. Absence statistics have also been reported and discussed as part of 
Senior Management Team fortnightly meetings and locally within sections. At our focus 
group session, managers expressed concern about the lack of forums within the 
Directorate for them to work together to 'get underneath' absence figures, and reported 
that our session with them was the first opportunity they had had to consider 
attendance issues as a group. They went on to report that the Directorate Health and 
Safety Group does review absences, but only when these have resulted from an 
accident at work.

Recommendations

R4 To improve the use of management information on sickness absence: 

!  consider how the new HR information system may be utilised to ensure that key 
aspects of the corporate absence policy (eg completion and timeliness of return 
to work interviews) are monitored and reported, both corporately and at a 
Directorate level; 

!  following on from this, work with Directorates to ensure that there are no gaps or 
duplication in the information which is being collected and reported; 

!  work with Directorates to ensure that, as part of their overall approach to 
performance management, they have arrangements which allow managers to 
routinely and collectively identify factors which may account for sickness absence 
figures and explore opportunities for improvement.

Staff welfare 

35 The Council recognises that there is scope for it to strengthen its strategic approach to 
staff welfare and well-being.

36 At a corporate level, the Council already has a number of key services to support its 
staff. These include: 

! an occupational health service, currently provided by Aviva; and 

! an Employee Assistance Programme (EAP) which was introduced in April 2009. 

37 At the same time, a wide range of other work has been carried out across the 
organisation to promote well-being. Examples of this include: 

! a pilot of training for managers on managing stress which was delivered in 
conjunction with NHS Wirral; 

! a pilot project undertaken within the Children's and Younger People Directorate to 
help people with mental health problems back into work; 

! programmes of health checks within services; and 

! surveys of work-based stress carried out within individual services. 

Page 159



Detailed findings and conclusions 

Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council  16

38 The Council and its partners have established a new initiative (Wirral Working4Health) 
to help local people who have been on long term sickness or are at risk of going off 
stay in work or get back into employment. They are now working on another initiative 
(Fit4Wirral) to better co-ordinate welfare and well-being activities across the borough. 
This is still at a very early stage of development.   

39 As part of our focus group sessions, managers expressed no concerns around access 
to existing corporate welfare services, but highlighted a number of opportunities where 
they felt these might be improved.

40 The Council is already aware of some of these opportunities for improvement. For 
example, managers believe that the EAP is currently under-utilised, but the Council is 
already planning to run further marketing exercises later this year to raise awareness 
of this service.   

41 Nevertheless, feedback from managers suggests that there may be scope for the 
Council to make more efficient and effective use of its corporate welfare services. 
Under present arrangements, managers report that any member of staff who has been 
off work with stress is automatically referred to occupational health on their return and 
may then be referred for counselling. However, managers are aware that counselling 
services are also available through EAP and can be readily and directly accessed by 
staff. This means that the Council could, in effect, be paying for the same service 
twice. Managers also report that staff can sometimes find it difficult to stop having 
counselling sessions arranged through occupational health once they have started. 
This suggests that there may be scope to strengthen arrangements so that individuals 
only receive counselling for as long as they need it and are supported in 'stepping 
down' from full counselling sessions. Doing this may also help the Council to achieve 
some savings. Under the present contract, staff can access a maximum of six sessions 
but once this number has been exceeded the Council incurs additional cost.

42 The Council's contract for occupational health services is due to end this year and 
future options for delivery are presently being assessed. This presents a timely 
opportunity for the Council to consider: 

! how the points raised by managers in our focus groups might be addressed in the 
specifications for a new occupational health service; and

! how this service, in turn, could link into other services provided under the Wirral 
Working4Health and Fit4Wirral initiatives.

Recommendations

R5  As part of work to strengthen the strategic approach to promoting staff welfare 
and well-being: 

!  review and rationalise services so that managers and staff are clear on the 
pathways of support which are available and know how to access these.

Page 160



Appendix 1 – focus group outputs 

17   Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council 

Appendix 1 – focus group outputs

WMBC Managing Attendance - Technical Services Focus Group 

15 April 2010

Short term/long term – there was some discussion about when short term becomes long 
term absence. The Councils’ distinction –10 days of absence.  

Monitoring systems are in place to graph out individual service areas and are produced 
on a monthly basis.

Sickness absence rates are currently slightly higher (fluctuations in different seasons) 
and the main reason has been colds and flu. Staff who had not been off for years were 
taking a few days to recover following sickness during Dec/Jan/Feb. 

Some areas of service have experienced a spate of people having operations – 4-6 
weeks off. All previously programmed in but number of staff off at same time. 

Majority of absence within the directorate is short term, self certified (less than 7 days). 
Long term can skew stats. 

Since April 09 sickness absence figs have been better – the directorate compares well 
with the Council as a whole. They are now applying capability procedures more 
consistently – in past this has not happened. Absences are reported centrally now. The 
directorate has been more prescriptive in terms of what they expect of staff (telephone in 
and speak to someone or leave a message – no text messaging or third party 
messages).

HR policies suggest people ‘should’ do this but thoughts in the room are that the wording 
of the policies should be strengthened to say people ‘must’.

Senior managers are informed of the staff who are off sick so they are able to check that 
managers are following absences up – a calendar of absences is now routinely issued. 

Managers are wary of centralising HR too much – local knowledge of what’s happening 
within services is important and could be lost. They are also keen to ensure that the 
implementation of the new system does not result in additional tasks for them to do. The 
spreadsheets they currently receive are generated automatically for them. 

Spreadsheets shows sickness dates on a calendar, type of sickness and number of days 
for individuals. ADs and services mgrs get a report after 12 days absence. The local 
spreadsheets help managers to detect patterns of absence sooner and it is good for staff 
to be shown this as sometimes it comes as a surprise to see this info in front of them.  

The directorate has sent out a clear message to staff that action is taken on sickness 
absence. There is now consistency of actions around trigger points. Now if someone hits 
trigger formal action is taken. Clear process now. Removes any subjectivity. 

Staff have become aware that they are approaching the triggers and are given the 
opportunity to take action. No longer a surprise when they hit them. Return to work 
interviews are being completed quickly, on the day of return or as near to the date on 
which they returned to work but this is not Council policy. Information on the timeliness of 
RTWs is reported to the directorate’s joint OMT and SMT. 

Page 161



Appendix 1 – focus group outputs 

Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council  18

Sickness absence is covered in team briefs. Team briefs were used to do a push on long 
term absence which has aided the recent improvement. 

Departmental charts are produced showing sickness absence rates for each section 
which allows for comparisons with other members of service. This has decreased 
occurrences of sickness absence. Encourages managers to act quicker to improve their 
team’s absences and raises awareness.   

Managers feel that they receive a good level of support. Internal HR contacted more or 
less daily for advice. Managers feel that they have to be careful about what to say and do 
about sickness absence with staff so feel that advice is needed. One member of staff had 
odd days off so looked at working arrangements/work pattern and things have improved. 
This person is now off the trigger. They feel that they are better able to have a dialogue 
with staff about absence. 

They feel that there has been a change the culture. It’s ok for people to seek advice from 
Occupational Health. Occupational (Occ) Health no longer a stigma, now a positive thing. 
Managers also feel that they benefit from having H&S based in the directorate and the 
same building as them – used them for risk assessments on improving work stations to 
help staff. Managers are required to manage H&S in the workplace (IOSH).

Regular work place inspections take place.

Absence regularly discussed at the departmental H&S working group and Equality Group 
– these forums for discussion help them to proactively identify issues. 

Absence management isn’t part of the KIE unless it’s an issue. Policies are in intranet 
and staff are now required to confirm their understanding of sickness absence policies. 

Managers have received absence and performance capability training. Focuses on what 
policy is, useful to gets answers to questions, half day course and refresher courses 
available.

Training is ‘spot on’. Internal HR provides post-training support.  

Managers feel that training should be compulsory as aids understanding of process and 
gives more consistency. Before training managers and staff unsure of what to say or 
saying the right thing. All staff should have the training. Culture at Council is not to have 
compulsory training. Only Quality & Diversity training is compulsory as is statutory 
requirement. If someone ended up at tribunal and manager not had training – problem. 
Absence management training has been made more or less compulsory within the 
directorate.

Council policy gives timescales, sets expectations, provides letter templates.  

Policy can be a little bit vague in places and sometimes contradictory Eg 12 working days 
lost, then look at patterns. Somewhere else says action could be taken if patterns emerge 
before 12 days absence. 

Problems about applying the policy with part-time working and pro-rata. Confusing if 
people work only a few hours each day – difficult to determine what time has been taken 
off. Needs to take account of flexi-working arrangements. Staff and managers are all 
confused by this and cannot find guidance.

Also Policy does say ‘working days lost’ but people have been counting weekends – this 
requires clarification.

Not one policy eg absence management is mentioned in a few places which can 
contradict each other. – code of conduct, HR Hand book etc. Also problems about how 

Page 162



Appendix 1 – focus group outputs 

19   Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council 

these different sources of information are laid out on the intranet – makes it difficult to 
navigate to the information managers need. 

Directorate has issued a card to each member of staff giving bullet points of what needs 
to be done and which number to phone in the event of absence to clarify expectations. 

In terms of staff wellbeing, managers contact staff, Home visits follow, then back-to-work. 
If someone off with stress there is an immediate referral to Occ Health.

Wellbeing days are held throughout the Council.

Referral to Occ Health can be done before sickness absence triggers hit.

NB some uncertainty now re EAP. Should staff be referred here before Occ Health (EAP 
covered by fixed contract but payment for Occup Health is by visit) 

Managers like the fact that EAP can be accessed by staff and all family members, but not 
sure if staff are aware of that or of the range of services provided. A seminar was held on 
EAP but the service needs to be promoted more. Also need to raise awareness that staff 
can access Occ Health as a preventative measure i.e. before a person goes off sick. 

Departmental drive for staff to complete display screen equip questionnaires as 
preventative measures re back problems. 

Page 163



Appendix 1 – focus group outputs 

Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council  20

WMBC Managing Attendance - Regeneration Focus Group 

15 April 2010 

Regeneration has just been split up so comments from them with comments also from 
individual area. Regeneration 2nd from bottom on absence so could do better.

Main reasons for absence – person off for operation (91 days) in a small team so had 
impact. Also ear/nose/throat took similar length of time. Stress has been an issue for 
some but not all sections. Ongoing treatment for cancer has skewed figs, also DDA 
illnesses (diabetes, epilepsy). Lifestyle stress eg bereavement can be difficult to manage. 

Long term sickness is difficult to resolve and is time consuming and drawn out process. 
Managers feel that they receive conflicting advice from Occupational (Occ) health. Occ 
Health gives advice that is not easy to work with on a practical level eg a person may be 
able to do some duties but not the job which they are employed to do. 

Staff can access counselling through Occ Health – this is supposed to be short term but 
view that staff get on counselling ‘treadmill’ and can’t get off.  

Managers feel they ask OH specific questions but don’t get specific answers. Information 
can be ambiguous and different officers can reach different conclusions. Small 
percentage can be exceptionally complex and time consuming. 

Doctors can withhold specific information and this is within their rights to do so. Individual 
has discretion whether to disclose so Dr not obliged to do so – this can make things 
difficult.

Managers feel that an increasing amount of physical stress put on managers to deal with 
intense staff cases of problems and stress and feels way out depth with area of expertise. 
They feel they don’t know how to help the person and give the right pastoral care. Occ 
health is a fantastic tool but more clarity is needed from them and more support for 
managers.

Occ Health 

The Directorate has an Absence Support Officer.

The Directorate has a dedicated HR person – this has been a master stroke, he provides 
exceptional levels of support and some managers feel that they can’t do without him. NB 
recognition that the HR person is under pressure so limited resource. Some managers 
are known to feel isolated and unable to cope. 

EAP though AVIVA has been useful – has prevented absence in some areas of service. 
Managers do signpost staff to EAP at RTW but don’t know if this is taken up.

‘Trigger dodgers’ - triggers are not realistic and staff work a way around the triggers. 
Managers don’t feel that the policy enables them to address patterns of absence at an 
early stage. 

Managers feel that there is scope to tighten up on the policy. For example, could say that 
at stage 1, if the member of staff has any further absences in next 3 months, they will 
automatically reach stage 2. Or they could ask for docs note for any sickness absence. 

Page 164



Appendix 1 – focus group outputs 

21   Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council 

Need something for persistent offenders. Individuals are known to have 30 days off each 
year and managers feel that nothing can be done. Managers see the same people 
coming through on stage 1 and stage 2 proceedings but feel unable to do anything about 
this.

At the same time, people who are never off sick year in year do not receive any 
recognition for good attendance apart from a ‘well done’ from managers. People who are 
off routinely takes up a disproportionate length of managers time. Each stage has ‘routine 
offenders’. Perception by junior staff is that managers are doing nothing. No lateness 
procedure guidance. Are they absent or late? How much time is considered as an 
absence? Corporate policy is used by unions but is not always the best for local 
departments to fit with – local arrangements could be better used. Leave arrangements 
produce problems with everyone having same leave year and using up excess leave in 
March.

Local management meeting have not debated this before - this is first time a forum like 
this has happened for managers to discuss sickness absence. EMT looks at headline 
figures but deep issues are not discussed. Locally common problems are not discussed. 
Sickness absence does not feature at H&S meetings. Libraries have own senior 
managers strategy group (4x mgrs) discuss absence at weekly meetings. Absence only 
discussed if happened because of accident. Sport and Rec report to Head of Service 
monthly.

Reports locally produced each month gives breakdown of figures and this gives profile of 
last 12 months. Sickness always goes up at Christmas and during school holidays. Large 
majority of staff keep holidays.

View that some staff treat managers with contempt - cited examples of staff not turning 
up for capability meetings.

Staff have to phone in by 10.00am and speak to someone. They keep having to remind 
staff that they shouldn’t be texting or speaking to a third party. Staff want to text as avoids 
proper explanation or possible confrontation. In libraries staff must phone in as near to 
9.00am as possible and speak to the manager in the building and not leave a message. 

Absence Coordinator responsible for co-ordinating Occ health referrals and speaking to 
occ health if manager has an issue of concern that they do not want to put in writing. 
They assist with difficult process and provide support for managers at each stage. They 
sit in and support in disciplinary discussions or accompany managers on home visits.

HR contact is invaluable. Can phone him for advice and gives credible answers.

Managers feel that there is a grey area in terms of when they should move from sickness 
to capability proceedings. 

People have no penalty to not turning up to meetings etc, showing contempt for system. 
Has negative affect on the ‘good guys’. 

Policy is here but needs to be tighter. Lateness and calling in can be a problem. No 
calling in procedure.  

Policy needs revision, eg no triggers – 3 absence only with 6 months.

Managers feel that there is some tension in applying the policy when they know sickness 
is genuine. Managers don’t want to be over zealous with genuine cases. Note there was 

Page 165



Appendix 1 – focus group outputs 

Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council  22

some discussion around the table about the need for applying the policy consistently so 
not show favouritism. Recognition for the need to be pragmatic – bring people in for stage 
1 but if their absence record has been exemplary in the past and they’ve then just had a 
bout of illness, do they really need to issue a warning.. 

Managers aware of positive things are going on. Health and Wellbeing Group at strategic 
level etc. Make use of the Council’s good greenspaces, sport centres, incentives. 

‘Bradford System’ being used by Libraries to highlight problem cases of short term 
absence. Very useful but not used across the directorate. Designed to tackle short term 
absence. Picks up on frequency and not patterns. 

Suggestion made that cases of absence after stage 2 are appraised by independent 
panel.

View that the Council needs to reward good attendance – 2 days holiday? 

Page 166



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2
 –

 A
c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 

2
3
 
  

W
ir
ra

l 
M

e
tr

o
p
o
lit

a
n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

 –
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 

P
a
g

e
n

o
.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 
1

 =
 L

o
w

2
 =

 M
e

d
3

 =
 H

ig
h

 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

A
g

re
e

d
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

D
a

te
 

1
2

R
1
 

T
o

 s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

 t
h

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

p
o

lic
y
 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 

fo
r 

m
a

n
a
g

in
g

 a
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c
e

: 

!
 C

o
n
s
id

e
r 

a
n
d
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 t
h

e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

im
p
ro

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

o
lic

y
 r

a
is

e
d
 b

y
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 i
n
 

o
u

r 
fo

c
u

s
 g

ro
u

p
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
; 

!
 E

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 p

o
lic

y
 c

la
ri
fi
e
s
 

re
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 r

o
le

s
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 

m
a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
; 

!
 W

h
e
re

 a
p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
, 
s
u
p

p
le

m
e

n
t 
th

e
 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

o
lic

y
 w

it
h
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
lo

c
a
l 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 f
o
rm

a
lly

 
a
g
re

e
d
 w

it
h
 s

ta
ff
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
; 

3

H
e

a
d

 o
f 
H

R
/O

D
  

H
e

a
d

 o
f 
H

R
/O

D
  

D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ta
l 

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 

Y
e
s
 

Y
e
s
 

Y
e
s
 

M
a
n
a
g
in

g
 A

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 P

o
lic

y
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 

re
v
ie

w
e

d
 b

y
 a

 w
o

rk
in

g
 g

ro
u

p
 c

o
n

s
is

ti
n

g
 o

f 
re

p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
 f
ro

m
 a

ll 
d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n

ts
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 

C
o
u
n

c
il'

s
 P

e
o
p

le
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
. 
 D

ra
ft
 p

o
lic

y
 d

o
e
s
 

a
d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 r

a
is

e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 f
o

c
u

s
 g

ro
u

p
s
. 

P
o
lic

y
 c

la
ri
fi
e
s
 r

o
le

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 f
o

r 
m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
: 
H

R
, 
O

c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

H
e

a
lt
h

, 
M

a
n
a
g

e
rs

 a
n

d
 e

m
p
lo

y
e

e
s
 

A
u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 r

e
p
o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e
 s

h
a
re

d
 a

t 
C

h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
T

e
a
m

 (
C

O
M

T
) 

w
h
e
re

 i
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 C

h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
le

m
e
n
t 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

o
lic

y
 w

it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
. 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
0

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
0

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
0

Page 167



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2
 –

 A
c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 

W
ir
ra

l 
M

e
tr

o
p
o
lit

a
n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 
2
4

P
a
g

e
n

o
.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 
1

 =
 L

o
w

2
 =

 M
e

d
3

 =
 H

ig
h

 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

A
g

re
e

d
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

D
a

te
 

!
T

a
k
e
 s

te
p
s
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
a
 s

u
m

m
a
ry

 o
f 
th

e
 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 a

n
y
 s

u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 i
s
 m

a
d
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 a

n
d
 

u
n
d
e
rs

to
o
d
 b

y
 a

ll 
s
ta

ff
. 

H
e

a
d

 o
f 
H

R
/O

D
 

&
 D

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
ta

l 
C

h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 

Y
e
s
 

A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 l
a
u
n
c
h
 o

f 
re

v
is

e
d
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 

A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

o
lic

y
, 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 

m
a
d
e
 f
o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 a
n
d
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 

to
 t
h
e
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 p
o
lic

y
. 
 

D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ts
 a

re
 r

e
s
p

o
n
s
ib

le
 f
o

r 
e

n
s
u

ri
n
g

 t
h

e
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
, 
lo

c
a
l 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
. 

F
ro

m
S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0

1
0

1
3

R
2

  
S

tr
e

n
g

th
e

n
 t
h

e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 a
b
s
e
n
c
e

 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
tr

a
in

in
g
 b

y
, 
fo

r 
e
x
a
m

p
le

: 

!
m

a
k
in

g
 a

b
s
e
n

c
e

 m
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
tr

a
in

in
g

 a
 

m
a
n
d
a
to

ry
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
a
ll 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 i
n
 

th
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
; 

!
ro

lli
n

g
 o

u
t 
th

e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 e

-l
e

a
rn

in
g

 p
a
c
k
a

g
e

 
o

n
 a

b
s
e

n
c
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
a

n
d

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h
a

t 
a

ll 
m

a
n

a
g

e
rs

 
c
o

m
p
le

te
 t
h
is

; 

!
re

v
is

in
g

 t
h

e
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o

 d
e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 a

b
s
e
n

c
e

 
m

a
n

a
g
e

m
e
n

t 
tr

a
in

in
g

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

to
 

e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
m

a
n

a
g
e

rs
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

 c
o

n
s
is

te
n

t 
m

e
s
s
a

g
e

s
 c

o
n

c
e
rn

in
g

 t
h

e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

o
lic

y
 

a
n
d
 d

e
ta

il 
o
f 
a
n
y
 s

u
p
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 

w
h

e
re

 i
t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
s
e

 n
e
e

d
 t
o

 
b
e
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
; 

!
ta

k
in

g
 s

te
p
s
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 h

a
v
e

 
a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
m

o
n

it
o
ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 t
a

k
e
-u

p
 o

f 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
tr

a
in

in
g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 

lo
c
a
lly

, 
a
n
d
 f
o
r 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 u

p
 a

n
y
 n

o
n
-

a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
. 

3

H
e

a
d

 o
f 
H

R
/O

D
 

H
e

a
d

 o
f 
H

R
/O

D
 

&
 D

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
ta

l 
C

h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 

H
e

a
d

 o
f 
H

R
/O

D
 

&
 D

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
ta

l 
C

h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 

H
e

a
d

 o
f 
H

R
/O

D
 

&
 D

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
ta

l 
C

h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 

Y
e
s
 

Y
e
s
 

Y
e
s
 

Y
e
s
 

T
ra

in
in

g
 w

ill
 f
o

rm
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
M

a
n

a
g
e

rs
 T

o
o

lk
it
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 
b
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 C

O
M

T
 t
h
a
t 
it
 i
s
 c

o
m

p
u
ls

o
ry

 f
o
r 

a
ll 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 t
o
 a

tt
e
n
d
. 

It
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
n
 E

-l
e
a
rn

in
g
 p

a
c
k
a
g
e
 

w
ill

 b
e

 r
o

lle
d

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
n

d
 w

ill
 b

e
 

c
o

m
p
u

ls
o

ry
 f
o

r 
a

ll 
m

a
n
a

g
e
rs

 t
o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
. 
 R

e
c
o
rd

s
 

o
f 
tr

a
in

in
g
 w

ill
 b

e
 h

e
ld

 c
e
n
tr

a
lly

. 

T
ra

in
in

g
 w

ill
 f
o

rm
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 M

a
n
a

g
e

rs
 

T
o
o
lk

it
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 c
o
n
s
is

te
n
c
y
 o

f 
m

e
s
s
a
g
e
. 

D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ta
l,
 l
o

c
a

l 
p

ro
c
e
d
u

re
s
 t
o

 b
e

 c
a
s
c
a

d
e
d

 t
o

 
m

a
n

a
g
e

rs
 b

y
 d

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
ts

. 

R
e
c
o

rd
s
 o

f 
m

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 
tr

a
in

in
g

 f
o

r 
a
b

s
e

n
c
e

 w
ill

 
b
e
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 c

e
n
tr

a
lly

. 
N

o
n
-a

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 C

O
M

T
 f
o
r 

a
c
ti
o
n

 b
y
 D

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
ta

l 
C

h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

. 

F
ro

m
S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0

1
0

F
ro

m
S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0

1
0

F
ro

m
S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0

1
0

F
ro

m
S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0

1
0

Page 168



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2
 –

 A
c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 

2
5
 
  

W
ir
ra

l 
M

e
tr

o
p
o
lit

a
n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

P
a
g

e
n

o
.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 
1

 =
 L

o
w

2
 =

 M
e

d
3

 =
 H

ig
h

 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

A
g

re
e

d
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

D
a

te
 

1
3

R
3
  
 T

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
o
n
g
o
in

g
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 o
n
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
is

s
u
e
s
: 

!
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
d
 

a
d

d
re

s
s
 a

n
y
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 w

h
e
re

 t
h

e
 

ro
le

s
 o

f 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
 o

r 
o

th
e
r 

s
ta

ff
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
 

D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 c
o

u
ld

 b
e

 f
u

rt
h
e
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

d
 t
o

 
d
e
a
l 
w

it
h
 m

o
re

 r
o
u
ti
n
e
 e

n
q
u

ir
ie

s
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 

to
 a

tt
e

n
d

a
n
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e

s
; 

!
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 o

n
 f
ro

m
 t
h
is

, 
d
ra

w
 u

p
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

le
v
e
l 
a
g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 w
h
ic

h
 s

p
e
c
if
y
 t
h
e
 

re
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 r

o
le

s
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 a
n

d
 o

f 
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 H

R
. 
 

T
h

e
s
e

 s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 c
o

n
s
is

te
n
t 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 r

o
le

s
 

a
n

d
 r

e
s
p
o

n
s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 s

e
t 
o

u
t 
in

 t
h

e
 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

o
lic

y
 (

R
1
).

 

3

H
e

a
d

 o
f 
H

R
/O

D
 

&
 D

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
ta

l 
C

h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 

H
e

a
d

 o
f 
H

R
/O

D
 

&
 D

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
ta

l 
C

h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 

Y
e
s
 

Y
e
s
 

H
R

 w
ill

 d
is

c
u

s
s
 w

e
re

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 c

a
n

 b
e

 u
ti
lis

e
d

 w
it
h

in
 

d
e

p
a
rt

m
e

n
ts

. 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
a
g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
. 
R

o
le

 &
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 w

ill
 f
o
rm

 p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 p

o
lic

y
 u

p
d
a
te

. 

D
e
c
e

m
b
e

r 
2

0
1

0

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

0

1
5

R
4
  
T

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 s

ic
k
n
e

s
s
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
: 

!
c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

h
o
w

 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 H
R

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

s
y
s
te

m
 m

a
y
 b

e
 u

ti
lis

e
d
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
k
e
y
 

a
s
p
e

c
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

b
s
e
n

c
e

 p
o

lic
y
 

(e
g
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

 a
n
d
 t
im

e
lin

e
s
s
 o

f 
re

tu
rn

 t
o
 

w
o

rk
 i
n

te
rv

ie
w

s
) 

a
re

 m
o

n
it
o

re
d

 a
n

d
 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
, 
b
o
th

 c
o
rp

o
ra

te
ly

 a
n
d
 a

t 
a
 

D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 l
e
v
e
l;
 

!
fo

llo
w

in
g
 o

n
 f
ro

m
 t
h
is

, 
w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 

D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
re

 a
re

 n
o

 
g

a
p
s
 o

r 
d

u
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 a

n
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
e
d

; 

3

H
e

a
d

 o
f 
H

R
/O

D
 

H
e

a
d

 o
f 
H

R
/O

D
 

Y
e
s
 

Y
e
s
 

H
R

 a
n
d
 P

a
y
ro

ll 
s
y
s
te

m
 t
e
a
m

 w
ill

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

o
p
ti
m

u
m

 u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
a
lit

y
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 s
y
s
te

m
 

w
ill

 b
e
 m

a
d
e
 o

n
 t
h
e
 a

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

w
o

rk
s
tr

e
a

m
. 

T
h

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g
 s

y
s
te

m
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 

b
ro

u
g
h
t 
fo

rw
a
rd

. 

A
n
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 

m
a

d
e

 t
o

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h

a
t 
n

o
 g

a
p

s
 o

r 
d
u

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
. 

J
a

n
u

a
ry

 
2

0
1

1

2
0

1
1

Page 169



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2
 –

 A
c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 

W
ir
ra

l 
M

e
tr

o
p
o
lit

a
n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 
2
6

P
a
g

e
n

o
.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 
1

 =
 L

o
w

2
 =

 M
e

d
3

 =
 H

ig
h

 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

A
g

re
e

d
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

D
a

te
 

!
w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t,
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 
o
f 
th

e
ir
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t,
 t
h
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 
w

h
ic

h
 a

llo
w

 m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 t
o

 r
o

u
ti
n

e
ly

 a
n
d

 
c
o
lle

c
ti
v
e
ly

 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 f
a
c
to

rs
 w

h
ic

h
 m

a
y
 

a
c
c
o

u
n

t 
fo

r 
s
ic

k
n

e
s
s
 a

b
s
e

n
c
e

 f
ig

u
re

s
 a

n
d

 
e
x
p
lo

re
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t.
 

H
e

a
d

 o
f 
H

R
/O

D
 

H
e

a
d
 o

f 
P

o
lic

y
 

a
n

d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

Y
e
s
 

T
h
is

 w
ill

 f
o
rm

 p
a
rt

 o
f 
o
u
r 

o
v
e
ra

ll 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 

a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
, 
la

u
n
c
h
 o

f 
p
o
lic

y
, 
tr

a
in

in
g
 e

tc
. 
 A

ll 
o
f 

w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 e

v
a
lu

a
te

d
 

a
s
 a

b
o
v
e
. 

2
0

1
1

1
6

R
5
  
 A

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
w

o
rk

 t
o
 s

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
 t
h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 p

ro
m

o
ti
n
g
 s

ta
ff
 w

e
lf
a
re

 a
n
d
 w

e
ll-

b
e
in

g
:

!
re

v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 r

a
ti
o
n
a
lis

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 s

o
 t
h
a
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 a

n
d

 s
ta

ff
 a

re
 c

le
a

r 
o

n
 t
h

e
 

p
a
th

w
a
y
s
 o

f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 

a
n

d
 k

n
o
w

 h
o
w

 t
o

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
h

e
s
e

. 

3

H
e

a
d

 o
f 
H

R
/O

D
 

Y
e
s
 

T
h
is

 w
o
rk

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il'

s
 F

it
4
W

ir
ra

l 
In

it
ia

ti
v
e
. 
A

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

is
 a

n
 

in
te

rn
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 
to

 e
n

s
u
re

 a
 c

le
a

r 
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 f
ro

m
 m

a
n

a
g
e

rs
 

a
n

d
 e

m
p

lo
y
e
e

s
. 

W
o
rk

 i
n
 c

o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 N

H
S

 W
ir
ra

l.
  

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

0

Page 170



The Audit Commission 
The Audit Commission is an independent watchdog, driving economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in local public services to deliver better outcomes for everyone. 

Our work across local government, health, housing, community safety and fire and rescue 
services means that we have a unique perspective. We promote value for money for 
taxpayers, auditing the £200 billion spent by 11,000 local public bodies.  

As a force for improvement, we work in partnership to assess local public services and 
make practical recommendations for promoting a better quality of life for local people. 

Copies of this report 

If you require further copies of this report, or a copy in large print, in Braille,  
audio, or in a language other than English, please call 0844 798 7070. 

© Audit Commission 2010 

For further information on the work of the Commission please contact: 

Audit Commission, 1st Floor, Millbank Tower, Millbank, London SW1P 4HQ  

Tel: 0844 798 1212  Fax: 0844 798 2945  Textphone (minicom): 0844 798 2946 

www.audit-commission.gov.uk

Page 171



Page 172

This page is intentionally left blank



UPDATE ON WORK PROGRAM : COUNCIL EXCELLENCE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE -  
21/09/10  

 
 

Reports to assist in monitoring the Committee’s work programme 
 
It was agreed by the Scrutiny Chairs Group in September 2008 to use the following 
reports to monitor the work programme for each Scrutiny Committee. The last item on 
each Scrutiny Committee agenda should be ‘Review of the Committee Work Programme’.  
 
 
Report 1 - Monitoring Report for Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 
This report will list all items that have been selected by the Committee for inclusion on the 
work programme for the current year. 
 
It will also include items, such as previous Panel Reviews, where recommendations have 
been made to Cabinet. It is important that the implementation of these recommendations 
is monitored. Otherwise there is no measure of the success of scrutiny. 
 
For each item on the work programme, the report will give a description, an indication of 
how the item will be dealt with, a relative timescale for the work and brief comments on 
progress.  
 
 
Report 2 - Suggestions for Additions to Work Programme  
 
The Work Programme for the Committee should be reviewed at each meeting. This will 
enable members to ask for new Items to be added to the programme. This report will list 
any newly suggested items. Committee will then have the opportunity to agree (or not) for 
them to be added to the programme.  
   
 
Report 3 - Proposed Outline Meeting Schedule for the Municipal Year 
 
The report will, for each scheduled Committee meeting, list those items which are likely to 
be on the meeting agenda. This will give the opportunity for Committee members to take a 
greater lead in organising their work programme. 
 
 
Report 4 - Progress Report on In-Depth Panel Reviews 
 
This report will give a very brief update on progress / timescales for in-depth panel reviews 
which are in the ‘ownership’ of the Committee. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 17

Page 173



 

REPORT 1 
MONITORING REPORT FOR SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME  

COUNCIL EXCELLENCE : 2010 / 2011 
 

 

Date of 
New 
item  

Topic Description  How the topic will 
be dealt with 

Estimated 
Complete 
Date  

Comments on Progress Complete? 

      

17/03/10 
 

Community Cohesion  Officer Report 
(Carolyn Curr) 

 Council Excellence Committee 
meeting of 17

th
 March 2010 

requested that this item be included 
on the Committee’s work 
programme for 2010/11. 

 

17/03/10 
 

Freedom of Information Act Officer Report 
(Ian Coleman) 

 Follow-up report (from meeting held 
on 17

th
 March 2010) presented to 

8
th

 July meeting. No further actions 
requested.  

 

08/07/10 
 

Future of Performance Management / 
replacement of CAA: 
- How will performance management operate 
once the CAA and statutory Performance 
Indicators have been removed?  
- Who collects the current PI data, how much 
effort is involved, and what use is made of it? 
- Which Performance Indicators are relevant 
and should be retained? 
- What information do members need to 
monitor the local authority effectively?  

Officer Report 
(Carolyn Curr) 
 
 

 A verbal report on the current view 
of the future for performance 
monitoring in the authority will be 
provided at the meeting on 21

st
 

September. 
 

 

08/07/10 Performance Monitoring (Quarterly updates 
on existing performance indicators – 
‘Exceptions’ only will be reported). 

Officer Reports 
(Carolyn Curr) 

 Quarterly Performance Monitoring 
Reports will be included on each 
agenda from September onwards. 

 

08/07/10 
 

Change Programme: 
- Regular updates on proposed savings;  
- Monitor the effectiveness of the Change 
Programme; 

Officer Reports 
(Dave Green) 
 

 Suggested report on the progress 
of the Strategic Change 
Programme Board to be provided 
for the meeting 18

th
 November 

 

08/07/10 
 

Common Administrative Processes Officer Reports 
(Dave Green) 

 Suggested report on progress of 
the project at the meeting on 18

th
 

November.  

 

P
a
g

e
 1

7
4



 

 

Date of 
New 
item  

Topic Description  How the topic will 
be dealt with 

Estimated 
Complete 
Date  

Comments on Progress Complete? 

      

08/07/10 
 
 

Financial Reporting  / Budget: 
- Monitoring the financial statements 
- How the authority performs against savings 
targets; 
- Review the impact on local residents where 
savings are made; 
- Impact of the Comprehensive Spending 
Review on the borough; 

Officer Reports 
(Ian Coleman) 

 Financial / Budget Monitoring 
reports will be included on each 
meeting agenda. 
 

 

08/07/10 
 

‘Total Place’: 
- What is the role for the concept of ‘Total 
Place’ in the borough?; 
- What is happening with partners to establish 
areas for cooperation, for example, how will 
DASS and NHS work together to streamline 
‘elderly’ care? 

Officer Reports 
(Carolyn Curr) 
 

 Report on the background to ‘Total 
Place and successor arrangements 
– Community Budgets’ to be 
provided at the meeting on 21

st
 

September. 
 

 

08/07/10 
 

Office Accommodation: 
- The EC Harris report was referred to the 
Council Excellence Committee by Cabinet (24 
June 2010);  
- Need to understand the Cabinet timetable; 
- What are the implications for the Council’s 
Data Centres?; 
- Future role for agile working 
 

Officer reports plus site 
visits.  
(Bill Norman / Ian 
Brand) 

 Special meeting of the Committee 
arranged for 24

th
 August 2010. 

Further report will be provided at 
the meeting on 21

st
 September. 

 

08/07/10 
 

Future of Cultural Services: 
- Where should Cultural Services fit in the 
organisation?; 
- How can the service be best managed?; 

Possible joint work with 
Sustainable 
Communities Overview 
and Scrutiny 
Committee 

 Suggested report at the meeting on 
31

st
 January 2011. 

 

08/07/10 
 

Monitoring of items of expenditure exceeding 
£500: 
- How does the system operate? 
 

Officer report to a 
future meeting 
(Ian Coleman) 

 Issue initially raised by a member at 
the Committee meeting on 
08/07/10. 
Report on ‘Publication of 
Expenditure’ at the meeting on 21

st
 

September.  

 

P
a
g
e
 1

7
5



 

REPORT 2 
SUGGESTIONS FOR ADDITIONS TO WORK PROGRAMME   

COUNCIL EXCELLENCE : 21/09/10  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Topic Description  Topic 
suggested by 

How the topic will 
be dealt with 

Estimated 
Completion Date 

    

None  
  

   

    

    

    

    

    

    

P
a
g

e
 1

7
6



 

REPORT 3  
PROPOSED OUTLINE MEETING SCHEDULE FOR THE MUNICIPAL YEAR  

COUNCIL EXCELLENCE : 2010 / 2011 
 

Meeting 
Date 

Topic Description  

  

08/07/10 
 
 
 

Financial Monitoring 
Housing Benefit / Council Tax Benefit Annual Report 
Customer Services Annual Report 
Treasury Management Annual Report  
Audit Commission Performance Management Review 
Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy 
Freedom of Information requests (follow-up report from meeting held on 17

th
 March 2010) 

Forward Plan 
Office Accommodation 
Work Programme Update 
Forward Plan 
 

24/08/10 Office Accommodation (Special Meeting) 
 

21/09/10 
 
 

Financial Monitoring 
Tax, Income & Benefits 
Budget Projections 2011-15 
Treasury Management 
Customer Services Focus Group 
Publication of Expenditure 
Managing Attendance 
IRRV Conference – Harrogate 
Catering tenders 
Delivering efficiency and measuring and reporting Value for Money gains in local services 
Q1 Performance Monitoring – Report concentrating on red / amber ‘exceptions’ plus a verbal update on the future 
plans for performance monitoring 
‘Total Place’ and successor arrangements – Community Budgets  
Office Accommodation 
Work Programme Update 
Forward Plan 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

7
7



 

 
 Meeting 

Date 
Topic Description  

  

18/11/10 
 
 
 

Financial Monitoring, General Financial Matters and Budget Projections 
Impact of the Comprehensive Spending Review 
Q2 Performance Monitoring – Report concentrating on red / amber ‘exceptions’ 
Progress of Change Programme 
Common Administrative Processes 
Work Programme Update 
Forward Plan 
 

31/01/11 
 
 

Financial Monitoring, General Financial Matters and Budget Projections 
Q3 Performance Monitoring – Report concentrating on red / amber ‘exceptions’ 
Future of Cultural Services 
Work Programme Update 
Forward Plan 
 

16/03/10 Financial Monitoring, General Financial Matters and Budget Projections 
Work Programme Update 
Forward Plan 
 
 
 

P
a
g

e
 1

7
8



 

REPORT 4 
PROGRESS REPORT ON IN-DEPTH PANEL REVIEWS 

COUNCIL EXCELLENCE : 21/09/10 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Title of Review Members of Panel Progress to Date Date Due to  
report to 
Committee 

    

 
None at present 
 

   

 
 
 

   

P
a
g
e
 1

7
9



Page 180

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 20

Page 181

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 184

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 21

Page 185

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 188

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 08/07/2010 18:30 Council Excellence Overview and Scrutiny Committee
	Minutes Public Pack, 24/08/2010 Council Excellence Overview and Scrutiny Committee
	Minutes Public Pack, 26/08/2010 Council Excellence Overview and Scrutiny Committee

	4 Financial Monitoring Statement
	5 First Quarter Performance Exception Report 2010/2011
	6 Reaching Excellent Level of the Equality Framework for Local Government (EFLG) - Quarter One 2010/2011 Corporate Performance Monitoring Report
	8 Total Place
	9 Revenues and Benefits
	10 Budget Projections 2011 - 2015
	11 Treasury Management Quarterly Monitoring
	12 Delivering Efficiency and Measuring and Reporting Value for Money Gains in Local Services
	Appendix

	13 Customer Service Focus Group
	Appendix

	14 Publication of Expenditure - Workload Impact
	15 Audit Commission Report - Managing Attendance
	17 Review of Scrutiny Work Programme
	20 Schools Risk Management
	21 Catering Tenders

